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August 5, 2015

Her Excellency Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and
The Honorable Council

Dear Governor and Councilors:

REQUESTED ACTION

Holding of a public hearing and passage of a Resolution entitled: A RESOLUTION
UNDER RSA 162-1:9 WITH RESPECT TO THE FINANCING AND REFINANCING OF
WATER FACILITIES BY THE BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY FOR PENNICHUCK
WATER WORKS, INC. IN AMHERST, BEDFORD, DERRY, EPPING, HOLLIS, HUDSON,
LITCHFIELD, MERRIMACK, MILFORD, NASHUA, NEWMARKET, PITTSFIELD,
PLAISTOW AND SALEM. (For the text of the requested Resolution see Tab #1 below this
letter of transmittal.)

The Authority respectfully requests that you hold a hearing, and, if you consider such
action appropriate, make the statutory findings under RSA 162-I:9 with respect to the proposed
issuance of up to $25,500,000 Water Facility Revenue Bonds by the Authority and the loan of
the proceeds of the Bonds to Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (the “Borrower”) to finance and
refinance construction, rehabilitation and renovation to water facilities in Amherst, Bedford,
Derry, Epping, Hollis, Hudson, Litchfield, Merrimack, Milford, Nashua, Newmarket, Pittsfield,
Plaistow and Salem, New Hampshire (collectively, the “Locations”). The Authority
recommends your favorable action and submits in support thereof the following materials with
item numbers the same as the tab numbers for the attached documents.

1. A suggested form of resolution for adoption by the Governor and Council.

2. A letter from Hinckley, Allen & Snyder LLP, bond counsel, explaining this
transaction.

3. Materials with respect to the Borrower and the facilities consisting of the
Application for Official Intent (Form BFA-1), dated April 15, 2015, submitted by
the Borrower related to the “new money” portion of the financing, and which
includes the Borrower’s financial statements for the period ending December 31,
2014 audited by Melanson Heath & Company, PC.
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The proposed LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT.
5. The proposed BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT.

6. Information from the New Hampshire Employment Security, Economic and
Labor Market Information Bureau as to unemployment in the Locations.

7. The resolution adopted by the Authority.

8. A summary of required statutory findings of the Governor and Council with
reference to materials supporting each finding.

The Authority will be glad to furnish any additional documentation and information
which you may request.

Respectfully submitted,

BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF
THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

,//Q,\

J ack Donovan
Executive Director
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Tab #1

A RESOLUTION UNDER RSA 162-1:9 WITH RESPECT TO THE FINANCING
AND REFINANCING OF WATER FACILITIES BY THE BUSINESS FINANCE
AUTHORITY FOR PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC.

AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS WITHIN THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

WHEREAS, the Governor and Council have received from the Business Finance
Authority (the “Authority”) its written recommendation that the Governor and Council make
certain findings and a determination pursuant to RSA 162-1:9 with respect to the financing and
refinancing of water facilities for Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (the “Borrower”) in Ambherst,
Bedford, Derry, Epping, Hollis, Hudson, Litchfield, Merrimack, Milford, Nashua, Newmarket,
Pittsfield, Plaistow and Salem (collectively, “Locations™) by the Authority’s issue of up to
$25,500,000 Bonds under RSA 162-I (the “Act™);

WHEREAS, the Governor and Council have received all the documentation and
information with respect to the transaction that they have requested; and

WHEREAS, further action by the Authority with respect to the transaction is subject to
the passage of this resolution and cannot be taken until after its passage;

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:

Section 1. Findings. On the basis of the Authority’s recommendation and the
documentation and information received by the Governor and Council, and after a public
hearing, the Governor and Council find:

(a) Special findings:

(D The Project (which constitutes the “Facilities”) consists of those projects
listed on Schedule A attached hereto.

The Project is within the definition of “Water facility” in the Act and may
be financed under the Act.

(2) The establishment and operation of the Facilities expands or maintains and
improves the collection, purification, storage or distribution of water for domestic,
industrial, agricultural or other uses, and the water for such uses is to be available on
reasonable demand to members of the general public within the State of New Hampshire.

(b) General findings:

(D The Project and the proposed financing and refinancing of the Project are
feasible;
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2) The Borrower has the skills and financial resources necessary to operate
the Facilities successfully;

3) The LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT (which is a combined financing
document and security document, hereinafter called an “Agreement”) contain provisions
so that under no circumstances will the Authority be obligated directly or indirectly to
pay project costs, debt service or expenses of operation, maintenance and upkeep of the
Facilities except from Bond proceeds or from funds received under the Agreement,
exclusive of funds received thereunder by the Authority for its own use;

(4)  The Agreement does not purport to create any debt of the State with
respect to the Facilities, other than a special obligation of the Authority acting on behalf
of the State under the Act; and

)] The proposed financing and refinancing of the Project by the Authority
and the proposed operation and use of the Facilities will serve one or more needs and
implement one or more purposes set forth in RSA 162-1:1, will preserve or increase the
social or economic prosperity of the State and one or more of its political subdivisions,
and will promote the general welfare of the State’s citizens.

Section 2. Ultimate Finding and Determination. The Governor and Council find that the
proposed financing and refinancing, operation and use of the Facilities will serve a public use
and provide a public benefit; and the Governor and Council determine that the Authority’s
financing and refinancing of the Project will be within the policy of, and the authority conferred
by, the Act.

Section 3. Approval. The Governor and Council approve the Authority’s taking such
further action under the Act with respect to the transaction as may be required.
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Section 4. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect upon its passage.

Passed and Agreed to August 5, 2015.

Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

Councilor Joseph D. Kenney

Councilor Colin Van Ostern

Councilor Christopher T. Sununu

Councilor Christopher C. Pappas

Councilor David K. Wheeler
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Schedule A

(1) financing the construction of an approximately 32,300 square foot, one-story building to serve
as an operating facility for the Borrower to be located at #16 Daniel Webster Highway, Merrimack (also
described as: a certain parcel of land (the “Parcel”) situated in the Town of Merrimack, County of
Hillsborough, State of New Hampshire, being shown as Tax Map 1D, Lot 1-5 on plan entitled
Subdivision Plan (Map 1D, Lot 1), Daniel Webster Highway and Manchester Street, Merrimack, New
Hampshire, Record Owner: The Southwood Corporation), such Parcel expected to be transferred from
The Southwood Corporation to the Borrower;

(2) refinancing (A) Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project),
Series 2005A and Series 2005B which financed and refinanced (i) upgrades to water facilities in the
Ledge Street area of Nashua, (i) reconstruction of Supply Pond Dam in Nashua, (iii) construction of a 20
million gallon per day raw water supplemental pumping facility on an extension of Mast Road in
Merrimack on the banks of the Merrimack River and adjacent to a former Boston & Maine railroad bed
and acquisition and installation of equipment and furnishings therefor, (iv) laying of approximately 8,670
linear feet of 30-inch ductile iron transmission main at Mast Road, Daniel Webster Highway, Henry Clay
Drive, Manchester Street and Al Paul Lane in Merrimack, (v) construction of a water treatment plant at
200 Concord Street in Nashua and a 1.7 million gallon reservoir tank and related equipment off of
Shakespeare Road in Nashua, and (vi) replacement of Bowers Pond Dam and related site work at Bowers
Pond in Nashua and Merrimack, all of which are used by the Borrower for the purpose of increasing
water storage capacity for fire protection and maintaining constant water pressure in Merrimack and
Nashua; and (B) Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) 2005 Series A,
which financed (i) upgrades to the Nashua Water Treatment Plant at 200 Concord Street in Nashua to
ensure compliance with SDWA regulations and to provide operating redundancy, (ii) water supply
improvements consisting of security upgrades, watershed improvements and arsenic removal equipment
at 200 Concord Street in Nashua, (iii) water distribution improvements, including radio meter reading
equipment, water main replacement and rehabilitation at customer locations for the Borrower’s service
area throughout Nashua as shown on the Service Area Website (at http://www.pennichuck.com/tefra.php
(the “Service Area Website™), including but not limited to in Nashua on Burke Street, Eldridge Street,
West Hollis Street, Lovell Street, Miami Street, Chestnut Street, Hamilton Street, Brook Street, Marquis
Avenue, Rochete Avenue, Verona Street, Sarasota Avenue, Manatee Street, Burritt Street, Thomas Street,
Dudley Street, Proctor Street, Mulvanity Street, Fernwood Street, Field Street, Fossa Avenue, Pratt Street,
Evergreen Street, Allds Street, Newbury Street, Gillis Street, Zellwood Street, Revere Street, Morton
Avenue, Temple Street, Worcester Street, Scripture Street and Sheds Avenue) in conjunction with
Nashua’s street and sewer upgrade project and maintenance of the Bon Terrain Tank adjacent to Route
101A in Amherst and Fifield Tank #1 at Fifield Street and Orchard Avenue in Nashua, (iv) water system
operational improvements, including construction of the Armory Pumping Station at Daniel Webster
Highway and South Main Street in Nashua and expansion of the Shakespeare High Pressure Service Area
at Shakespeare Road in Nashua, acquisition of rolling stock required to maintain water service and
acquisition and installation of water meters at 31 Will Street in Nashua, and (v) support systems
improvements, consisting of a geographical information system and customer account and billing
software, all of which are used by the Borrower for the purpose of improving its collection, purification,
storage and distribution of water in Amherst, Bedford, Derry, Epping, Hollis, Merrimack, Milford,
Nashua, Plaistow and Salem, New Hampshire.
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’A HINCKLEY 28 State Street
ALLEN Boston, MA 02109-1775

p: 617-345-8000 f: 617-345-9020
hinckleyallen.com
Tab #2

August 5, 2015

Her Excellency Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and
The Honorable Council

Dear Governor and Councilors:
(BFA — Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.)

In this transaction the Authority will lend up to $25,500,000 of exempt facility revenue bond proceeds to
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (together with any affiliates, the “Borrower™), for the purpose of (A)
financing projects as listed on Schedule A attached hereto and (B) refinancing projects financed by the
Authority’s bonds issued for Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. as listed on Schedule B attached hereto.

The Bonds will be issued and the loan will be made pursuant to a LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT
(the “Agreement”). TD Securities (USA) LLC (the “Underwriter”) is prepared to underwrite the Bonds
on the terms set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement. The Series C Bonds are expected to be privately
purchased by TD Bank, National Association pursuant to a bond purchase agreement similar to the Bond
Purchase Agreement included in Tab #4. The terms of the three series of Bonds will be up to 30 years,
depending on the series of Bonds and market conditions at the time of sale. Interest on the Bonds will be
at rates not to exceed 10.00%. The Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds are expected to be fixed rate
bonds and the Series C Bonds may be fixed or variable rate bonds. The Borrower may prepay principal
of the Bonds at its option without penalty after a zero to ten-year no-call period, depending on the series
of Bonds and market conditions at the time and if issued as taxable bonds, may be subject to a make-
whole premium.

The Authority’s obligation to pay the Bonds is actually to be performed by the Borrower, which is
unconditionally responsible for that performance. As in all transactions under RSA 162-I, neither the
Authority’s money nor other public funds will or can be used to pay the Bonds. Provisions appropriate
for achieving this result, as required by RSA 162-1, are contained in the Agreement.

In summary, the details of this transaction are essentially the same as in many prior bond issues, and there
is nothing new or unusual involved.

hrctley Bilon + Sydesecp

HINCKLEY, ALLEN & SNYDER LLP

> ALBANY » BOSTON » CONCORD » HARTFORD » NEW YORK » PROVIDENCE

HINCKLEY, ALLEN & SNYDER LLP, ATTORNEYS AT LAW
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Schedule A

Financing the construction of an approximately 32,300 square foot, one-story building to serve as
an operating facility for the Borrower to be located at #16 Daniel Webster Highway, Merrimack (also
described as: a certain parce! of land (the “Parcel”) situated in the Town of Merrimack, County of
Hillsborough, State of New Hampshire, being shown as Tax Map 1D, Lot 1-5 on plan entitled
Subdivision Plan (Map 1D, Lot 1), Daniel Webster Highway and Manchester Street, Merrimack, New
Hampshire, Record Owner: The Southwood Corporation), such Parcel expected to be transferred from
The Southwood Corporation to the Borrower.
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Schedule B

Refinancing (A) Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project), Series
2005A and Series 2005B which financed and refinanced (i) upgrades to water facilities in the Ledge
Street area of Nashua, (ii) reconstruction of Supply Pond Dam in Nashua, (iii) construction of a 20
million gallon per day raw water supplemental pumping facility on an extension of Mast Road in
Merrimack on the banks of the Merrimack River and adjacent to a former Boston & Maine railroad bed
and acquisition and installation of equipment and furnishings therefor, (iv) laying of approximately 8,670
linear feet of 30-inch ductile iron transmission main at Mast Road, Daniel Webster Highway, Henry Clay
Drive, Manchester Street and Al Paul Lane in Merrimack, (v) construction of a water treatment plant at
200 Concord Street in Nashua and a 1.7 million gallon reservoir tank and related equipment off of
Shakespeare Road in Nashua, and (vi) replacement of Bowers Pond Dam and related site work at Bowers
Pond in Nashua and Merrimack, all of which are used by the Borrower for the purpose of increasing
water storage capacity for fire protection and maintaining constant water pressure in Merrimack and
Nashua; and (B) Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) 2005 Series A,
which financed (i) upgrades to the Nashua Water Treatment Plant at 200 Concord Street in Nashua to
ensure compliance with SDWA regulations and to provide operating redundancy, (ii) water supply
improvements consisting of security upgrades, watershed improvements and arsenic removal equipment
at 200 Concord Street in Nashua, (iii) water distribution improvements, including radio meter reading
equipment, water main replacement and rehabilitation at customer locations for the Borrower’s service
area throughout Nashua as shown on the Service Area Website (at http://www.pennichuck.com/tefra.php
(the “Service Area Website”), including but not limited to in Nashua on Burke Street, Eldridge Street,
West Hollis Street, Lovell Street, Miami Street, Chestnut Street, Hamilton Street, Brook Street, Marquis
Avenue, Rochete Avenue, Verona Street, Sarasota Avenue, Manatee Street, Burritt Street, Thomas Street,
Dudley Street, Proctor Street, Mulvanity Street, Fernwood Street, Field Street, Fossa Avenue, Pratt Street,
Evergreen Street, Allds Street, Newbury Street, Gillis Street, Zellwood Street, Revere Street, Morton
Avenue, Temple Street, Worcester Street, Scripture Street and Sheds Avenue) in conjunction with
Nashua’s street and sewer upgrade project and maintenance of the Bon Terrain Tank adjacent to Route
101A in Amherst and Fifield Tank #1 at Fifield Street and Orchard Avenue in Nashua, (iv) water system
operational improvements, including construction of the Armory Pumping Station at Daniel Webster
Highway and South Main Street in Nashua and expansion of the Shakespeare High Pressure Service Area
at Shakespeare Road in Nashua, acquisition of rolling stock required to maintain water service and
acquisition and installation of water meters at 31 Will Street in Nashua, and (v) support systems
improvements, consisting of a geographical information system and customer account and billing
software, all of which are used by the Borrower for the purpose of improving its collection, purification,
storage and distribution of water in Amherst, Bedford, Derry, Epping, Hollis, Merrimack, Milford,
Nashua, Plaistow and Salem, New Hampshire.

B-1
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APPLICATION FOR OFFICIAL INTENT

*Ifyou have any questions about this application or the BFA's bond program, please call the BFA's offices at (603) 415-0190, If you need
more space for any guestion, please attach additional sheets,

Name of Applicant;___FENNIcUMEk.  LWaTEL woRKS, TVE.

Address:__ 235 MANCYESEL  STRES

City, State, Zip:_. m%mﬂfx ,uH » o*ao;’-#

Contact: _LA—aM o goﬁpml& Title: _5F° ‘1‘?2!&5!4(&5& Phone:_&o3~-43-2312.
cw./-rrw LD

Name and address of owner of project (if different): __
SAmE 44 gﬁm’&

Name and address of lessees of project (if any)____ et MPL'C’«% L

25 ove (s gxinsir o ATrEH)

Amount of bond issue 5 _
Address of project site: VA S

Briefly describe the project:
SEE_ATTPTaEp  LIST. OF Predier Qfgeaibniews py  Exmns T 2 Ameded,

s8R IQ Smiiad, Y

ESTIMATED COST SIZE

Land Acqulsition $ acres
Building Acquisition 5 . sq.ft,
Building Construction S o . , e sq. ft,
Building Renovation s - ) sq.ft.
Equipment Acquisition $ N

Cost of Bond Issuance $_Hossvn_ (5‘% éfowﬂ r 4

Refinance Existing Debt S >

Other (describe): SLE  AREALONr gt Awoum MM CATELonY o) ExHB 1T 2 ATTRSHE)

Describe the effect of the project on the environment:__~a _Zuvigowment s mepzr  Srany. fsjw;uu b
ﬁé&&w AT TS _TIME /ﬂL w%ff rmxgg AN P 15 N0 ZXHersh W ET2 A :

When do you expect the project to begin?. L 2005 completed? &y Zos7.
How many jobs will be created or preserved by the facility? Created Preserved

Describe the types of jobs created or preserved, their wage and salary levels and if appllcable,when the jObS wHI be created:
THE  SUCEESSAlL  ASIDDILs AEE EAPLEED T LSE ﬂés/an/n Wcﬂtlﬁzzls fd»c Acwzz«:s Dwzﬂu‘: mz.
CHTED PansSrRutron Atub, SHESER Y s o7 Miﬁm)‘ N ;_,,_._ MEehER Y AT v LY,

Names and Addresses of contractors and subcontractors for the pro;ect THE ﬂz«ws wyee 6‘ 619 r.fr4
Stpdet qRent  of fPERUALIAED CoutlAzraes, Vor g2 PE  DEEgm wid

Describe the Apphcant {and |fapphcable the ownerand the Iessees) lncludea brlef hsstory of the Apphcant its pnncupal

products, and its consumersy 5S¢t Sxmay 3 Arineind : 4 .

o

Bri‘eﬂy describe the background of the Applicant's {and If applicable the owner'’s and lesseas’) key management personnel;’ '
SEE PMipd)T 2 ATIAHED

!s the App!icant an equal opportunity employer? 4+ V/ the owner? [l Jthe lessee?
Please provide any other Information of which you belxeve the BFA should be aware in considering this applxcatton

The applicant will promptly advise the BFA of any change in the foregoing information, or of any additional information that
may become available as plans for the project progress.

Date: . '-"/”/

Author&@d Officer of Applicant



-

uonesyddy 10§ T uQIYX3 ; ST107T ‘mm. judy - vonexddy HNY-4E 02 UGIYXT - SUONIPPY 135SV 2|qepuog JO SINPaYIS\STOZ Ueld adueuld [ende) pajeadajuj\yjueg q H/”n_

oco‘oovr S

1000°008°62°S

000°00¥°9T

.000°00T°6

000°00T‘C
000000~

Sy

000°005°SZ $ -

T UqIyxy

g -3 siy1 38 8ueyd 01 13IGNS St YAIYM ‘Panss] Ajlen1de Spuoq Jo 3n|eA |e101 Y] 01 198IGNS S1 JUN0ISIC S J91LIMIBPUN Y] 7
“JUN0ISIQ 5 481UMIBPUN 341 SUIPN|IX3 ‘BUensst SIYT YUM P3TBI0SSe 83§ Byl JO 21LWIIS3 IAJRAIDSUOD & S 3IUENSS| puoq J0 1507 T
ESUETTTe N

. uonesnady Jod onss| puog Jo 1569

Aejuswiwlo) pue umopyjealg - 9nss| puog o 150
“JU| ‘SHIOAR J93BAR AONYDJUUDY

"BA0QR N/ S IR BI1RIIPU] S) YIyMm ‘ASucl Mau Y1 JO %17/ S1 93) 9IUBNSS] SWIE BUO S,y4g 9yl J1ey] SUIpuRSIapUN INOSI Y ¢
"3A0R PAYID St S1L3 10§ 3dueMmolie wnwipew v “Suroduo sy spuoq 3unsixs jo Suipunyas jenualod Jo m_m>_mc< 1
HSUEVUL M

spuog jo unowy |ejo
N (x|} spuog Sunsixg jo Bulpunyay - spuog 1dwaxj xej

ASuoiy MmaN |e301
. (12 39 “ys3133ul pazijelided ‘UNOISIP aNss [eUlB1I0) 3DUBNSS} O JBUUEIA 10§ 30UBMO[|Y
{Z uqyx3 99s - saunypuadxy [eyde) sapiided J31eM LT0Z-STOZ 404) spuog 1dwaxg xey.
:3NSS{ puog Jo umaopyealg

suoned)ddy asd anss| puog jo junowy

Azejuauwnuo) pue umopesag - anss| puog Jo Junowy
. *oU] ‘SYIONA J432BAN YONYOIUUDY



uonesnddy 103 7 UAIYX3 $T0Z ‘ST |udy - uones)ddy HNY-g 03 3qIYd - SUCINPPY 1assy a|qRpUOY JO SINPIYIS\STOT ue|d aueul [eude) palesdajuiueg ql\d

‘}senbaJ siy jo ped e se

paouEUl B8 10U (M WY S| 10} pajedionue SIejjop Sy} ‘9SeD au SISILE Y Jsuuew Jaljoue Ul psoeidal aq [m A0} 8l Jo/pue SSOINOS JBLJO BIA PSOUBUY JSUNS LSUURW SIL
ul pansind aq jou Aew *yons se pue ‘[eacidde Aiojeinbai pue Japloysseys o} Joalgns s Ajioey Juswiaoe|dal SIU) Jo UORONAOSUCD Sy} 10} 1 1L0Z-6102 Ui papnioy] sjunowry - | SjoN

“Sjunowry s|qepuogd €101 |

[ooo'000z_s]  [ooooo0z s

0000002 | | 000"000°Z

[ejo] - uonnqUISIQ JOTBAR

N—J

LORONAISUGY pUE UbIsa( ‘BUIUUE]d - AliPe JUSWISoEIdoy 10048 (W]

‘foco'coo’z $1  [0000000°2

1

~ Spoon)- SRS A A .
UCHNgIISI] ;oumgm

sjejo) puers N 10T
Apeg Buipugy
pue §1.0Z a3e1
Buuwbeg pousd
uoRoNIISuUOD
- pauuejd |B10g,

buipuog jduiaxa-Xe | 0} Bufje|ay sjunouy

Z Hqiyxy

: .E@.u—_

(sxejjop uy)
saumjpusdx] jejided senyyoe] 112 M £10Z-5102 jo Arwwng
U] ‘SYIOAR JSIEAA HINYIIUUSH



uoneoyddy Joy € MQIYX3  STOZ ‘ST [udy - uonedyddy HNY4E 03 NGIYXT - SUORIPPY 19SSV 3|qepuUod JO JNPIYIS\STOT Ueld dueuy jende) pajesdaqui\yued ai\:d

$321N0S3Y UewWNY JO J01I8.aq ‘B8yd0oyaqg ey

Adojouyda] uoijeulIo| 46 1019341Q ‘poomuaaun uaydals
1a8euei uoIINGISIF ‘@IYIIBAET SAwef

Jo8euriy Ajddng ua1epn ‘aiuno) 1aydoispy)d

J93uidu] Jeiy) ‘Hansiog uyor

J9[JOJIU0D puE JaJnseal] ‘1300 |_URUL] 181YD ‘Snypoos Aue
192130 3unesadQ Jaiy) ‘Buem pleuodg

132140 aANNIAXT JaIYD ‘Opneusiey uyor

|3uuosiad Juawadeuen Aay

-aaysdwieH man wiayInos u; eale asiyduel) paijidads s UIYHM S19W03snd uoipajosd
3Ji] PUE JeLIISNPUS ‘[BI2ISUILIOD ‘[eRUIPISDI 0} Jd3em 3jqelod Jo JoINGISIp pue ssiddns e se ‘Sieah 09T 4310 10} UISIXD Uf Uaaq sey Auedwo) syt ~Adeipisqns
P3umOo-AjJoyMm 159818 BU1 S1 "DU[ ‘SHIOM JS1BAN YINYDIUURJ YOIym Jo} ‘Uoijerodio] YINyduuad 10} SJUIWIIEIS (eiuelld PPNy vI0z/1E/ZT paydelie ayl 295

eaddy jo uondisag
£ UGIyxa uj ‘SHIOAA 11BN HONYDIUUSY




Pennichuck Corporation and Subsidiaries
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014 and 2013
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MELANSON

ACCOUNTANTS + AUDITORS:

121 River Front Drive
Manchester, NH 03102
(603)669-6130
melansonheath.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT. Additional Offices:
Nashua, NB
Andover, MA
field,
Board of Directors and Stockholder 31?52!5: Mf_ng

Pennichuck Corporation and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pennichuck Corporation
and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in
stockholder’s equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsxble for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opmlon
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Pennichuck Corporation and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Malamson Hoatd

March 18, 2015



PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31,2014 and 2013
(in thousands, except share data)

2014 2013
ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment, net $ 173,287 $ 167,711
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,987 1,038
Restricted cash - RSF 5,264 5,563
Restricted cash - 2014 Bond Project Fund 16,847 -
Restricted cash - Bond Refund Escrow 23,725 -
Accounts receivable - billed, net 2,189 2,301
Accounts receivable - unbilled, net 2,399 2,102
Accounts receivable - other 43 34
Inventory 802 820
Prepaid expenses 541 528
Prepaid property taxes 1,047 1,034
Deferred and refundable income taxes %4 e
Total Current Assets 55,938 13,420
Other Assets:
Deferred land costs 2,251 2,251
Debt issuance expenses, net 4,422 3,406
Investment in real estate partnership 104 110
Other 8,920 5,583
Acquisition premium, net - 78,885 80,719
Total Other Assets 94,582 92,069
TOTAL ASSETS § 323,807 § 273,200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - CONTINUED
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands, except share data)

2014 2013
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Stockholder’s Equity:
Common stock; $0.01 par value; 1,000 shares
authorized, issued and outstending 3 - $ .
Additional paid in capital 30,561 30,561
Accumulated defieit 6,151) (4,099)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 180 . 298
Total Stockholder's Equity 24,590 26,760
Long-Term Debt, Less Current Portion 198,032 174,43]
Current Liabilities:
Line of credit - 1,966
Current portion of long-term debt 26,275 2,965
Accounts payable 1,577 1,150
Accrued property taxes - 13
Deferred revenue 65 66
Accrued interest payable 682 576
Other accrued expenses 215 212.
Accrued wages and payroll withholding 221 282
Customer deposits and other _ 188 111
Total Current Liabilities 29,223 71341
Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits:
Deferred income taxes 20,334 19,807
Accrued pension liability 8,017 5,257
Unamortized debt premium 2,331 427
Deferred investment tax eredits 603 636
Regulatory liability 803 824
Accrued post-retirement benefits 2,016 1,858
Customet advances 84 84
Contributions in aid of construction, net 36,532 34,686
Derivative instrument 583 386
Other long-term liabilities 659 703
Tota] Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits 71,962 84,668

TOTAL STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES $ 323,807  .§ 273200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31,2014 and 2013

(in thousands)
2014 2013
Operating Revenues $_ 38815 §_ 37,694
Operating Expenses:
Operations and maintenance 18,221 18,523
Depreciation and amortization 6,148 6,661
Taxes other than income taxes 5,541 5072
Total Operating Expenses 29,910 30,256
Operating Income 8,905 7,438
Interest Expense (10,156) (10,128)
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 7 14
Other, Net 20 872
Loss Before (Provision for) Benefit from Income Taxes  (1;224) (1,804)
(Provision for) Benefit from Income Taxes {581 848
Net Loss $ (1,775_,! ‘ $ (956)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31,2014 and 2013
(in thousands)

- 2014
Net Loss § (1,775
Other Comprehensive Income:
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives (349)
Reclassification of net loss realized in net income 152
Income tax expense (benefit) relating to other comprehensive income 79

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive Loss

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31,2014 and 2013
(in thousands)

2014 2013
Operating Activities: ‘
Net Loss §  (1,775) $  (956)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 6,447 6,949
Amortization of original issue discount 12 12
Equity component of AFUDC 4) (8)
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits (33) (33)
Provision for deferred income tax 606 (994)
Undistributed loss in real estate partnership 6 5
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable billed and unbilled (195) (83)
(Increase) decrease in inventory 18 (69)
(Increase) in prepaid expenses (120 {(196)
{Increase) decrease in deferred charges and other assets (1,004) 5,180
Decrease in refundable income taxes 1 155
Increase in accounts payable and deferred revenue 557 257
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable 106 (42)
Increase (decrease) in other 2,726 (4,194)
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,348 5,983
Investing Acttvities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including debt
component of allowance for funds used during construction (8,585) (7,270)
Increase in restricted cash (40,273) (120)
Change in investment in real estate partnership and
deferred land costs e @)
Net cash used in investing activities $ (48,858) $ (7393)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31,2014 and 2013
(in thousands)

2014 2013

Financing Activities:

Borrowings (payments) on line of credit, net $  (1,966) $§ 1,966

Payments on long-term debt (3,036) {2,835)

Contributions in aid of construction 78 93

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 49,935 3,161

Debt issuance costs (1,275) (33)

Dividends paid (277) (715
Net cash provided by financing activities 43,459 A 1,575
Tncrease in cash and cash equivalents 1,949 165
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period L,038 373
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period §__ 2987 $ 1,038

Supplemental Disclosure on Cash Flow and Non-cash Items
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands)

2014 2013 .
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest § 9,809 $ 9,937
Income taxes 93 81
Non-cash items:
Contributions in aid of construction 2,586 1,825
Forgiveness of debt 75 56

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 ~ Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

_Dqs;r_ip_ﬁpp of Business:

Pennichuck Corporation (our “Company,” “we,” or “our”) is a holding company
headquartered in Merrimack, New Hampshire with five wholly owned operating subsidiaries:
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc., (“Pennichuck Water”)  Pennichuck East Utility, Inc.,
(“Pennichuck East”) and Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. (“PAC™) (collectively referred to
as our Company’s “utility subsidiaries'), which ate involved in regulated water supply and
distribution to customers in New Hampshire; Pennichuck Water Service Corporation
(“Service Corporation™) which conducts non-regulated water-related services; and The
Southwood Corporation (“Southwood”) which owns several parcels of undeveloped land.

Our Company’s utility subsidiaries are engaged principally in the collection, storage, treat-
ment and distribution of potable water to approximately 35,400 customers throughout the
State of New Hampshire. The utility subsidiaries, which are regulated by the New Hampshire
Public Utilities Commission (the “NHPUC”), are subject to the provisions of Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 980 “Regulated Operations.”

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of our Company
and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been elimi-
nated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, which includes principally the water utility assets of our
Company’s utility subsidiaries, is recorded at cost plus an allowance for funds used during
construction on major, long-term projects and includes property funded with contributions in

aid of construction,

11



Maintenance, repairs and minor improvements are charged to expense as incurred. Improve-
ments which significantly increase the value of property, plant and equipment are capitalized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents generally consist of cash, money market funds and other short-
term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Restricted Cash - RSF

This restricted cash balance consists of funds maintained for the Rate Stabilization Fund
(“RSF”), which was established in conformity with the requirements of New Hampshire
Public Utilities Commission (“NHPUC”) Order 25,292, as explained more fully in Note 11
of these financial statements. The RSF is an imprest fund of $5,000,000, which is subject to
funding above or below the imprest fund balance, reflecting actual revenue performance as it
relates to prescribed revenue levels supported by the RSF. Of the approximately $5.3 million
in restricted cash as of December 31, 2014 and in compliance with the rules governing the
use of the RSF, approximately $263,000 is reserved as a potential return to rate payers as a
component of the new water rates set as a result of the next promulgated rate case before the
NHPUC, for which that timing and occurrence is yet to be determined.

Restricted Cash — 2014 Bond Project Fund

This restricted cash balance consists of funds that resulted from the issuance of the Series
2014A tax-exempt bonds in December of 2014, as notated and fully described in Note 9 of
these audited financial statements. The new money proceeds, as described in Note 9, from
that bond issuance are maintained in a separate restricted cash account, and are subject to
withdrawal as a reimbursement of eligible capital project expenditures for the years 2014
through 2016, as defined by the indenture and issuance documents associated with the
offering. This fund was initially funded at a level of $19.5 million, at the time the bonds were
issued. In December of 2014, the first reimbursement withdrawal was processed from this
fund, in the amount of approximately $2.7 million, as a reimbursement of qualifying capital
projects completed and “used and useful” during 2014, resulting in the December 31, 2014
balance in the fund of approximately $16.8 million.

Restricted Cash ~ Bond Refund Escrow

This restricted cash balance also consists of funds that resulted from the issuance of the
Series 2014A tax-exempt bonds in December of 2014, as notated and fully described in
Note 9 of these audited financial statements. The refinance money proceeds, as described in
Note 9, from that bond issuance are maintained in a separate restricted cash account, pending
the completion of the refinance of existing tax-exempt bonds on January 20, 2015, the date at
which the required 30-day notice period to bondholders has expired from the date of
notification after the close of the December 15, 2014 bond closing. As of January 20, 2015,
the entire balance in this account, which included $23,350,000 of principal due on the bonds
being refunded, as well as approximately $375,000 of accrued interest due on these bonds,
was paid out to the holders of those debt instruments.

12



Concentration of Credit Risks

Financial instruments that subject our Company to credit risk consist primarily of cash and
accounts receivable. Our cash balances are invested in a financial institution insured to
statutory limit by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), Our accounts
receivable balances primarily represent amounts due from the residential, commercial and
industrial customers of our regulated water utility operations as well as receivables from our
Service Corporation customers.

Accounts Receivable - Billed

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amounts. The allowance for doubtful
accounts is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts
receivable, and is determined based on historical write-off experience and the aging of
account balances. We review the allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly. Account bal-
ances are written off against the allowance when it is probable the receivable will not be
recovered,

Accounts Receivable - Unbilled

We read our customer meters on a monthly basis and record revenues based on meter reading
results. Information from the last meter reading date is used to estimate the value of unbilled
revenues through the end of the accounting period. Estimates of water utility revenues for
water delivered to customers but not yet billed are accrued at the end of each accounting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost, using the average cost method, or market.

Deferred Land Costs

Included in deferred land costs is our Company’s original basis in its undeveloped land-
holdings and any land improvement costs, which are stated at the lower of cost or market.
All costs associated with real estate and land projects are capitalized and allocated to the
project to which the costs relate. Administrative labor and the related fringe benefit costs
attributable to the acquisition, active development and construction of land parcels are
capitalized as deferred land costs. No labor and benefits were capitalized for the years ended
December 31,2014 and 2013.

Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Deferred charges include certain regulatory assets and costs of obtaining debt financing.
Regulatory assets are amortized over the periods they are recovered through NHPUC-

authorized water rates. Deferred financing costs are amortized over the term of the related
bonds and notes. Our Company’s utility subsidiaries have recorded certain regulatory assets

13



in cases where the NHPUC has permitted, or is expected to permit, recovery of these costs
over future periods. Currently, the regulatory assets are being amortized over periods ranging
from 3 to 25 years.

Coniributions in Aid of Construction (“CIAC”)

Under construction contracts with real estate developers and others, our Company’s utility
subsidiaries may receive non-refundable advances for the cost of installing new water mains.
These advances are recorded as CIAC, The utility subsidiaries also record to plant and CIAC
the fair market value of developer installed mains and any excess of fair market value over
the cost of community water systems purchased from developers. CIAC are amortized over
the life of the property.

Revenues

Standard charges for water utility services to customers are recorded as revenue, based upon
meter readings and contract service, as services are provided. The majority of our Company’s
water revenues are based on rates approved by the NHPUC. Estimates of unbilled service
revenues are recorded in the period the services are provided. Provision is made in the
financial statements for estimated uncollectible accounts.

Non-regulated water management services include contract operations and maintenance, and
water testing and billing services to municipalities and small, privately owned commumity
water systems. Contract revenues are billed and recognized on a monthly recurring basis in
accordance with agreed-upon contract rates, Revenues from unplanned additional work are
based upon time and materials incurred in connection with activities not specifically identi-
fied in the contract, ot for which work levels exceed contracted amounts.

Revenues from real estate operations, other than undistributed earnings or losses from equity
method joint ventures, are recorded upon completion of a sale of real property. Our
Company’s real estate holdings outside of our regulated utilities are comprised primarily of
undeveloped land.

Investment in Joint Venture

Southwood uses the equity method of accounting for its investment in a joint venture in
which it does not have a controlling interest. Under this method, Southwood records its
proportionate share of losses under “Other, net” in the accompanying Consolidated State-
ments of Income with a corresponding decrease in the carrying value of the investment.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded using the accrual method and the provision for federal and state
income taxes is based on income reported in the consolidated financial statements, adjusted
for items not recognized for income tax purposes. Provisions for deferred income taxes
are recognized for accelerated depreciation and other temporary differences. A valuation
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allowance is provided to offset any net deferred tax assets if, based upon available evidence,
it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
Investment tax credits previously realized for income tax purposes are amortized for financial
statement purposes over the life of the property, giving rise to the credit.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

We do not expect the adoption of any recently issued accounting pronouncements to have a
material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

Note 2 — Property, Plant and Equipment

The components of property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 were
as follows: :

Useful Lives
(in thousands) 2014 2013 . (in years)
Utility Property:
Land and land rights $ 2939 $ 2,927
Source of supply 51,489 50,399 3-75
Pumping and purification 30,115 29,775 14 - 64
Transmission and distribution, including 130,983 124,024
services, meters and hydrants 15-91
General and other equipment 11,358 10,142 7-75
Intangible plant 770 768 20
Construction work in progress 2,677 2,524
Total utility property 230331 220,559
Total non-utility property ~ 5 5 5-10
Total property, plant and equipment 230,336 220,564
Less accumulated depreciation . (57,049). . (52,853)
Property, plant and equipment, net  §_ 173,287 § 167,711

The provision for depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets which range from 3 to 91 years, The weighted average composite
depreciation rate was 2.54% and 2.45% in 2014 and 2013, respectively.



Note 3 — Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands}) . 2014 2013
Accounts teceivable - billed $ 2,240 $ 2,345
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (44)
Accounts Receivable - billed, net $ 2,189 $ 2301
Accounts recetvable - unbilled $ 2,399 $ 2,102
Less allowance for doubtful accounts : -
Accounts Receivable - unbilled, net $ $ 2,102

Note 4 — Deferred Charges and Other Assets

————

Deferred charges and other assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the

following:
Recovery
Period
(in thousands) 2014 2013 (in years)
Regulatory assets:
Source development charges $ 708 764 5-25
Miscellaneous studies 1,080 852 3-25
Unrecovered pension and post-retirement
benefits expense 6,483 3,342 W
Total regulatory assets 8,271 4,958
Supplemental executive retirement plan asset ‘ 649 625
Subtotal 89200 5,583
Debt issuance expenses 4,422 3,406 0
Total deferred charges and other assets $§ 13,342 $ 8,989
| mEy— Ao

! We expect to recover these amounts consistent with the anticipated expense recognition of these assets.

Note 5 ~ Post-retirement Benefit Plans

Pension Plan and Other Post-retirement Benefits

We have a non-~contributory, defined benefit pension plan (the “DB Plan™) that covers sub-
stantially all employees. The benefits are based on years of service and participant compensa-
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tion levels. Our funding policy is to contribute annual amounts that meet the requirements for
funding under the U.S. Department of Labor’s Pension Protection Act. Contributions are
intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to service to date but also for those
expected to be earned in the future,

We provide post-retirement medical benefits for eligible retired employees through one of
two plans (collectively referred to as our “OPEB Plans”). For employees who retire on or
after the normal retirement age of 65, benefits are provided through a post-retirement plan
(the “Post-65 Plan”). For eligible non-union -employees who retire prior to their normal
retirement age and who have met certain age and service requirements, benefits are provided
through a post-employment medical plan (the “Post-employment Plan”). Future benefits
under the Post-65 Plan increase annually based on the actual percentage of wage and salary
increases earned from the plan inception date to the normal retirement date. The benefits
under the Post-employment Plan allow for the continuity of medical benefits coverage at
group rates from the employee’s retirement date until the employee becomes eligible for
Medicare. The OPEB Plans are funded from the general assets of our Company.

Upon retirement, if a qualifying employee elects to receive medical benefits under one of our
OPEB Plans, we pay up to a maximum monthly benefit of $322 based on years of service.

The following table sets forth information regarding our DB Plan and our OPEB Plans as of
December 31, 2014 and for the year then ended:

(in thousands) DB Plan OPEB Plans
Projected benefit obligations § 21,512 $ 3,000
Employer contribution 986 .
Benefits paid, excluding expenses (429) (34)
Fair value of plan assets 13,495 962
Accumulated benefit obligation 19,374 -
Funded status (8,017) {2,038)
Net periodic benefit cost §93 130

Amount of the funded status recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet consisted of:

Current liability $ E $ (22)
Non-current liability (8,017) __(2016)
Total $ (8,017 $ (2,039
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The following table sets forth information regarding our DB Plan and our OPEB Plans as of
December 31, 2013 for the year then ended:

(in thousands) DB Plan 'OPEB Plans_
Projected benefit obligations $ 17,501 $ 2,809
Employer contribution 911 22
Benefits paid, excluding expenses (410) (36)
Fair value of plan assets 12,244 944
Accumulated benefit obligation 15,665 =
Funded status (5,257) (1,879)
Net periodic benefit cost 1,372 204

Amount of the funded status recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet consisted of:

Current liability $ - $ (21)
Non-current liability _ (5,257 _(1,858)
Total $_ (5257) $__(1,879).

Ko _——=

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in regulatory assets, for the year
ended December 31, 2014, were as follows:

(in thousands) ~ DBPlan OPEB Plans
Regulatory asset balance, beginning of period $ 3,815 $ (473)
Net actuarial loss incurred during the period 2,986 299

Prior service cost incurred during the period - | (51)
Recognized net actuarial (gain)/loss - (133) | 40
Regulatory asset balance, end of period $ 6,668 $ (185)

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in regulatory assets, for the year
ended December 31, 2013, wete as follows:

(in thousands) DB Plan OPEB Plans
Regulatory asset balance, beginuing of period $ 7874 $ 222
Net actuarial gain incurred during the period (3,641) (699)
Recognized net actuarial (gain)/loss _ (418) 4
Regulatory asset balance, end of period §_ 3815 $ (473)
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Amounts recognized in regulatory assets for the DB and OPEB Plans that have not yet been
recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost of the following as of December 31,
2014:

(in thousands) DB Plan OPEB Plans
Net actuarial {gain)/loss § 6,668 $ 28

Prior service cost -~ (213)
Regulatory asset $ 6,668 3 518_5)

Amounts recognized in regulatory assets for the DB and OPEB Plans that have not yet been
recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost of the following as of December 31,
2013:

(in thousands) DB Plan ~ OPEB Plans
Net actuarial (gain)/loss $ 3815 $ (311)
Prior service cost . » (162)
Regulatory asset $ 3,815 $_ . (473)

The key assumptions used to value benefit obligations and calculate net periodic benefit cost
for our DB and OPEB Plans include the following:

2014 2013
Discount rate for net periodic benefit cost, beginning of year 4.84% 4.00%
Discount rate for benefit obligations, end of year (&) 3.85% 4.84%
Expected return on plan assets for the period (net of investment expenses)  7.50% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase, beginning of year 2.75% 2.75%
Healthcare cost trend rate (applicable only to OPEB Plans) 9.00% 9.50%

(a) An increase or decrease in the discount rate of 0.5% would resuli in a change in the funded status as of December 31, 2014, for
the DB Plan and the OPEB Plans of approximately $1.59 mlilion and $242 thousand, respectively.

The estimated net actuarial loss for our DB Plan that will be amortized in 2015 from the
regulatory assets into net periodic benefit costs is $332,000. The estimated net actuarial gain
and prior service cost for our OPEB Plans that will be amortized in 2015 from the regulatory
assets into net periodic benefit costs are $(2,000), and $(87,000), respectively.

In establishing its investment policy, our Company has considered the fact that the DB Plan
is a major retirement vehicle for its employees and the basic goal underlying the establish-
ment of the policy is to provide that the assets of the Plan are invested in accordance with the
asset allocation range targets to achieve our expected return on Plan assets. Our Company’s
investment strategy applies fo its OPEB Plans as well as the DB Plan. Our expected long-
term rate of return on DB Plan and OPEB Plan assets is based on the Plans’ expected asset
allocation, expected returns on various classes of Plan assets as well as historical returns,
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The assets of our Post-65 Plan are held in two separate Voluntary Employee Beneficiary
Association (“VEBA”) trusts. We maintain our VEBA plan assets in directed trust accounts
at a commercial bank.

The investment strategy for our DB Plan and our OPEB Plans utilizes several different asset
classes with varying risk/retwrn characteristics. The following table indicates the asset
allocation percentages of the fair value of the DB Plan and OPEB Plans’ assets for each
major type of plan asset as of December 31, 2014, as well as the targeted allocation range:

DB Plan ‘ OPEB Plans
Asset Asset
Allocation Allocation
Range _ Rauge
Equities 61% 30% - 100% 71% 30% - 100%
Fixed income 39% 20% - 70% 28% 0% - 50%
Cash and cash equivalents 0% 0% - 15% 1%, 0% - 15%
Total 100% 100%

The following table indicates the asset allocation percentages of the fair value of the DB Plan
and OPEB Plans’ assets for each major type of plan asset as of December 31, 2013, as well
as the targeted allocation range:

DB Plan | . OPEB Plans
Asset Asset
Allocation Allocation
___Range __ Range
Equities 64% 30% - 100% 70% 30% - 100%
Fixed income 36% 20% - 70% 28% 0% - 50%
Cash and cash equivalents 0% 0% - 15% 2% 0% - 15%
Total 100% 100%

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments.
However, there are inherent weaknesses in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substan-
tially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates herein are not necessarily indicative of
the amounts that we could have realized in a sales transaction for these instruments. The
estimated fair value amounts have been measured as of year-end and have not been reevaluated
or updated for purposes of these financial statements subsequent to those respective dates.

Investments in mutual funds are stated at fair value by reference to quoted market prices.

Money market funds are valued utilizing the Net Asset Value per unit based on the fair value
of the underlying assets as determined by the directed trustee.
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The DB Plan also holds assets under an immediate participation guarantee group annuity
contract with a life insurance company. The assets under the contract are invested in pooled
separate accounts and in a general investment account. The pooled separate accounts are
valued based on net asset value per unit of participation in the fund and have no unfunded
commitments or significant redemption restrictions at year-end. The value of these units is
determined by the trustee based on the current market values of the underlying assets of the
pooled separate accounts. Therefore, the value of the pooled separate accounts is deemed to
be at estimated fair value.

The general investment account is not actively traded and significant other observable inputs are
not available. The fair value of the general investtment account is calculated by discounting the
related cash flows based on current yields of similar instruments with comparable durations.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Plans' management
believes the valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of
certain investments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

We use a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs to valuation methods used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The fair value of DB Plan and OPEB Plan assets by levels within the fair value hierarchy
used as of December 31, 2014 was as follows:

(in thousands) ~ Totals ~ Level 1 Level 2 _ Level 3
DB Plan:
Equities:
Pooled separate accounts $ 8204 § - $ 8204 § -
Fixed Income:
General investment account 2,625 - - 2,625
Pooled separate accounts 2666 . 2,666 .
Total Pension Plan $_13495 §__ -  §_ 10870 5 2,625
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(in thousands) ~ Totals Level 1. Level_Z _ Level 3

OPEB Plans:
Mutual funds:
Balanced/hybrid funds $ 173§ 173§ - $ -
U.S. equity securities funds 447 447 - -
International equity funds 66 66 - -
Fixed income funds 269 269 - -
Cash and cash equivalents:
Money market funds 7 - — 7 .
Total Post-retirement Plans $__ 92 $_95 §__ 7 S_ - .
Totals $ MA57 § 955 § 10877 $ 2,625
ImTTTmmmm—— ] ——— ] ]

The fair value of DB Plan and OPEB Plan assets by levels within the fair value hierarchy
used as of December 31, 2013 was as follows:

(in thousands) Totals Level 1 Level2 = Level3d
DB Plan:
Equities:
Pooled separate accounts $ 7895 $ =« $ 785 § -
Fixed Income:
General investment account 2,940 - - 2,540
Pooled separate accounts 1,409 | - - 1,409 -
Total Pension Plan $ 1224 0§ - $_ 9304 B_2940
OPEB Plans;
Mutual finds:
Balanced/hybrid funds $ 168 § 168 § ~ $§ -
U.S. equity securities funds 416 416 - -
International equity funds 76 76 - -
Fixed income funds 261 261 ~ -
Cash and cash equivalents:
Money market funds 23 - 23 i
Total Post-retirement Plans $ 044 $ 921 $ 23 8§ ' o
Totals $ 13,188 $ 921 § 9327 § 2940

Level 1: Based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
Level 2: Based on significant observable inputs.
Level 3: Based on significant unobservable inputs.
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The following table presents a period-end reconciliation of DB Plan assets measured and
recorded at fair value on a recurring basis, using significant unobservable {nputs (Level 3):

(in thousands) 2014 2013
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,940 $ 1,704
Plan transfers (494) 864
Contributions 537 729
Benefits paid (438) (410)
Return on plan assets (net of investment expenses) .80 3
Balance, end of year $ 2,625 § 2,940

In order to satisfy the minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, applicable to defined benefit pension plans, we anticipate that we will

contribute approximately $1.2 million to the DB Plan in 2015,

The following maximum benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appro-

priate, are expected to be paid in the years indicated:

(in thousands) ~ DBPlan
2015 $ 58
2016 686
2017 743
2018 829
2019 962
2020 -2024 5,965
Total $ 9771

OPEB Plans.

$ 64
70

75

91

116

645

———————_

$ 1,061

Because we are subject to regulation in the state in which we operate, we are required to
maintain our accounts in accordance with the regulatory authority’s rules and regulations. In
those instances, we follow the guidance of ASC 980 (“Regulated Operations™). Based on
prior regulatory practice, we recorded underfunded DB Plan and OPEB Plan obligations as a
regulatory asset and we expect to recover those costs in rates charged to customers.

Defined Contribution Plan

In addition to the defined benefit plan, we have a defined contribution plan covering
substantially all employees. Under this plan, our Company matches 100% of the first 3% of
each participating employee’s salary contributed to the plan. The matching employer’s con-
tributions, recorded as operating expenses, were approximately $207,000 and $197,000 for

the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Note 6 - Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

We lease our corporate office space as well as certain office equipment under operating lease
agreements. Total rent expense was approximately $315,000 and $305,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Our remaining non-cancelable lease commitments for our corporate office space and leased
equipment as of December 31, 2014 were as follows:

(in thousands) Amount
2015 $ 277
2016 271
2017 159
2018 2
Total $ 709

Note 7 — Financial Measurement and Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments,
However, there are inherent weaknesses in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substan-
tially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates herein are not necessarily indicative of
the amounts that we could have realized in a sales transaction for these instruments. The
estimated fair value amounts have been measured as of the period end and have not been
reevaluated or updated for purposes of these financial statements subsequent to those
respective dates.

We use a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs to valuation methods used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1: Based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2: Based on significant observable inputs.

Level 3: Based on significant unobservable inputs.

An asset or liability’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. '
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For assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value measure-
ment by levels within the fair value hierarchy used as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 were

as follows:

December 31,2014 .
(in thousands) Total Levell  Level2 ~ Leveld
Interest rate swap $ (583) $ - $ (583) $ -
December 31,2013
(in thousands) Total Levell  Level2 Level 3
Interest rate swap 5 (386 $ - 5 (386) § .~

The carrying value of certain financial instruments included in the accompanying Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets, along with the related fair value, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013

was as follows:

. 2014 . 2013
Carrying Fair = Carrying ~ Fair
(in thousands) Value Value, . Value . Value
Liabilities:
Long-term debt $ (224307) $ (270,191) § (177,396) $ (197,797)
Interest rate swap liability (583) (583) (386) (386)

The fair value of long-term debt has been determined by discounting the future cash flows
using current market interest rates for similar financial instruments of the same duration. The
fair value for long-term debt shown above does not purport to represent the amounts at which
those debt obligations would be settled, The fair market value of our interest rate swap
represents the estimated cost to terminate this agreement as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
based upon the then-current interest rates and the related credit risk.

The carrying values of our Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable and Accounts
Payable approximate their fair values because of their short maturity dates. The carrying
value of our CIAC approximates its fair value because it is expected that this is the amount
that will be recovered in future rates.
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Note 8 —Income Taxes

The components of the federal and state income tax provision (benefit) as of December 31,
2014 and 2013 were as follows:

(in thousands) 2014 2013
Federal 5 33 §  (623)
State ' 241 (192)
Amortization of investment tax credits . (3% (33)
Total $ 81 $  (848)
Current $ B3 $ -
Deferrsd 584 (848)
Total $ 551 § (848

The following is a reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate and the
effective income tax rate for 2014 and 2013:

L2014 - 2013
Statutory federal rate 34.0% 34.0%
State tax rate, net-of federal benefits 5.6% 5.6%
Permanent differences -87.3% 5.6%
Amortization of investment tax credits 2% 1.8%
Effective tax rate -45,0% 47.0%

e B ]

The temporary items that give rise to the net deferred tax liability as of December 31, 2014
and 2013 were as follows:

(in thousands) 2014 ' 2013
Liabilities: -
Property-related, net $ 25626. $ 24,735
Pension deferred asset 2641 1,511
Other 1,061 705
Total liabilities 29,328 26,951
Assets:
Pension accrued liability 3,176 2,082
Net operating loss carryforward 2,399 2,053
Alternative minimum tax credit 476 384
NH Business Enterprise Tax credits 369 250
Other 2,574 2,375
Total assets 8,994 7,144
Net non-current deferred income tax liability § 20,334 $ 19,807
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We had a federal net operating loss in 2014 and 2013 in the amounts of approximately $1.8
million and $319,000, respectively. The federal tax benefit of the cumulative net operating
loss is approximately $2.1 miilion which begins to expire in 2032, and is included in deferred
income taxes in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2014.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we estimated approximately $476,000 and $384,000 of
cumulative federal alternative minimum tax credits that may be carried forward indefinitely
as a credit against our regular tax liability.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had New Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax
(“NHBET”) credits of approximately $369,000 and $250,000, respectively. NHBET credits
begin to expire in 2017. We anticipate that we will fully utilize these NHBET credits before
they expire; therefore we have not recorded a valuation allowance related to these credits.

Investment tax credits resulting from utility plant additions are deferred and amortized. The
unamortized investment tax credits are being amortized through the year 2033,

We had a regulatory liability related to income taxes of approximately $803,000 and
$825,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This represents the estimated
future reduction in revenues associated with deferred taxes which were collected at rates
higher than the currently epacted rates and the amortization of deferred investment tax

credits,

We made a review of our portfolio of uncertain tax positions. In this regard, an uncertain tax
position represents our expected treatment of a tax position taken in a filed tax return, or
planned to be taken in a future tax return, that has not been reflected in measuring income tax
expense for financial reporting purposes. As a result of this review, we determined that we
had no material uncertain tax positions, We will use tax planning strategies, if required, and
when possible, to avoid the expiration of any future net operating loss and/or tax credits.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, the State of New Hampshire and
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our 2010 through 2013 tax years remain subject to
examination by the Internal Revenue Service. Our tax year 2009 was audited by the Internal
Revenue Service and the year was closed with no changes. Our 2008 through 2013 tax years
remain subject to examination by one or more state jurisdictions.

Our practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in “Other,
Net” in the Consolidated Statements of Income. We incurred no interest or penalties during
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
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Note 9 - Debt

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:

(in thousands) . 2014 .. 2013
Unsecured note payable to City of Nashua, 5.75%,
due 12/25/2041 $ 114,651 § 116,336
Unsecured senior note payable due to an insurance company
7.40%, due March 1, 2021 4,800 5,200
Unsecured Business Finance Authority:
Revenue Bonds (Series 2014A), interest rates from 3.00% to 4.125%,
due Janvary 1, 2016 through January 1, 2045 41,885 8
Revenue Bonds (Series 2014B), 4.50%, due January 1, 2045 5,300 -
Revenue Bond (2005 Series BC4), 5.375%, due October 1, 2035 12,125 12,125
Revenue Bond (2005 Series BC-3), 5.00%, due April 1,2018 7,475 7,475
Revenue Bond (2005 Series A), 4.70%, due October 1, 2035 12,100 12,125
Revenue Bond (Series 2005A), 4.70%, due January 1, 2035 1,765 1,785
Revenue Bond (Series 2005B), 4.60%, due January 1, 2030 2,310 2,320
Revenue Bond (Series 2005C), 4.50%, due January 1, 2025 1,175 1,175
Revenue Bond, 1997, 6.30%, due May 1, 2022 2,600 2,800
Unsecured notes payable to bank, floating-rate, due March 1, 2030 3,708 3,886
Unsecured notes payable to bank, 3.62%, due June 20, 2023 1,633 1,694
Unsecured notes payable to bank, 4.25%, due June 20, 2033 880 910
Unsecured New Hampshire State Revolving Fund (“SRF”) notes (1) 12,152 9,829
Total long-term debt 224,559 177,660
Less current portion (26,275) (2,965)
Less original issue discount (252) (264)
Total Jong-term debt, net of current portion $ 198,032 $ 174,431

(1) SRF notes are due through 2035 at interest rates ranging from 1% to 4.488%, These notes are payable in 120 to 240
consecutive monthly instaliments of principal and interest. The 1% rate applics to construction projects still n process
until the earlier of (i) the date of substantial completion of the improvements, or (ii) various dates specified in the note
(such earlier date being the interest rate change dats). Commencing on the interest rate change date, the interest rate
changes to the lower of (i) the rate as stated in the note or (ii) 80% of the established 11 General Obligations Bond

Index published during the specified time period before the interest rate change date.

The aggregate principal payment requirements subsequent to December 31, 2014 are as

follows:

(in thousands) Amount

2015 $ 26,275
2016 4,116
2017 4,313
2018 4,504
2019 4,714
2020 and thereafter 180,637
Total $§ 224,559
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Several of Pennichuck Water’s loan agreements contain a covenant that prevents Pennichuck
Water from declaring dividends if Pennichuck Water does not maintain a minimumn net
worth of $4.5 million. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, Pennichuck Water’s net worth
was $127.8 and $125.6 million, respectively. Pennichuck Water Works also has debt
issuance covenants whereby they must also maintain a maximum total debt to capital ratio of
65%, a maximum funded debt to net property, plant and equipment ratio of 60%, and an .
interest coverage ratio of at least 1.5; at December 31, 2014 and 2013 the total debt to capital
ratio was 37% and 29%, respectively, the funded debt to net property, plant and equipment
ratio was 55% and 38%, respectively, and the interest coverage ratio was 2.81 and 2.62,
respectively.

On December 15, 2014, Pennichuck Water issued tax-exempt Series 2014A (AMT) bonds
and taxable Series 2014B bonds, in the amounts of $41,885,000 and $5,300,000,
respectively. The Series 2014A bonds, which were issued at a premium of approximately
$1.9 million, include money raised to finance capital projects for the years 2014 through
2016 in the amount of $19.5 million, the refinance and refunding of the Series 2005C, Series
BC-3, Series BC-4 and 1997 bonds (collectively the “refinanced bonds”) included in the
table above in the amount of $23.375 million, and the cost of issuance associated with this
new series of debt obligations. The refinanced bonds are offset in total by the amount of cash
held in the Restricted Cash - Bond Refund Escrow account, as fully described in Note 1 to
these financial statements. The associated bond premium for the Series 2014A bonds is being
amortized over the lives of the underlying bond-obligations. The Series 2014 bonds, which
were issued at par, includes $5.1 million to reimburse Pennichuck Water for capital projects
completed in calendar year 2013 and January 2014, and originally funded from working
capital or line of credit borrowings from the Company’s bank, as well as the associated cost
of issuance for this series of bonds. The cost of issuance associated with both the Series
2014A and Series 2014B bonds is being amortized over the 30-year life of the debt
obligations.

These bonds were issued under a new bond indenture and loan and trust agreement, which
contains certain covenant obligations upon Pennichuck Water, which are as follows:

Debt to ngi%al Covenant - Pennichuck Water cannot create, issue, incur, assume or
guarantee any short-term debt if (1) the sum of the shori-term debt plus its funded
debt (“Debt”) shall exceed 85% of the sum of its short-term debt, funded debt and
capital stock plus surplus accounts (“Capital”), unless the short-term debt issued in
excess of the 85% is subordinated to the Series 2014 bonds. Thereby, the ratio of
Debt to Capital must be equal to or less than 1.0. As of December 31, 2014,
Pennichuck Water Works has a Debt to Capital Coverage ratio of 0.4.

All Bonds Test - Additionally, Pennichuck Water cannot create, issue, incur, assume
or guarante¢ any new funded debt, if the total outstanding funded debt (“Total Funded
Debt”) will exceed the sum of MARA (as defined in Note 11 of these audited
financial statements) and 85% of its Net Capital Properties (“MARA and Capital
Properties™), and unless net revenues or EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization) shall equal or exceed for at least 12 consecutive
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months out of the 15 months preceding the issuance of the new funded debt by
1.1 times the maximum amount for which Pennichuck Water will be obligated to pay
in any future year (“Max Amount Due”), as a result of the new funded debt being
incurred. Thereby, the ratio of Total Funded Debt to MARA ‘and Capital Properties
must be equal to or less than 1.0; as of December 31, 2014, this coverage ratio was
0.5. Also the ratio of EBITDA to the Max Amount Due must be equal to or greater
than 1.1; as of December 31, 2014, this ratio was 4.0.

Rate Covenant Test - If during any fiscal year, the EBITDA of Pennichuck Water
shall not equal at least 1.1 times all amounts paid or required to be paid during that
year (“Amounts Paid”), then the Company shall undertake reasonable efforts to
initiate a rate-making proceeding with the NH Public Utilities Commission, to rectify
this coverage requirement in the succeeding fiscal years. Thereby, the ratio of EBITA
to Amounts Paid must be equal to or greater than 1.1; as of December 31, 2014, the
Rate Covenant coverage ratio was 3.52.

Pennichuck East’s loan agreement for its unsecured notes payable to a bank of $3.7 million
and $3.9 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, contains a minimum debt
service coverage ratio requirement of 1.25. At December 31, 2014 and 2013 this ratio was
1.83 and 1.42, respectively. Also, Pennichuck East is required to maintain a maximum ratio

of total debt to total capitalization of 65%; at December 31, 2014 and 2013 this ratio was

44% and 41%, respectively.

The Company’s revolving credit loan facility with TD Bank contains a covenant that requires
the Company to maintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of at least 1.0; at
December 31, 2014 and 2013 the fixed charge coverage ratio was 1.12 and 1.08,
respectively. The Company is also required to maintain an equity capitalization ratio of not
less than 35%; at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the equity capitalization ratio was 41% and
50%, respectively. Under this agreement the Company is also precluded from declaring or
paying dividends, or making any other payment or distribution of its equity without the
bank’s prior written consent, except for: (1) its-obligations under Rate Order No. 25,292 as it
pertains to the Company’s specific obligations under the City Bond Fixed Revenue
Requirement (“CBFRR”) which provides for payments of approximately $707,000 per
month of the note payable to the City of Nashua (the “City”), and quarterly dividends to the
City for the remainder of this annual obligation, as defined by the order; and (2) a specific
allowance, under Rate Order No. 25,292, whereby the Company is allowed to make
distributions to the City from current earnings and profits in excess of the CBFRR, to provide
funds to allow the City to reimburse itself for the costs incurred by the City relating to its
efforts in pursuing the eminent domain proceedings from January 2002 through August 2009,
provided however that such amount shall not exceed $500,000 in any fiscal year, or
$5,000,000 in the aggregate, of all such distributions, During the year ended December 31,
2013, a special dividend of $500,000 was approved and paid relating to this. No special
dividend was declared or paid in 2014,
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Our short-term borrowing activity under this revolving credit loan facility for the years ended
December 31,2014 and 2013 was:

(in thousands) 2014 2013

Established line as of December 31, $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Maximum amount outstanding during period 5,446 1,966
Average amount outstanding during period 2,833 137
Amount outstanding as of December 31, - 1,966
Weighted average interest rate during period 0.10% 1.06%
Interest rate as of December 31, 1.981% 2,665%

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had a $3.7 million and $3.9 million, respectively,
interest rate swap which qualifies as a derivative. This financial derivative is designated as a
cash flow hedge. This financial instrument is used to mitigate interest rate risk associated
with our outstanding $3,7 million loan which has a floating interest rate based on the three-
month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1.75% as of December 31, 2014, The
combined effect of the LIBOR-based borrowing formula and the swap produces an “all-in
fixed borrowing cost” equal to 5.95%. The fair value of the financial derivative, as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets under “Deferred
credits and other reserves” as “Other liabilities” was $583,000 and $386,000, respectively,
Changes in the fair value of this derivative were deferred in accumulated other comprehensive

income (loss).

Swap settlements are recorded in the statement of income with the hedged item as interest
expense. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 $152,000 and $156,000 was
reclassified pre-tax from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to interest expense
as a result of swap settlements. We expect to reclassify approximately $143,000, pre-tax,
from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to interest expense as a result of swap
settlements, over the next twelve months,
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Note 10 ~ Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents changes in accumulated other comprehensive income by
compouent for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Interest
Rate
Contract
Beginning balance $ 298
Other comprehensive income
before reclassifications (209)
Amounts reclassified from
accumulated other
comprehensive income 91
Net current period other
comprehensive income o (118)
Ending balance $ 180

The following table presents reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive
income for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Amount Reclassified Affected Line Item in

Details about Accumulated Other from Accumulated Other the Statement Where
Comprehensive Income Components Comprehensive Income Net Income is Prwented

Gain (loss) on cash flow hedges A ‘
Interest rate contracts $ 152 Interest expense

{61) Tax expense

Amounts reclassified from accumulated

other comprehensive income $ 9
Sm—

Net of tax

Note 11 ~ Transaction with the City of Nashua

On January 25, 2012, in full settlement of an ongoing Eminent Domain lawsuit filed by the
City of Nashua (“City”) and with the approval of the New Hampshire Public Utilities
Commission (“NHPUC”), the City acquired all of the outstanding shares of Pennichuck
Corporation (“Pennichuck”) and, thereby, indirect acquisition of its regulated subsidiaries.
The total amount of the acquisition was $150.6 million (*“Acquisition Price”) of which
$138.4 million was for the purchase of the outstanding shares, $5.0 million for the
establishment of a Rate Stabilization Fund, $2.6 million for legal and due diligence costs,
$2.3 million for severance costs, $1.3 million for underwriting fees, and $1.0 million for
bond discount and issue costs. The entire purchase of $150.6 million was funded by General
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Obligation Bonds (“Bonds”) issued by the City of Nashua. Pennichuck is not a party to the
Bonds and has not guaranteed nor is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the Bonds.
Pennichuck remains an independent corporation with an independent Board of Directors with
the City of Nashua as its sole shareholder.

Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (“PWW”), Pennichuck East Utility, Inc, (“PEU”), Pittsfield
Aqueduct Company, Inc, (“PAC™), Pennichuck Water Service Corporation, and The
Southwood Corporation will continue as subsidiaties of Pennichuck Corporation and PWW,
PEU and PAC will continue as regulated companies under the jurisdiction of the New
Hampshire Public Utilities Commission. The terms of the merger and the requisite
accounting and rate-setting mechanisms were agreed to in the NHPUC Order 25,292 (“PUC

Order”) dated November 23, 2011.

Transactions with Related Party — City of Nashua

Pennichuck issued a promissory note to the City of Nashua in the amount of approximately
$120 million to be repaid over a thirty (30) year period with monthly payments of
approximately $707,000, including interest at 5.75%. Pennichuck recorded an additional
amount of approximately $30.6 million as contributed capital. The remaining outstanding
balance of the note payable to the City at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was
approximately $114.7 million and $116.3 million, respectively, as disclosed in Note 9 to
these consolidated financial statements. During 2014 and 2013, dividends of approximately
$277,000 and $777,000, respectively, were declared and paid to the City. The dividends paid
to the City during 2014 comprised approximately $277,000 of regular quarterly dividends
declared and paid; and no special dividend was declared or paid in 2014. The dividends paid
to the City during 2013 comprised approximately $277,000 of regular quarterly dividends
declared and paid, and a special dividend of $500,000 declared and paid in October 2013, as
resolved and authorized by the Board of Directors in their August 23, 2013 meeting.

Additional ongoing transactions occur in the normal course of business, between the
Company and the City, related to municipal water usage, fire protection and sewer billing
support services, and property taxes related to real property owned by the Company within
the City of Nashua. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
approximately $3.3 million and $3.1 million were paid to the Company by the City for
municipal water consumption, fire protection charges, and sewer billing support. services.
Conversely, the Company paid property taxes to the City of Nashua of approximately
$2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, and approximately $2.4 million for the

year ended December 31, 2013,

Rate Stabilization Fund ~ Restricted Cash

As a part of the acquisition, Pennichuck agreed to contribute $5,000,000 of the proceeds
from the settlement transaction to PWW, which was used to establish a Rate Stabilization
Fund (“RSF”), allowing for the maintenance of stable water utility rates and providing a
mechanism to ensure the Company’s continued ability to meet its obligations under the
promissory note to the City, in the event of adverse revenue developments. Restricted cash
consists of amounts set aside in the RSF account, and is adjusted monthly as required in the
PUC Order, as discussed in Note 1 of these financial statements.
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Municipal Acquisition Regulatory Asset (“MARA”)

Pursuant to the PUC Order, Pennichuck established a new Regulatory asset (MARA) which
represents the amount that the Acquisition Price exceeded the net book assets of Pennichuck’s
regulated subsidiaries (PWW, PEU, and PAC) at December 31, 2011. The initial amount of the
MARA was approximately $89 million for the regulated companies, offset by a non-regulated
amount of approximately $4.8 million. The MARA is to be amortized over a thirty (30) year
period in the same manner as the repayment of debt service for the City’s acquisition bonds.
The balance in the MARA at December 31, 2014 was approximately $83.5 million, reduced by
the non-regulated credit of approximately $4.6 million,

Aggregate amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, totaled
approximately $1,835,000 and $2,542,000, respectively. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, the amortization of the MARA was calculated based upon the
amortization of principal for the Company’s unsecured note payable to the City of Nashua
(see Note 9). However, during 2013 the Company realized that the amortization of the
MARA, as authorized by NHPUC Order 25,292, dated November 23, 2011, was supposed to
be calculated based upon the principal repayment schedule of the bonds issued by the City, in
support of their acquisition of the Company in January 2012. As such, the Company made a
one-time adjustment to “true up” the amortization of the MARA during 2013, and as such,
approximately $716,000 of the amortization expense recorded in 2013 relates to amounts that
would have been booked in 2012, had the correct basis been applied initially. The
amortization amount for 2013 would have been approximately $1,826,000 after giving
consideration for this one-time correction.

The following table represents the total estimated amortization of MARA for the five
succeeding years:

Estimated

Amortization
(in thousands) Expense
2015 $ (1,857)
2016 (1,884)
2017 (1,917)
2018 (1,958)
2019 (2,006)

Note 12 — Sale of Conservation Fasement

In July 2013, the Company completed the sale of a conservation easement to the Society for
the Protection of New Hampshire Forests, with respect to a portion of its non-regulated land
holdings in Merrimack, New Hampshire, as approved by the Board of Directors in their
April 26, 2013 meeting. The transaction included gross proceeds for the value of the
easement of approximately $991,000, netted by approximately $100,000 of legal, surveying,

34



[,

and professional fees. The net proceeds of approximately $891,000 from this transaction are
included in “Other, Net” on the Consolidated Statements of Income herein,

Note 13 —- Segment Reporting

The Company is comprised of Pennichuck Corporation and its five wholly-owned
subsidiaries, as described in Note 1 to these audited financial statements, For the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and as of those dates, the following financial results were
generated by the segments of the Company:

2014 2013
Operating Revenues:
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. $ 28,193 $ 27,755
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. 6,992 6,354
Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. » 766 690
Subtotal Regulated Segment 35951 34,799 .
Water Mapagement Services 2,854 2,885
Other w10
Total Operating Revenues ~ § 38,815 $ 37,694
Depretistion and Amortization Expense;
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. $ 5210 § 5,687
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. 928 994
Pittsficld Aqueduct Company, Inc. 117 130
Subtotal Regulated Segment 6,255 6,811
Water Management Services - .
Other (107) (150}
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense $ 6,148  § 6,661
Operating Income:
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. $§ 7410 $ 6,837
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. 1,081 438
Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc, 178 16
Subtotal Regulated Segment . 8,669 7,291
Water Management Services ' 189 55
Other _ 47 92

Total Operating Income ~ § 8,905 § 7438
semcismomrs . pmememesieee
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Interest Expense:
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc.
Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc.
Subtotal Regulated Segment
Water Management Services
Other

Total Interest Expense

ome Taxes Provision (Benefit):
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.

Pennichuck East Utility, Inc.

Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc.
Subtotal Regulated Segment

Water Management Services

Other

Total Income Taxes Provision (Benefit)

Net Income (Loss):
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc.
Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc.
Subtotal Regulated Segment
Water Management Services
Other

Total Net Income (Loss)

Total Assets:
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc.
Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc.
Subtotal Regulated Segment
Water Management Services

Other
Total Net Assets
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2014 2013
$ 2814 § 2775
502 503

57 56
3373 3334
6,783 6,794
$ 10,156  $ 10,128
$ 2474 % 2513
309 87
60 1
2,843 2,601
79 21
(2,371) (3.470)
$ 551 $  (848)
$ 2,139 § 1,535
277 (138)
60 (42)
2,476 1,355
119 33
(4,370) (2,344)

$288349  §$231,121
42,521 41371
4,418 4,526
335,088 277,004
286 201
_(11,767) (4,025)

$ 323,807
1

$273,300
g



e el

[

2014 2013

Total Liabilities:
Pemnichuck Water Works, Inc. $160,535 $105,485
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. 28,391 26,594
Pitsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. 2,107 2,130
Subtotal Regulated Segment 191,033 134,209
Water Management Services ' 56 58
Other 108,128 112,173

TotalLinbilites _$299,217 _$246,440

Total Long-Term Debt finchyding current portion):

Pemichuck Water Works, Inc. $ 97,895  $ 50,312
Pemichuck East Utility, Inc. 11,761 10,748
Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. . . -
Subtotal Regulated Segment 109,656 61,060
Water Management Services : - e
Other 114,651 116,336

Total Long-TermDebt ~ $224307  $177,396

Note 14 — Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated the events and transactions that have occurred through
March 18, 2015, the date that these financial statements were available for issuance.

On March 4,.2015, Pennichuck East completed a financing transaction with CoBank in the
amount of $625,000, for a term of 25 years at an interest rate of 4.9%. This debt is repayable
in monthly installments of $3,647, for principal and interest. This financing was completed as
a reimbursement for working capital funds used duting 2014 for the completion or initiation

of capital projects during that year.

Additionally, on March 16, 2015, Pennichuck East completed a financing transaction with
the NHDES, under their State Revolving Fund program, in the amount of $510,000. This
financing was completed for a specified capital project to be completed in 2015. This
obligation will accrue interest at 1% during the construction phase of the project, and then be
subject to repayment over a 20-year term, with a rate of interest of 2.72%, with monthly
principal and interest payments.

Also, as referenced in Notes 1 and 9 of these audited financial statements, as of January 20,
2015, the entire balance in “Restricted Cash — Bond Refund Escrow” account, which included
$23,350,000 of principal due of the “refinanced bonds”, as well as approximately $375,000 of
accrued interest due on these bonds, was paid out to the holders of those debt instruments.

No other items requiring an adjustment to the financial statement or additional disclosure
were noted,
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LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT
Among

BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

And
PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC.
And
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A,, as Trustee

Dated as of , 1,2015

$[SERIES A PAR] Business Finance Authority
of the State of New Hampshire
Water Facility Revenue Bonds
(Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) Series 2015A (Non-AMT)
dated as of their date of delivery

$[SERIES B PAR] Business Finance Authority
of the State of New Hampshire
Water Facility Revenue Bonds
(Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) Series 2015B (AMT)
dated as of their date of delivery

$[SERIES C PAR] Business Finance Authority
of the State of New Hampshire
Water Facility Revenue Bonds
(Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) Series 2015C (AMT) (Direct Purchase)
dated as of their date of delivery

[Note: for drafting purposes, provisions relating to taxable bonds are included in the event that a
taxable series is included; in addition, revisions to the document may be necessary to conform to
the Direct Purchase Bondowner's requirements]
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ARTICLE I:. INTRODUCTION AND DEFINITIONS

Section 101. Description of the Agreement and the Parties. This Loan and Trust
Agreement dated as of , 1, 2015 is among the Business Finance Authority of the State
of New Hampshire (the “Authority”), a body corporate and politic created under New Hampshire
RSA 162-A:3; Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (the “Borrower”), a public utility corporation
organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A. (with any successor Trustee hereunder, the “Trustee™), a national banking
association, as Trustee and Paying Agent. This Agreement is a financing document combined
with a security document as one instrument in accordance with the Act and provides for the
following transactions:

(a) the Authority’s issue of the Bonds;

(b)  the Authority’s loan of the proceeds of the Bonds to the Borrower for the
purpose of financing and refinancing the Project;

(c) the Borrower’s repayment of the loan of Bond proceeds from the
Authority through payment to the Trustee of all amounts necessary to pay the Bonds issued by
the Authority; and

(d)  the Authority’s assignment to the Trustee, in trust for the benefit and
security of the Bondowners, of the Authority’s rights under this Agreement and the revenues to
be received from the Borrower, except as otherwise provided herein.

In consideration of the mutual agreements contained in this Agreement and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Borrower, the
Authority and the Trustee agree as set forth herein for their own benefit and for the benefit of the
Bondowners.

Section 102. Definitions. In addition to terms defined elsewhere herein, the following
terms have the following meanings in this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) “2005 Series A Bonds” means the $12,125,000 Business Finance
Authority of the State of New Hampshire Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water
Works, Inc. Project) 2005 Series A, dated October 1, 2005, outstanding in the principal amount
of § , and any bond or bonds duly issued in exchange or replacement therefor.

(b)  “Act” means New Hampshire RSA 162-I, as amended.

(©) “Authority’s Service Charge” means payments to the Authority for its own
use consisting of $ with respect to the Series A Bonds, $ with respect to the Series
B Bonds and § with respect to the Series C Bonds, payable on the date of original

issuance of the Bonds.
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(d) “Bond Counsel” means a firm of nationally recognized attorneys-at-law
experienced in legal work relating to the financing of facilities for non-exempt persons through
the issuance of tax-exempt revenue bonds.

(e) “Bond Fund” means the fund of that name established under Section 302

hereof.

® “Bonds” means, collectively, the Series A Bonds, the Series B Bonds and
the Series C Bonds.

(2) “Bondowners” means the registered owners of the Bonds from time to

time as shown in the bond register kept by the Trustee in the case of the Series A Bonds and
Series B Bonds, and means the Series C Bondowner with respect to the Series C Bonds.

(h) “Borrower Representative” means the Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer
& Controller or an alternate or successor appointed by the Borrower with notice to the Trustee.

@A) “Business Day” means a day on which the banks in the city in which the
principal office of the Trustee is located are not required or authorized to remain closed and on
which the New York Stock Exchange is not closed.

) “Capital Properties” means all tangible property of the Borrower used or
useful in the Borrower’s business as a water company, including construction work in progress,
and which are properly chargeable to the capital account of the Borrower in conformity with any
applicable rules and regulations of government authorities having jurisdiction, as shown on the
books of the Borrower.

(k) “Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement between the Borrower and the Trustee, as dissemination agent, dated as of
, 1, 2015, as originally executed in connection with the issuance of the Series A
Bonds and the Series B Bonds and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with
the terms thereof.

D “Effective Date” means , 1,2015.
(m)  “Escrow Letter Agreement” means the Escrow Letter Agreement dated as
of , 1, 2015 among the Authority, the Borrower and The Bank of New York Mellon

Trust Company, N.A., as Refunded Bond Trustee and related to the refunding of the Refunded
Bonds.

(n) “Event of Default” has the meaning stated in Section 601, and “default”
means any Event of Default hereunder without regard to any lapse of time or notice.

(0) “Federal Tax Statement” means the Tax Certificate and Agreement
executed in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. [Note: there may be a separate Tax
Certificate for Bonds issued as a separate series for federal tax law purposes.]

(p) “Fiscal Year” means the calendar year.
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(@ “Funded Debt” means debt maturing, or which the Borrower has a right to
extend or renew so that it will mature, more than twelve months after it first became debt of the
Borrower, including the Bonds as well as the present value (discounted future value) of all future
rentals and lease payments under lease agreements with final terms of over three years’ duration
to the extent that such discounted future value exceeds 25% of the sum of preferred stock capital,
common stock capital and all surplus accounts. “Funded Debt” shall not include accounts
payable, customers’ deposits and advances, accrued wages and similar obligations incurred in the
ordinary course of business.

(r) “Government or Equivalent Obligations” means (i) obligations issued or
guaranteed by the United States, including any agencies thereof; (ii) certificates evidencing
ownership of the right to the payment of the principal of and interest on obligations described in
clause (i), provided that such obligations are held in the custody of a bank or trust company
satisfactory to the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be, in a special account separate
from the general assets of such custodian; and (iii) shares of any open-end or closed-end
management type investment company or trust registered under 15 U.S.C. §80(a)-1 et seq.,
provided that the portfolio of such investment company or trust is limited to obligations
described in clause (i) and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such obligations, and
provided further that such investment company or trust shall take custody of such collateral
either directly or through a custodian satisfactory to the Trustee or the Authority.

(a) “IRC” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time
to time.

(b) “MARA” means the Municipal Asset Regulatory Asset, as shown on the
books of the Borrower.

(c) “Net Amount of Capital Properties” means the amount of Capital
Properties minus the amount of depreciation or retirement reserve applicable thereto as shown by
the books of the Borrower. It shall be calculated as of the end of the last preceding quarter and
shall reflect amounts as recorded or required to be recorded on the books of the Borrower in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations of governmental authorities having jurisdiction,
or in the absence thereof, generally accepted accounting principles.

(d) “Net Revenues” means the excess of (i) all operating and non-operating
revenues of the Borrower over (ii) all operating expenses of the Borrower, including taxes
(except any allowance for income, excess profits and other taxes measured by or dependent on
net taxable income for the period for which the earnings are being computed) but not including
interest expenses or any allowances for depreciation or amortization, all as determined in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations of governmental authorities having jurisdiction,
or, in the absence thereof, generally accepted accounting principles.

(e) “NHPUC” means the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission.

® “Outstanding”, when used to modify Bonds, refers to Bonds issued under
this Agreement, excluding: (i) Bonds that have been exchanged or replaced, or delivered to the
Trustee for credit against a principal payment; (ii) Bonds that have been paid in full; (iii) Bonds
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that have become due and for the payment of which moneys have been duly provided; and (iv)
that for which there have been irrevocably set aside sufficient funds, or obligations issued or
guaranteed by the United States bearing interest at such rates and with such maturities as will
provide sufficient funds, to pay the principal of and interest on such Bonds; provided, however,
that if any such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to maturity, the Borrower shall have taken all
action necessary to redeem such Bonds and notice of such redemption shall have been duly
mailed in accordance with this Agreement or irrevocable instructions so to mail shall have been
given to the Trustee.

(2) “Permitted Investments” means (A) Government or Equivalent
Obligations; (B) “tax exempt bonds” as defined in IRC §150(a)(6), rated at least “AA” or “Aa2”
by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group (“S&P”) and Moody’s Investors Services, Inc.
(“Moody’s”), respectively, or the equivalent by any other nationally recognized rating agency, at
the time of acquisition thereof, or shares of a so-called money market or mutual fund that do not
constitute “investment property” within the meaning of IRC Section 148(b)(2), provided either
that the fund has all of its assets invested in such “tax exempt bonds” of such rating quality or, if
such obligations are not so rated, that the fund has comparable creditworthiness through
insurance or otherwise and which fund is rated “Aam” or “AAm-G” if rated by S&P, at the time
of acquisition thereof; (C) Obligations of any state or political subdivision thereof rated at least
“AA-" and “Aa3” by S&P and Moody’s, respectively, at the time of acquisition thereof; (D)
negotiable certificates of deposit maturing not more than two years after the date of purchase,
and interest-bearing deposit accounts of a national association or state-chartered bank or a state
or federal savings and loan association or by a state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, which (1)
has assets of not less than $1,000,000,000, provided that the senior debt obligations of the
issuing Borrower are rated in the highest category by Moody’s or S&P at the time of acquisition
thereof, or (ii) funds are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or (iii) funds
are fully collateralized by Government or Equivalent Obligations; (E) bills of exchange or time
drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank (otherwise known as bankers acceptances),
provided that such bankers acceptances may not exceed 180 days maturity, and provided further
that the accepting bank has the highest short-term letter and numerical rating as provided by
Moody’s or S&P at the time of acquisition thereof; (F) Repurchase Agreements; (G) money
market funds which have a rating of “AAAmM-G,” “AAAm” or “AAm” by S&P at the time of
acquisition thereof, provided that the fund is registered under the Federal Investment Company
Act of 1940 and whose shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933; (H)
investment agreements with providers rated not lower than the second highest category (without
regard to gradations within such category), at the time of acquisition thereof, by at least one
nationally recognized rating agency, provided that if the investment agreement is guaranteed by a
third party, then such rating requirement shall apply to the guarantor only, and provided further
that if the provider is downgraded by one or more nationally recognized rating agency to below
the second highest category, the agreement shall (i) be fully collateralized at 104% by
Government or Equivalent Obligations or 105% by securities outlined in clause (J) of this
definition of permitted investments, or (ii) terminate; (I) collateralized investment agreements
with providers rated not lower than the third highest category (without regard to gradations
within such category), at the time of acquisition thereof, by at least one nationally recognized
rating agency, provided that if the investment agreement is guaranteed by a third party, then such
rating requirement shall apply to the guarantor only, and provided further that in all cases such
rating requirements shall apply only at the time the investment agreement is executed; (J)
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forward purchase and sale agreements with providers rated not lower than the third highest
category (without regard to gradations within such category), at the time of acquisition thereof,
by at least one nationally recognized rating agency, provided that if the investment agreement is
guaranteed by a third party, then such rating requirement shall apply to the guarantor only, and
provided further that in all cases such rating requirements shall apply only at the time the
investment agreement is executed; (K) commercial paper rated at least “A1” by S&P and/or “P-
1” by Moody’s at the time of acquisition thereof and maturing within two hundred seventy (270)
days after the acquisition thereof. Any investment may be purchased from or through the
Trustee or any Bondowner or any affiliate of either of them.

(h) “Project” means (1) refinancing (A) Water Facility Revenue Bonds
(Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project), Series 2005A and Series 2005B which financed and
refinanced (i) upgrades to water facilities in the Ledge Street area of Nashua, (ii) reconstruction
of Supply Pond Dam in Nashua, (iii) construction of a 20 million gallon per day raw water
supplemental pumping facility on an extension of Mast Road in Merrimack on the banks of the
Merrimack River and adjacent to a former Boston & Maine railroad bed and acquisition and
installation of equipment and furnishings therefor, (iv) laying of approximately 8,670 linear feet
of 30-inch ductile iron transmission main at Mast Road, Daniel Webster Highway, Henry Clay
Drive, Manchester Street and Al Paul Lane in Merrimack, (v) construction of a water treatment
plant at 200 Concord Street in Nashua and a 1.7 million gallon reservoir tank and related
equipment off of Shakespeare Road in Nashua, and (vi) replacement of Bowers Pond Dam and
related site work at Bowers Pond in Nashua and Merrimack, all of which are used by the
Borrower for the purpose of increasing water storage capacity for fire protection and maintaining
constant water pressure in Merrimack and Nashua; and (B) Water Facility Revenue Bonds
(Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) 2005 Series A, which financed (i) upgrades to the
Nashua Water Treatment Plant at 200 Concord Street in Nashua to ensure compliance with
SDWA regulations and to provide operating redundancy, (ii) water supply improvements
consisting of security upgrades, watershed improvements and arsenic removal equipment at 200
Concord Street in Nashua, (iii) water distribution improvements, including radio meter reading
equipment, water main replacement and rehabilitation at customer locations for the Borrower’s
service area throughout Nashua as shown on the Service Area Website (at
http://www.pennichuck.com/tefra.php (the “Service Area Website”), including but not limited to
in Nashua on Burke Street, Eldridge Street, West Hollis Street, Lovell Street, Miami Street,
Chestnut Street, Hamilton Street, Brook Street, Marquis Avenue, Rochete Avenue, Verona
Street, Sarasota Avenue, Manatee Street, Burritt Street, Thomas Street, Dudley Street, Proctor
Street, Mulvanity Street, Fernwood Street, Field Street, Fossa Avenue, Pratt Street, Evergreen
Street, Allds Street, Newbury Street, Gillis Street, Zellwood Street, Revere Street, Morton
Avenue, Temple Street, Worcester Street, Scripture Street and Sheds Avenue) in conjunction
with Nashua’s street and sewer upgrade project and maintenance of the Bon Terrain Tank
adjacent to Route 101A in Ambherst and Fifield Tank #1 at Fifield Street and Orchard Avenue in
Nashua, (iv) water system operational improvements, including construction of the Armory
Pumping Station at Daniel Webster Highway and South Main Street in Nashua and expansion of
the Shakespeare High Pressure Service Area at Shakespeare Road in Nashua, acquisition of
rolling stock required to maintain water service and acquisition and installation of water meters
at 31 Will Street in Nashua, and (v) support systems improvements, consisting of a geographical
information system and customer account and billing software, all of which are used by the
Borrower for the purpose of improving its collection, purification, storage and distribution of
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water in Amherst, Bedford, Derry, Epping, Hollis, Merrimack, Milford, Nashua, Plaistow and
Salem, New Hampshire (the “Series A and B Project”), and (2) financing the construction of an
approximately 32,300 square foot, one-story building to serve as an operating facility for the
Borrower to be located at #16 Daniel Webster Highway, Merrimack (also described as: a certain
parcel of land (the “Parcel”) situated in the Town of Merrimack, County of Hillsborough, State
of New Hampshire, being shown as Tax Map 1D, Lot 1-5 on plan entitled Subdivision Plan
(Map 1D, Lot 1), Daniel Webster Highway and Manchester Street, Merrimack, New Hampshire,
Record Owner: The Southwood Corporation), such Parcel expected to be transferred from The
Southwood Corporation to the Borrower (the “Series C Project”). Project also means the water
facilities that result or have resulted from the foregoing activities.

(1) “Project Costs” means the cost of issuing the Bonds and the costs of
carrying out the Project that may be paid from Bond proceeds under the Act, including interest
during construction of the Series C Project but excluding the creation of reserves. Project Costs,
including costs of issuing the Bonds paid from the proceeds of the Bonds shall also be limited to
costs that are permitted to be paid or reimbursed from Bond proceeds under the Federal Tax
Statement. [Revise as necessary depending on series of bonds. ]

g) “Project Fund” means the fund of that name established under Section 401
hereof and shall include the accounts established with the Project Fund.

&) “Rebate Year” means the one year period (or shorter period beginning on
the date of issue) ending on December 31.

)] “Refunded Bonds” means the 2005 Series A Bonds, Series 2005A Bonds
and Series 2005 B Bonds.

(m)  “Series A Bonds” means the $[SERIES A PAR] Business Finance
Authority of the State of New Hampshire Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water
Works, Inc. Project) Series 2015A, dated their date of delivery, and any bond or bonds duly
issued in exchange or replacement therefor.

(n)  “Series B Bonds” means the $[SERIES B PAR] Business Finance
Authority of the State of New Hampshire Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water
Works, Inc. Project) Series 2015B, dated their date of delivery, and any bond or bonds duly
issued in exchange or replacement therefor.

(0) “Series C Bondowner” means T.D. Bank National Association and its
successors and assigns.

(p) “Series C Bonds” means the $[SERIES C PAR] Business Finance
Authority of the State of New Hampshire Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water
Works, Inc. Project) Series 2015C (Direct Purchase), dated their date of delivery, and any bond
or bonds duly issued in exchange or replacement therefor.

(@ “Series 2005A Bonds” means the $1,765,000 Business Finance Authority
of the State of New Hampshire Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.
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Project) Series 2005A, dated January 1, 2005, outstanding in the principal amount of $
and any bond or bonds duly issued in exchange or replacement therefor.

(r) “Series 2005B Bonds” means the $2,310,000 Business Finance Authority
of the State of New Hampshire Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.
Project) Series 2005B, dated January 1, 2005, outstanding in the principal amount of $
and any bond or bonds duly issued in exchange or replacement therefor.

(s) “Short-Term Debt” means all debt other than Funded Debt maturing,
whether by renewal or otherwise, not more than twelve months after it first became the debt of
the Borrower, excluding accounts payable, customers’ deposits and advances, accrued wages and
similar obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business.

(t) “State” means the State of New Hampshire.

(u) “UCC” means the New Hampshire Uniform Commercial Code, as
amended.

Section 103. Number and Gender, Connectives and Disjunctives. Wherever appropriate
(1) the singular and plural forms of words, (2) words of different gender and (3) the words “and”
and “or” shall, within those respective classifications, be deemed interchangeable.

ARTICLE II: THE ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE

Section 201. Assignment and Pledge of the Authority. The Authority, for consideration
paid as hereinabove acknowledged, assigns and pledges to the Trustee in trust as provided above
(1) all of the Authority’s rights to receive and enforce repayment of its loan to the Borrower and
to enforce payment of the Bonds and all proceeds of such rights and loan and (ii) all funds and
investments held from time to time in the Bond Fund established under Section 302, but not
including funds received by the Authority for its own use, whether as the Authority’s Service
Charge, reimbursement or indemnification or the rights thereto. The Borrower joins in the
pledge of such funds and investments to the extent of its interest therein.

Section 202. Recording; Further Assurance. The Borrower will cause this Agreement
and all amendments hereto and instruments of further assurance, including all required financing
statements and continuation statements, to be promptly recorded, registered and filed, and at all
times to be kept recorded, registered and filed, and will file such financing statements and cause
to be issued and filed such continuation statements, all to the extent and in such manner and in
such places as may be required by law fully to preserve and protect the rights of the Trustee and
the Bondowners hereunder. The Borrower, the Authority and the Trustee will from time to time
execute, deliver and record and file such instruments as the Trustee or the Bondowners may
reasonably require to confirm, perfect or maintain the security created hereby and the transfer,
assignment and grant of the rights hereunder.

Section 203. Defeasance. When the Bonds have been paid or redeemed in full or after
there are in the Bond Fund sufficient funds, or noncallable obligations issued or guaranteed by
the United States in such principal amounts, bearing interest at such rates and with such
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maturities as will provide sufficient funds, to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds;
when all the rights hereunder of the Authority, the Trustee and the Bondowners have been
adequately provided for, including the payment in full of the Authority’s Service Charge; and
when the rebate, if any, due to the United States under IRC §148 has been paid in full, the
Bondowners and the Authority shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under this
Agreement except the right to receive payment of any moneys deposited and held for payment
and other rights which by their nature cannot be satisfied prior to or simultaneously with
termination of the lien hereof including rights under Subsection 304(b); the security interests
created by this Agreement shall terminate; and the Trustee, upon the request of the Borrower,
will execute and deliver such instruments as may be necessary to discharge any lien and security
interests created hereunder; provided, however, that if any such Bonds are to be redeemed prior
to the maturity thereof, the Borrower shall have taken all action necessary to redeem such Bonds
and notice of such redemption shall have been duly mailed in accordance with this Agreement or
irrevocable instructions so to mail shall have been given to the Trustee. Upon such defeasance,
the funds and investments required to pay or redeem the Bonds in full shall be irrevocably set
aside for that purpose and moneys held for defeasance shall be invested only as provided above
in this section. Any moneys or property held by the Trustee and not required for payment or
redemption of the Bonds in full shall, after satisfaction of all the rights of the Authority and the
Trustee, be distributed to the Borrower upon such indemnification, if any, as the Authority or the
Trustee may reasonably require. If Bonds are not presented for final payment when due and
moneys are available in the hands of the Trustee therefor, the Trustee will continue to hold the
moneys held for that purpose subject to Subsection 302(c), and interest shall cease to accrue on
the principal amount represented thereby.

In determining the sufficiency of the moneys and/or government obligations described as
aforesaid deposited pursuant to this Section 203, the Trustee, at its request, shall be entitled to
receive, at the expense of the Borrower, and may rely on a verification report of a firm of
nationally recognized independent certified public accountants.

Section 204. Corporate Existence. The Borrower will maintain its corporate existence
and good standing and qualification to do business in the State and will not, without the prior
consent of the Authority and subject to any additional limitations contained in Section 503,
merge or consolidate with any other person or transfer or dispose of all or any substantial portion
of its assets.

Section 205. Indemnification by the Borrower. The Borrower, regardless of any
agreement to maintain insurance, will indemnify the Authority, the Bondowners and the Trustee
against (a) any and all claims by any person arising out of the participation of the Authority, the
Trustee or the Bondowners in the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including
without limitation claims arising out of any condition of the Project or the construction, use,
occupancy or management thereof; any accident, injury or damage to any person occurring in or
about the Project site; any breach by the Borrower of its obligations under this Agreement; any
act or omission of the Borrower or any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees or
licensees relative to this Agreement or the Project; or the offering, issuance, sale or any resale of
the Bonds to the extent per by law, and (b) all costs, counsel fees, expenses or liabilities
reasonably incurred in connection with any such claim or any action or proceeding brought
thereon, provided that the person affected by any such claim cooperates with the Borrower. In
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case any action or proceeding is brought against the Authority, the Trustee or any Bondowner by
reason of any such claim, the Borrower will defend the same at its expense upon notice from the
affected person, provided that such person cooperates with the Borrower, at the expense of the
Borrower in connection therewith. In such event, the Authority, Trustee or any Bondowner shall
use its best efforts to cooperate with Borrower, in the prosecution, settlement or other disposition
of any such claim, action or proceedings. The provisions of this section shall not apply to any
claim, action or proceeding against the Trustee or any Bondowner which is based solely on the
negligence, willful misconduct, bad faith, fraud or deceit of the Trustee and/or Bondowner.

ARTICLE III: THE BORROWING

Section 301. The Bonds.

(a) Issue, Authentication and Form of Bonds. Upon execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the Authority will issue, and upon direction of the Authority, the Trustee will
authenticate and deliver, the Bonds of each series in substantially the following form:

(1) Forms of Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds.

$ No. [A][B]R-1

The State of New Hampshire
BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY
OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
WATER FACILITY REVENUE BOND
(Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) Series 2015[A (Non-AMT)][B (AMT)]

REGISTERED OWNER:  CEDE & CO. CUSIP:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS
INTEREST RATE: PERCENT (__ %)

MATURITY DATE: January 1,20
DATE OF REGISTRATION:; [Issue Date], 2015

DATE OF THIS BOND: [Issue Date], 2015 (Date as of which bonds of this issue were
initially issued) '

INTEREST PAYMENT DATES:  July 1 and January 1 (but not before July 1, 2016)

THIS BOND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE STATE OF
NEW HAMPSHIRE OR OF THE AUTHORITY EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED
BY NEW HAMPSHIRE RSA 162-1. ALL AMOUNTS OWED HEREUNDER ARE
PAYABLE ONLY FROM THE SOURCES PROVIDED IN THE LOAN AND TRUST
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AGREEMENT DESCRIBED BELOW, AND NO PUBLIC FUNDS MAY BE USED FOR
THAT PURPOSE.

The Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire (the “Authority”), for
value received, promises to pay to the Registered Owner or registered assigns, but only from the
special funds hereinafter described, upon presentation and surrender hereof, in lawful money of
the United States of America, the Principal Amount on the Maturity Date, with interest
(computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) from the most
recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid, or duly provided for or, if no
interest has been paid from the DATE of this bond, at the Interest Rate, payable semiannually on
the Interest Payment Dates, until the date on which this bond becomes due, whether at maturity,
upon redemption, by acceleration or otherwise. From and after that date, any unpaid principal
will bear interest at the interest rate until paid or duly provided for. The principal or redemption
price, if any, of this bond is payable at the corporate trust office of the Trustee (which shall mean
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., or its successors as Trustee under the
Agreement referred to below). Interest is payable by check or draft mailed by the Trustee to the
Registered Owner, determined as of the close of business on the applicable record date, at its
address as shown on the registration books maintained by the Trustee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, any Registered Owner may, by prior written instructions filed with the Trustee (which
instructions shall remain in effect until revoked by subsequent written instructions), instruct that
all payments prior to final maturity be made by wire transfer or other means acceptable to the
Trustee.

The record date for payment of interest is the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding
the date on which the interest is to be paid, provided that, with respect to overdue interest or
interest payable on redemption of this bond other than on an Interest Payment Date or interest on
any overdue amount, the Trustee may establish a special record date. The special record date
shall be not more than twenty (20) days before the date set for payment. The Trustee will mail
notice of a special record date to the Bondowners at least ten (10) days before the special record
date. A certificate of the Trustee shall conclusively establish the mailing of such notice for all

purposes.

This bond is one of an issue of bonds (the “Bonds”) representing a borrowing of
$[[SERIES A PAR]][[SERIES B PAR]] under New Hampshire RSA 162-I and pursuant to a
Loan and Trust Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of , 1,2015 among
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (the “Borrower”), the Authority and the Trustee. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the Authority is issuing its ${SERIES A PAR] Water Facility Revenue Bonds, Series
A (Non-AMT) (the “Series A Bonds”), its $[SERIES B PAR] Water Facility Revenue Bonds,
Series B (AMT) (the “Series B Bonds™) and its ${SERIES C PAR] Water Facility Revenue
Bonds, Series C (AMT) (Direct Purchase) (the “Series C Bonds™). Pursuant to the Agreement,
the Borrower has agreed to repay such borrowing in the amounts and at the times necessary to
enable the Authority to pay the principal and interest on this bond and the Authority has pledged
such funds to the Trustee for the benefit of the bondowners. Reference is hereby made to the
Agreement for the provisions thereof with respect to the rights, limitations of rights, duties,
obligations and immunities of the Borrower, the Authority, the Trustee and the Registered
Owner hereof, including the order of payments in the event of insufficient funds, the disposition
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of unclaimed moneys held by the Trustee and restrictions on the rights of the Registered Owner
to bring suit. The Agreement may be amended to the extent and in the manner provided therein.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default as defined in the Agreement, the then
outstanding principal amount of this bond together with accrued interest thereon may be declared
due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Agreement.

[Series A: The Series A Bonds (except the Series A Bonds maturing on or before January
1,20__, which are not subject to redemption prior to maturity unless redeemed pursuant to the
special redemption provisions described below) are redeemable pursuant to the Agreement prior
to maturity beginning on July 1,20, at the option of the Borrower by the written direction of
the Borrower to the Issuer and the Trustee, as a whole or in part at any time in such order of
maturity or sinking fund installments as directed by the Borrower at their principal amount, plus
accrued interest to the redemption date.

The Series A Bonds maturing on January 1, 20__ and January 1, 20__ are also subject to
redemption from sinking fund installments at their principal amounts, without premium, plus
accrued interest to the redemption date on January 1 of each of the years and in the principal
amounts as follows:

20  Series A Bond

Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount

* Final maturity

20  Series A Bond

Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount

* Final maturity]

[Series B: The Series B Bonds maturing on January 1,20__ are subject to redemption
from sinking fund installments at their principal amounts, without premium, plus accrued interest
to the redemption date on January 1 of each of the years and in the principal amounts as follows:

Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount
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*Final maturity.]

[Series B: The Borrower may, at its option, upon notice as provided below, prepay at any
time all, or from time to time any part of, the Series B Bonds, pro rata and not in inverse order of
maturity, as described in the Agreement. The Borrower will give or will cause to be given each
holder of Series B Bonds written notice of each optional prepayment not less than thirty (30)
days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for such prepayment, as described
in the Agreement. Redemption or prepayment of the Series B Bonds shall be at a price of par,
plus the Make-Whole Amount, as defined in Appendix A attached hereto.] [Note, the make
whole amount is needed only if the bonds are issued as taxable bonds; revise as necessary.]

This bond is subject to redemption, at the option of the Borrower, in the event that there
is damage to or destruction or taking of the Project that produces proceeds of insurance or
condemnation awards, as described in the Agreement. Any special redemption of: (i) Series A
Bonds shall be at a price of par and (ii) the Series B Bonds shall be at par plus the applicable the
Make-Whole Amount (as described in the Agreement).

In the event this bond is selected for redemption, notice will be mailed no more than
[Series A: forty-five (45)][Series B: sixty (60)] nor less than thirty (30) days prior to the
redemption date to the Registered Owner at its address shown on the registration books
maintained by the Trustee. Failure to mail notice to the owner of any other bond or any defect in
the notice to such an owner shall not affect the redemption of this bond. Any notice of
redemption may be conditional. [Revise if no taxable series]

The Borrower may purchase bonds of any maturity and credit them against the principal
payment for such maturity or, as the case may be, any sinking fund installment for such maturity
at the principal amount or applicable redemption price, as the case may be, by delivering them to
the Trustee for cancellation at least sixty (60) days before the principal payment date or sinking
fund installment date.

If less than all of the bonds of a series and maturity are to be redeemed, the portion of the
bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee by lot (or pro rata in the case of the Series
B Bonds) or in any customary manner of selection as determined by the Trustee; provided,
however, that so long as DTC or its nominee is the Bondowner, the particular bonds or portions
of bonds of such series and maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by DTC in such manner as
DTC may determine.

If this bond is of a denomination in excess of five thousand dollars ($5,000), portions of
the principal amount in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or any multiple thereof may
be redeemed. If less than all of the principal amount is to be redeemed, upon surrender of this
bond to the Trustee, there will be issued to the Registered Owner at its option, without charge, a
new bond or bonds for the unredeemed principal amount.
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Notice of redemption having been duly given, this bond, or the portion called for
redemption, will become due and payable on the redemption date at the applicable redemption
price and, moneys for the redemption having been deposited with the Trustee, from and after the
date fixed for redemption interest on this bond (or such portion) will no longer accrue.

This bond is transferable by the Registered Owner, in person or by its attorney duly
authorized in writing, at the corporate trust office of the Trustee, upon surrender of this bond to
the Trustee for cancellation. Upon the transfer, a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate
principal amount will be issued to the transferee at the same office. No transfer will be effective
unless represented by such surrender and reissue. This bond may also be exchanged at the
corporate trust office of the Trustee for a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate principal
amount without transfer to a new Registered Owner. Exchanges and transfers will be without
expense to the owner except for applicable taxes or other governmental charges, if any. The
Trustee will not be required to make an exchange or transfer of this bond during the forty-five
(45) days preceding any date fixed for redemption if this bond (or any part thereof) is eligible to
be selected or has been selected for redemption.

The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form in the denomination of five thousand
dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple thereof.

The Authority and the Trustee may treat the Registered Owner as the absolute owner of
this bond for all purposes, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.

No director, officer, employee or agent of the Authority nor any person executing this
bond shall be personally liable, either jointly or severally, hereon or be subject to any personal
liability or accountability by reason of the issuance hereof.

This bond shall not be valid until the certificate of authentication hereon shall have been
signed by the Trustee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Business Finance Authority of the State of New
Hampshire has caused its seal to be affixed hereto and this bond to be signed by its authorized
officers.

Dated: BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF THE
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
(Seal) By:
Chairman
By:

Executive Director
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Certificate of Trustee

This bond is one of the Bonds described in the Agreement.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A,, Trustee

By:
Authorized Officer

Assignment

For value received the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers this bond to

(Name and Address of Assignee)

Social Security or Other Identifying Number of Assignee

and irrevocably appoints attorney-in-fact to transfer it on

the books kept for registration of the bond, with full power of substitution.

NOTE: The signature to this assignment must
correspond with the name as written on the
face of the bond without alteration or
enlargement or other change.

Date:

Signature Guaranteed:

Participant in a Recognized
Signature Guarantee Medallion
Program
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By:

Authorized Signature

[REMOVE IF NO TAXABLE SERIES] [Series B

Appendix A

“Make-Whole Amount” means, with respect to any Series B Bond, an amount equal to
the excess, if any, of the Discounted Value of the Remaining Scheduled Payments with respect
to the Called Principal of such Series B Bond over the amount of such Called Principal, provided
that the Make-Whole Amount may in no event be less than zero. For the purposes of
determining the Make-Whole Amount, the following terms have the following meanings:

“Called Principal” means, with respect to any Series B Bond, the principal of such Series
B Bond that is to be prepaid pursuant to the above or has become or is declared to be
immediately due and payable pursuant to acceleration, as the context requires.

“Discounted Value” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Series B Bond, the
amount obtained by discounting all Remaining Scheduled Payments with respect to such Called
Principal from their respective scheduled due dates to the Settlement Date with respect to such
Called Principal, in accordance with accepted financial practice and at a discount factor (applied
on the same periodic basis as that on which interest on the Series B Bonds is payable) equal to
the Reinvestment Yield with respect to such Called Principal.

“Reinvestment Yield” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Series B Bond,
0.500% over the yield to maturity implied by (i) the yields reported as of 10:00 a.m. (New York
City time) on the second Business Day preceding the Settlement Date with respect to such Called
Principal, on the display designated as “Page PX1” (or such other display as may replace Page
PX1) on Bloomberg Financial Markets for the most recently issued actively traded on the run
U.S. Treasury securities having a maturity equal to the Remaining Average Life of such Called
Principal as of such Settlement Date, or (ii) if such yields are not reported as of such time or the
yields reported as of such time are not ascertainable (including by way of interpolation), the
Treasury Constant Maturity Series Yields reported, for the latest day for which such yields have
been so reported as of the second Business Day preceding the Settlement Date with respect to
such Called Principal, in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 (or any comparable successor
publication) for U.S. Treasury securities having a constant maturity equal to the Remaining
Average Life of such Called Principal as of such Settlement Date.

In the case of each determination under clause (i) or clause (ii), as the case may be, of the
preceding paragraph, such implied yield will be determined, if necessary, by (a) converting U.S.
Treasury bill quotations to bond equivalent yields in accordance with accepted financial practice
and (b) interpolating linearly between (1) the applicable U.S. Treasury security with the maturity
closest to and greater than such Remaining Average Life and (2) the applicable U.S. Treasury
security with the maturity closest to and less than such Remaining Average Life. The
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Reinvestment Yield shall be rounded to the number of decimal places as appears in the interest
rate of the applicable Series B Bond.

“Remaining Average Life” means, with respect to any Called Principal, the number of
years (calculated to the nearest one-twelfth year) obtained by dividing (i) such Called Principal
into (ii) the sum of the products obtained by multiplying (a) the principal component of each
Remaining Scheduled Payment with respect to such Called Principal by (b) the number of years
(calculated to the nearest one-twelfth year) that will elapse between the Settlement Date with
respect to such Called Principal and the scheduled due date of such Remaining Scheduled
Payment.

“Remaining Scheduled Payments” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any
Bond, all payments of such Called Principal and interest thereon that would be due after the
Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal if no payment of such Called Principal
were made prior to its scheduled due date, provided that if such Settlement Date is not a date on
which interest payments are due to be made under the terms of the Series B Bond, then the
amount of the next succeeding scheduled interest payment will be reduced by the amount of
interest accrued to such Settlement Date and required to be paid on such Settlement Date
pursuant to optional prepayment or acceleration.

“Settlement Date” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Series B Bond, the
date on which such Called Principal is to be prepaid pursuant to optional prepayment or has
become or is declared to be immediately due and payable pursuant to acceleration, as the context
requires. |

1) Forms of Series C Bonds.

\ S No. CR-1

The State of New Hampshire
BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY
OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
WATER FACILITY REVENUE BOND
(Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) Series 2015C (AMT)

REGISTERED OWNER:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS
INTEREST RATE: PERCENT (__ %)

MATURITY DATE: January 1,20__
DATE OF REGISTRATION: [Issue Date], 2015
DATE OF THIS BOND: [Issue Date], 2015 (Date as of which bonds of this issue were

initially issued)
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INTEREST PAYMENT DATES: July 1 and January 1 (but not before July 1, 2016)

THIS BOND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE STATE OF
NEW HAMPSHIRE OR OF THE AUTHORITY EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED
BY NEW HAMPSHIRE RSA 162-1. ALL AMOUNTS OWED HEREUNDER ARE
PAYABLE ONLY FROM THE SOURCES PROVIDED IN THE LOAN AND TRUST
AGREEMENT DESCRIBED BELOW, AND NO PUBLIC FUNDS MAY BE USED FOR
THAT PURPOSE. [Revise as necessary for a DP bond]

[REVISE TO REFLECT TERM SHEET OF DIRECT PURCHASE BOND;
PAYMENTS DIRECTLY TO BONDOWNER OR THROUGH TRUSTEE TBD] The Business
Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire (the “Authority”), for value received, promises
to pay to the Registered Owner or registered assigns, but only from the special funds hereinafter
described, upon presentation and surrender hereof, in lawful money of the United States of
America, the Principal Amount on the Maturity Date, with interest (computed on the basis of a
360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) from the most recent Interest Payment Date to
which interest has been paid, or duly provided for or, if no interest has been paid from the DATE
of this bond, at the Interest Rate, payable semiannually on the Interest Payment Dates, until the
date on which this bond becomes due, whether at maturity, upon redemption, by acceleration or
otherwise. From and after that date, any unpaid principal will bear interest at the interest rate
until paid or duly provided for. The principal or redemption price, if any, of this bond is payable
at the corporate trust office of the Trustee (which shall mean The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A., or its successors as Trustee under the Agreement referred to below).
Interest is payable by check or draft mailed by the Trustee to the Registered Owner, determined
as of the close of business on the applicable record date, at its address as shown on the
registration books maintained by the Trustee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Registered
Owner may, by prior written instructions filed with the Trustee (which instructions shall remain
in effect until revoked by subsequent written instructions), instruct that all payments prior to
final maturity be made by wire transfer or other means acceptable to the Trustee.

The record date for payment of interest is the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding
the date on which the interest is to be paid, provided that, with respect to overdue interest or
interest payable on redemption of this bond other than on an Interest Payment Date or interest on
any overdue amount, the Trustee may establish a special record date. The special record date
shall be not more than twenty (20) days before the date set for payment. The Trustee will mail
notice of a special record date to the Bondowners at least ten (10) days before the special record
date. A certificate of the Trustee shall conclusively establish the mailing of such notice for all
purposes.

This bond is one of an issue of bonds (the “Bonds”) representing a borrowing of
$[SERIES C PAR] under New Hampshire RSA 162-I and pursuant to a Loan and Trust
Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of , 1, 2015 among Pennichuck Water Works,
Inc. (the “Borrower”), the Authority and the Trustee. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Authority
is issuing its $[SERIES A PAR] Water Facility Revenue Bonds, Series A (Non-AMT) (the
“Series A Bonds”), its ${SERIES B PAR] Water Facility Revenue Bonds, Series B (AMT) (the
“Series B Bonds™) and its $[SERIES C PAR] Water Facility Revenue Bonds, Series C (AMT)
(Direct Purchase) (the “Series C Bonds™). Pursuant to the Agreement, the Borrower has agreed
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to repay such borrowing in the amounts and at the times necessary to enable the Authority to pay
the principal and interest on this bond and the Authority has pledged such funds to the Trustee
for the benefit of the bondowners. Reference is hereby made to the Agreement for the provisions
thereof with respect to the rights, limitations of rights, duties, obligations and immunities of the
Borrower, the Authority, the Trustee and the Registered Owner hereof, including the order of
payments in the event of insufficient funds, the disposition of unclaimed moneys held by the
Trustee and restrictions on the rights of the Registered Owner to bring suit. The Agreement may
be amended to the extent and in the manner provided therein.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default as defined in the Agreement, the then
outstanding principal amount of this bond together with accrued interest thereon may be declared
due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Agreement.

The Series C Bonds (except the Series C Bonds maturing on or before January 1,20,
which are not subject to redemption prior to maturity unless redeemed pursuant to the special
redemption provisions described below) are redeemable pursuant to the Agreement prior to
maturity beginning on July 1,20, at the option of the Borrower by the written direction of the
Borrower to the Issuer and the Trustee, as a whole or in part at any time in such order of maturity
or sinking fund installments as directed by the Borrower at their principal amount, plus accrued
interest to the redemption date.

The Series C Bonds maturing on January 1, 20 and January 1, 20__ are also subject to
redemption from sinking fund installments at their principal amounts, without premium, plus
accrued interest to the redemption date on January 1 of each of the years and in the principal
amounts as follows:

20 Series C Bond

Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount

* Final maturity

20  Series C Bond

Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount

* Final maturity]
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This bond is subject to redemption, at the option of the Borrower, in the event that there
is damage to or destruction or taking of the Project that produces proceeds of insurance or
condemnation awards, as described in the Agreement. Any special redemption of par.

In the event this bond is selected for redemption, notice will be mailed no more than
forty-five (45) nor less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date to the Registered Owner
at its address shown on the registration books maintained by the Trustee. Failure to mail notice
to the owner of any other bond or any defect in the notice to such an owner shall not affect the
redemption of this bond. Any notice of redemption may be conditional.

The Borrower may purchase bonds of any maturity and credit them against the principal
payment for such maturity or, as the case may be, any sinking fund installment for such maturity
at the principal amount or applicable redemption price, as the case may be, by delivering them to
the Trustee for cancellation at least sixty (60) days before the principal payment date or sinking
fund installment date.

If less than all of the bonds of a series and maturity are to be redeemed, the portion of the
bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee by lot (or pro rata in the case of the Series
B Bonds) or in any customary manner of selection as determined by the Trustee; provided,
however, that so long as DTC or its nominee is the Bondowner, the particular bonds or portions
of bonds of such series and maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by DTC in such manner as
DTC may determine.

If this bond is of a denomination in excess of five thousand dollars ($5,000), portions of
the principal amount in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or any multiple thereof may
be redeemed. If less than all of the principal amount is to be redeemed, upon surrender of this
bond to the Trustee, there will be issued to the Registered Owner at its option, without charge, a
new bond or bonds for the unredeemed principal amount.

Notice of redemption having been duly given, this bond, or the portion called for
redemption, will become due and payable on the redemption date at the applicable redemption
price and, moneys for the redemption having been deposited with the Trustee, from and after the
date fixed for redemption interest on this bond (or such portion) will no longer accrue.

This bond is transferable by the Registered Owner, in person or by its attorney duly
authorized in writing, at the corporate trust office of the Trustee, upon surrender of this bond to
the Trustee for cancellation. Upon the transfer, a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate
principal amount will be issued to the transferee at the same office. No transfer will be effective
unless represented by such surrender and reissue. This bond may also be exchanged at the
corporate trust office of the Trustee for a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate principal
amount without transfer to a new Registered Owner. Exchanges and transfers will be without
expense to the owner except for applicable taxes or other governmental charges, if any. The
Trustee will not be required to make an exchange or transfer of this bond during the forty-five
(45) days preceding any date fixed for redemption if this bond (or any part thereof) is eligible to
be selected or has been selected for redemption.
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The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form in the denomination of five thousand
dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple thereof.

The Authority and the Trustee may treat the Registered Owner as the absolute owner of
this bond for all purposes, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.

No director, officer, employee or agent of the Authority nor any person executing this
bond shall be personally liable, either jointly or severally, hereon or be subject to any personal
liability or accountability by reason of the issuance hereof.

This bond shall not be valid until the certificate of authentication hereon shall have been
signed by the Trustee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Business Finance Authority of the State of New
Hampshire has caused its seal to be affixed hereto and this bond to be signed by its authorized
officers.

Dated: BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF THE
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
(Seal) By:
Chairman
By:

Executive Director

Certificate of Trustee

This bond is one of the Bonds described in the Agreement.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A,, Trustee

By:
Authorized Officer

Assignment

For value received the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers this bond to
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(Name and Address of Assignee)

Social Security or Other Identifying Number of Assignee

and irrevocably appoints attorney-in-fact to transfer it on

the books kept for registration of the bond, with full power of substitution.

NOTE: The signature to this assignment must
correspond with the name as written on the
face of the bond without alteration or
enlargement or other change.

Date:

Signature Guaranteed:

Participant in a Recognized
Signature Guarantee Medallion
Program

By:

Authorized Signature

[END OF BOND FORMS]

(b)  Details of the Bonds. Each series of Bonds shall be issued in fully
registered form and shall be numbered from AR1, BR1 or CR1, as applicable, upwards in the
order of their issuance, or in any other manner determined by the Trustee. The Bonds of each
series shall be in the denomination of five thousand dollars ($5,000) each or any integral multiple
thereof. The Bonds of each series shall be dated their date of delivery. [Note: need to include
Authorized Denominations for the DP Bonds?] The interest on the Bonds until they come due
shall be payable on July 1 and January 1 of each year, beginning on July 1, 2016. Interest on the
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Series B Bonds shall be included in income for federal tax purposes, provisions herein relating
to exemption from taxation shall apply only to the Series A Bonds.

In case any officer of the Authority whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature
shall appear on any Bonds shall cease to be such officer before the delivery thereof, such
signature or facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if he or she
had remained in office until after such delivery. Additional details of the Bonds shall be as
stated in the Bond form in Subsection 301(a).

() Application of Bond Proceeds. The Authority shall loan the proceeds of
the Bonds to the Borrower as follows:

(1) Proceeds of the Series A Bonds in the amount of $ shall be
deposited in the redemption funds established for the Series 2005B Bonds pursuant to the
Escrow Letter Agreement. The remainder Series A Bond proceeds shall be deposited in
the Project Fund and will be used to pay Project Costs, including costs of issuance
allocable to the Series A Bonds. Accrued interest, if any, with respect to the Series A
Bonds shall be deposited in the Bond Fund.

(ii)  Proceeds of the Series B Bonds in the amount of § shall be
deposited in the redemption funds established for the Series 2005A Bonds and 2005
Series A Bonds pursuant to the Escrow Letter Agreement. The remainder Series B Bond
proceeds shall be deposited in the Project Fund and will be used to pay Project Costs,
including costs of issuance allocable to the Series B Bonds. Accrued interest, if any, with
respect to the Series B Bonds shall be deposited in the Bond Fund.

(iii)  Proceeds of the Series C Bonds shall deposited in the Project Fund
and shall be applied to: (i) the costs of issuing the Series C Bonds; and (ii) Project Costs
for the Series C Project.

(d) Reserved.

(e) Exchange and Replacement Bonds. The Bonds may be exchanged as
provided in the Bond form in Subsection 301(a), and exchange Bonds shall be issued in fully-
registered form substantially as set forth therein. Replacement Bonds shall be issued pursuant to
applicable law as a result of the destruction, loss, wrongful taking or mutilation of the Bonds.
The costs of a replacement shall be paid or reimbursed by the registered owner of the
replacement Bond, who shall indemnify the Authority, the Trustee and the Borrower in such
manner as they may require against all liability and expense in connection therewith.

® Registration of Bonds in the Book-Entry Only System. (i) The provisions
of this Subsection 301(f) shall apply with respect to any Bond registered to CEDE & CO. or any
other nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) while the Book-Entry Only System
(meaning the system of registration described in paragraph (ii) of this Subsection 301(f)) isin
effect. Notwithstanding anything in this subsection (f) to the contrary, the Book-Entry Only
System is not applicable to the Series C Bonds.
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(i)  The Bonds shall be issued in the form of a separate single authenticated
fully registered Bond in substantially the form set forth in Subsection 301(a) and in the
amount of each separate stated maturity and series of Bonds. On the date of original
delivery thereof, the Bonds shall be registered in the registry books of the Paying Agent
in the name of CEDE & CO., as nominee of DTC as agent for the Authority in
maintaining the Book-Entry Only System. With respect to Bonds registered in the
registry books kept by the Paying Agent in the name of CEDE & CO., as nominee of
DTC, the Authority, the Paying Agent, the Borrower and the Trustee shall have no
responsibility or obligation to any Participant (which means securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and various other entities, some of
whom or their representatives own DTC) or to any Beneficial Owner (which means,
when used with reference to the Book-Entry Only System, the person who is considered
the beneficial owner of the Bonds pursuant to the arrangements for book entry
determination of ownership applicable to DTC) with respect to the following: (A) the
accuracy of the records of DTC, CEDE & CO. or any Participant with respect to any
ownership interest in the Bonds, (B) the delivery to any Participant, any Beneficial
Owner or any other person, other than DTC, of any notice with respect to the Bonds,
including any notice of redemption, or (C) the payment to any Participant, any Beneficial
Owner or any other person, other than DTC, of any amount with respect to the principal
of or interest on the Bonds. The Paying Agent shall pay all principal of and interest on
the Bonds only to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid and
effective fully to satisfy and discharge the Authority’s obligations with respect to the
principal of and interest on such Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No
person other than DTC shall receive an authenticated Bond evidencing the obligation of
the Authority to make payments of principal of and interest pursuant to this Agreement.
Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC has
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of CEDE & CO., the words “CEDE &
CO.” in this Agreement shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(iii)  Upon receipt by the Authority and the Trustee of written notice from DTC
to the effect that DTC is unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities, the Paying
Agent shall issue, transfer and exchange Bonds as requested by DTC in appropriate
amounts, and whenever DTC requests the Authority, the Paying Agent and the Trustee to
do so, the Trustee, the Paying Agent and the Authority will cooperate with DTC in taking
appropriate action after reasonable notice (A) to arrange for a substitute bond depository
willing and able upon reasonable and customary terms to maintain custody of the Bonds
or (B) to make available Bonds registered in whatever name or names the Bondowners
transferring or exchanging such Bonds shall designate.

(iv)  Inthe event the Authority determines that it is in the best interests of the
Beneficial Owners that they be able to obtain Bond certificates, the Authority may so
notify DTC, the Paying Agent and the Trustee, whereupon DTC will notify the
Participants of the availability through DTC of Bond certificates. In such event, the
Paying Agent shall issue, transfer and exchange Bond certificates as requested by DTC in
appropriate amounts and in authorized denominations. Whenever DTC requests the
Authority and the Paying Agent to do so, the Paying Agent and the Authority will
cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to make
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available Bonds registered in whatever name or names the Beneficial Owners transferring
or exchanging Bonds shall designate.

(v)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, so
long as any Bond is registered in the name of CEDE & CO., as nominee of DTC, all
payments with respect to the principal of and interest on such Bond and all notices with
respect to such Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the
Representation Letter from the Authority to the DTC.

(vi)  Notwithstanding any provision in Section 306 to the contrary, so long as
all of the Bonds Outstanding are held in the Book-Entry Only System, if less than all of
such Bonds of any one maturity are to be redeemed upon any redemption of Bonds
hereunder, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed
shall be selected by DTC in such manner as DTC may determine; provided, however, that
Series B Bonds shall be selected pro rata).

Section 302. Bond Fund.

(a) Establishment and Purpose. A Bond Fund is hereby established with the
Trustee for the account of the Borrower, and moneys shall be deposited therein as provided in
this Agreement. The moneys in the Bond Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund
shall be held in trust and, except as otherwise provided, shall be applied by the Trustee solely to
the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and to the charges and disbursements
of the Trustee and the Authority in accordance with this Agreement. When moneys in the Bond
Fund are to be applied to the payment of the Bonds, such moneys shall be transferred by the
Trustee to itself for the account of the Authority and shall then be so applied.

(b) Excess in Bond Fund. If at any time the amount in the Bond Fund exceeds
the amount necessary to pay or redeem the Bonds in full, and all amounts owing or to be owing
to the Trustee, the Authority, and the Bondowners under this Agreement have been paid or
provided for to the satisfaction of the Trustee, the Authority and the Bondowners, as the case
may be, the excess shall be paid to the Borrower.

() Unclaimed Moneys. Except as may otherwise be required by applicable
law, in case any moneys deposited with the Trustee for the payment of the principal of, or
interest on, any Bond remain unclaimed for three years after such principal or interest has
become due and payable, the Trustee may and upon receipt of a request of the Borrower will pay
over to the Borrower the amount so deposited and thereupon the Trustee and the Authority shall
be released from any further liability with respect to the payment of principal or interest and the
owner of such Bond shall be entitled (subject to any applicable statute of limitations) to look
only to the Borrower as an unsecured creditor for the payment thereof.

Section 303. Application of Moneys. If available moneys are not sufficient on any day
to pay all principal and interest on the Bonds then due or overdue, they shall, after payment of all
other amounts owing to the Trustee and the Authority under this Agreement, be applied first to
the payment of interest, including interest on overdue principal, in the order in which the same
became due and second to the payment of principal without regard to the order in which the
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same became due, in each case pro rata among Bondowners. Whenever moneys are to be
applied by the Trustee pursuant to this section, such moneys shall be applied by the Trustee at
such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee in its discretion shall determine, having due
regard to the amount of such moneys available for application and the likelihood of additional
moneys becoming available for such application in the future. Whenever the Trustee shall
exercise such discretion it shall fix the date (which shall be the first day of a month unless the
Trustee shall deem another date more suitable) upon which such application is to be made, and
upon such date interest on the amounts of principal paid on such date shall cease to accrue. The
Trustee shall give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the fixing of any such date. When
only interest or a portion of the principal is to be paid on an overdue Bond, the Trustee may
require presentation of the Bond for endorsement of the payment.

Section 304. Payments by the Borrower.

(a) Debt Service. The Borrower will pay to the Trustee for deposit in the
Bond Fund at least two (2) Business Days before each date on which any payment of principal of
and interest on, the Bonds shall become due, whether at maturity, upon redemption, upon
acceleration or otherwise, an amount in funds available on such Bond payment date equal to the
payment then coming due less the amount, if any, then in the Bond Fund and available to pay the
same. At any time when any principal of the Bonds is overdue, the Borrower shall also have a
continuing obligation to pay to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund an amount equal to
interest on the overdue principal, but the payments required under this section shall not otherwise
bear interest. The Borrower may make payments to the Bond Fund earlier than required by this
section, but such payments shall not affect the accrual of interest except to the extent that Bonds
are prepaid. If at any time there are insufficient funds to pay or prepay principal of and interest
on the Bonds when due, the Borrower shall supply the deficiency. [REVISE IF BORROWER
TO PAY SERIES C BONDOWNER DIRECTLY]

(b)  Additional Payments. In addition to the payments required under
Subsection 304(a), the Borrower will pay to the Trustee, the Authority and the Bondowners
when due all amounts owing to them respectively under this Agreement, including without
limitation in the case of the Authority, the Authority’s Service Charge and all other amounts
which the Authority is entitled to receive hereunder as reimbursement or indemnity.

Section 305. Unconditional Obligation. The obligations of the Borrower hereunder,
including the obligation of the Borrower to make all payments under Section 304, shall be
unconditional and shall be binding and enforceable in all circumstances whatsoever as provided
in the Act and shall not be subject to setoff, recoupment or counterclaim. The Borrower shall be
obligated to make the payments under Section 304 whether or not the Project has come into
existence or become functional and whether or not the Project has ceased to exist or to be
functional to any extent and from any cause whatsoever. The Borrower shall be obligated to
make such payments regardless of whether the Borrower is in possession or is entitled to be in
possession of the Project or any part thereof.
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Section 306. Redemption of the Bonds.

(a) Sinking Fund Installments and Mandatory Redemptions. The Series A
Bonds maturing January 1, 20__ and January 1,20 (to be selected by the Trustee by lot or in
any customary manner of selection as determined by the Trustee) shall be redeemed at their
principal amounts without premium on January 1 of each of the years and in the amounts as
follows:

20 Bond
Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount
* Final maturity
20 Bond
Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount

* Final maturity

The Series B Bonds maturing January 1,20 (to be selected by the Trustee pro rata or in
any customary manner of selection as determined by the Trustee) shall be redeemed at their
principal amounts without premium on January 1 of each of the years and in the amounts as
follows:

Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount

*Final maturity.

The Borrower may purchase Bonds of any series and maturity and credit them against the
principal payment for such maturity or, as the case may be, any sinking fund installment for such
maturity at the principal amount or applicable redemption price, as the case may be, by
delivering them to the Trustee for cancellation at least sixty (60) days before the principal
payment date or sinking fund installment date.
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(b) Special Redemption. The Bonds are subject to redemption, at the option
of the Borrower, in the event that there is damage to or destruction or taking of the Project that
produces proceeds of insurance or condemnation awards. In the case of a casualty or taking
producing proceeds of insurance or eminent domain proceeds, the Bonds shall be subject to
special redemption only to the extent such proceeds exceed the lesser of ten percent (10%) of the
fully insurable value of the Project prior to the time of such casualty or taking as determined by
the Trustee (who may rely on the advice of a consultant in making such determination) or twenty
percent (20%) of the principal amount of Outstanding Bonds. Upon such determination and
payment by the Borrower of such proceeds to the Trustee, the Trustee shall use the same to
redeem Bonds. If moneys are transferred to the Bond Fund pursuant to this Subsection (b), such
moneys (and earnings thereon) shall be used to redeem Bonds within one (1) year, except to the
extent previously used to purchase Bonds. The Bonds are subject to redemption pursuant to this
Subsection as a whole or in part at any time, in such order of maturity or sinking fund
installments, if any as directed by the Borrower (provided that, if less than all of the Bonds
outstanding of any maturity shall be called for redemption, the Bonds to be so redeemed shall be
selected by the Trustee by lot (or pro rata in the case of the Series B Bonds, as described below)
or in any customary manner of selection as determined by the Trustee), at their principal amounts
plus accrued interest to the redemption date. If the amount available in the Bond Fund to redeem
Bonds at any time is less than $50,000, the Trustee may, and upon written direction of the
Borrower shall, credit such amount against deposits otherwise required to be made therein with
respect to principal instead of calling Bonds for redemption. Any special redemption of: (i)
Series A Bonds and Series C Bonds shall be at a price of par; and (i1) Series C Bonds shall be at
par plus the applicable Make-Whole Amount [Note: revise as necessary for DP].

() Optional Redemption of the Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds. The
Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds (except such Series A Bonds maturing on or before January
1,20, which are not subject to redemption prior to maturity unless redeemed pursuant to the
special redemption provisions of Subsection 306(b)), are redeemable prior to maturity on or after
January 1,20, at the option of the Borrower by the written direction of the Borrower to the
Authority and the Trustee. Such redemption shall be in accordance with the terms of the Bonds,
as a whole or in part at any time, in such order of maturity or sinking fund installments, if any, as
directed by the Borrower (provided that, if less than all of the Series A Bonds outstanding of any
maturity shall be called for redemption, the Bonds to be so redeemed shall be selected, subject to
Section 301(f), by the Trustee by lot or in any customary manner of selection as determined by
the Trustee), at par plus accrued interest to the redemption date as described in the form of Bonds
in Subsection 301(a).

(d) Optional Prepayments of the Series C Bonds with Make-Whole Amount.
The Borrower mayj, at its option, upon notice as provided below, prepay at any time all, or from
time to time any part of, the Series C Bonds, pro rata and not in inverse order of maturity, in an
amount not less than 10.00% of the aggregate principal amount of the Series C Bonds then
Outstanding in the case of a partial prepayment, at 100% of the principal amount so prepaid, plus
the Make-Whole Amount determined for the prepayment date with respect to such principal
amount. The Borrower will give, or will cause to be given, each holder of Series C Bonds
written notice of each optional prepayment not less than thirty (30) days and not more than sixty
(60) days prior to the date fixed for such prepayment. Each such notice shall specify such date
(which shall be a Business Day), the aggregate principal amount of the Series C Bonds to be
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prepaid on such date, the principal amount of each Series C Bond held by such holder to be
prepaid, and the interest to be paid on the prepayment date with respect to such principal amount
being prepaid, and shall be accompanied by a certificate of a Borrower Representative as to the
estimated Make-Whole Amount due in connection with such prepayment (calculated as if the
date of such notice were the date of the prepayment), setting forth the details of such
computation. Two (2) Business Days prior to such prepayment, the Borrower shall deliver to
each holder of Series C Bonds to be repaid a certificate of a Borrower Representative specifying
the calculation of such Make-Whole Amount as of the specified prepayment date. [Note: revise
as necessary for DP]

[“Make-Whole Amount” means, with respect to any Series B Bond, an amount equal to
the excess, if any, of the Discounted Value of the Remaining Scheduled Payments with respect
to the Called Principal of such Series B Bond over the amount of such Called Principal, provided
that the Make-Whole Amount may in no event be less than zero. For the purposes of
determining the Make-Whole Amount, the following terms have the following meanings:

“Called Principal” means, with respect to any Series B Bond, the principal of such Series
B Bond that is to be prepaid pursuant to the above or has become or is declared to be
immediately due and payable pursuant to acceleration, as the context requires.

“Discounted Value” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Series B Bond, the
amount obtained by discounting all Remaining Scheduled Payments with respect to such Called
Principal from their respective scheduled due dates to the Settlement Date with respect to such
Called Principal, in accordance with accepted financial practice and at a discount factor (applied
on the same periodic basis as that on which interest on the Series B Bonds is payable) equal to
the Reinvestment Yield with respect to such Called Principal.

“Reinvestment Yield” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Series B Bond,
0.500% over the yield to maturity implied by (i) the yields reported as of 10:00 a.m. (New York
City time) on the second Business Day preceding the Settlement Date with respect to such Called
Principal, on the display designated as “Page PX1” (or such other display as may replace Page
PX1) on Bloomberg Financial Markets for the most recently issued actively traded on the run
U.S. Treasury securities having a maturity equal to the Remaining Average Life of such Called
Principal as of such Settlement Date, or (ii) if such yields are not reported as of such time or the
yields reported as of such time are not ascertainable (including by way of interpolation), the
Treasury Constant Maturity Series Yields reported, for the latest day for which such yields have
been so reported as of the second Business Day preceding the Settlement Date with respect to
such Called Principal, in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 (or any comparable successor
publication) for U.S. Treasury securities having a constant maturity equal to the Remaining
Average Life of such Called Principal as of such Settlement Date.

In the case of each determination under clause (i) or clause (ii), as the case may be, of the
preceding paragraph, such implied yield will be determined, if necessary, by (a) converting U.S.
Treasury bill quotations to bond equivalent yields in accordance with accepted financial practice
and (b) interpolating linearly between (1) the applicable U.S. Treasury security with the maturity
closest to and greater than such Remaining Average Life and (2) the applicable U.S. Treasury
security with the maturity closest to and less than such Remaining Average Life. The
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Reinvestment Yield shall be rounded to the number of decimal places as appears in the interest
rate of the applicable Series B Bond.

“Remaining Average Life” means, with respect to any Called Principal, the number of
years (calculated to the nearest one-twelfth year) obtained by dividing (i) such Called Principal
into (ii) the sum of the products obtained by multiplying (a) the principal component of each
Remaining Scheduled Payment with respect to such Called Principal by (b) the number of years
(calculated to the nearest one-twelfth year) that will elapse between the Settlement Date with
respect to such Called Principal and the scheduled due date of such Remaining Scheduled
Payment.

“Remaining Scheduled Payments” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any
Series B Bond, all payments of such Called Principal and interest thereon that would be due after
the Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal if no payment of such Called Principal
were made prior to its scheduled due date, provided that if such Settlement Date is not a date on
which interest payments are due to be made under the terms of the Series B Bond, then the
amount of the next succeeding scheduled interest payment will be reduced by the amount of
interest accrued to such Settlement Date and required to be paid on such Settlement Date
pursuant to optional prepayment or acceleration.

“Settlement Date” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Series B Bond, the
date on which such Called Principal is to be prepaid pursuant to optional prepayment or has
become or is declared to be immediately due and payable pursuant to acceleration, as the context
requires. |

(e) Payment of Redemption Price and Accrued Interest. Whenever Bonds are
called for redemption, the accrued interest thereon shall become due on the redemption date and
shall be paid from the Bond Fund to the extent available therein. To the extent not otherwise
provided, the Borrower shall deposit with the Trustee on or prior to the redemption date a
sufficient sum to pay the redemption price of and accrued interest and Make-Whole Amount, as
applicable, on the Bonds.

® Notice of Redemption. When Bonds are to be redeemed, the Trustee shall
give notice in the name of the Authority, which notice shall identify the Bonds to be redeemed,
state the date fixed for redemption state that the proposed redemption is conditioned on there
being on deposit in the Redemption Fund on the redemption date sufficient money to pay the full
redemption price of the Bonds redeemed and state that such Bonds will be redeemed at the
corporate trust office of the Trustee. The notice shall further state that, subject to the
conditionality of the notice, on such date there shall become due and payable upon each Bond to
be redeemed the redemption price thereof, together with interest accrued to the redemption date,
and that moneys therefor having been deposited with the Trustee, from and after such date,
interest thereon shall cease to accrue. The Trustee shall mail the redemption notice not more
than forty-five (45) (sixty (60) in the case of the Series B Bonds) nor less than thirty (30) days
prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owners of any Bonds which are to be
redeemed, at their addresses shown on the registration books maintained by the Trustee, and to
the principal office of each of the managing underwriters of the Bonds. So long as the Bonds are
held in the name of Cede & Co., the redemption notice may be given by electronic means.
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Failure to mail notice to a particular Bondowner, or any defect in the notice to such Bondowner,
shall not affect the redemption of any other Bond. Failure to mail notice to the managing
underwriters, or any defect in the notice to them, shall not affect the redemption of any Bond.

Section 307. Investment of Moneys in Funds.

(a) Investment. Pending their use under this Agreement, moneys in the Bond
Fund and Project Fund shall be invested by the Trustee at the written direction of the Borrower
in the Permitted Investments described in subsection (b), with maturities or subject to redemption
or put at the option of the Trustee at or before the time when such moneys are required to be
available if no Event of Default known to the Trustee then exists. If an Event of Default known
to the Trustee exists, the Trustee’s investment of such moneys shall be subject to such actual or
imputed yield restrictions as Bond Counsel may determine are necessary to preserve the
exemption of interest on the Bonds from federal income taxation. Any interest realized thereon
and any profit realized upon the sale or other disposition thereof shall be credited to such Fund
and any loss shall be charged thereto. Ratings of Permitted Investments shall be determined at
the time of purchase of such Permitted Investments and without regard to ratings subcategories.
The Trustee may make any and all such investments through its own investment department or
that of its affiliates or subsidiaries, and may charge its ordinary and customary fees for such
trades, including investment maintenance fees. In the absence of investment instructions from
the Borrower, the Trustee shall not be responsible or liable for keeping the moneys held by it
hereunder fully invested in Permitted Investments. The Trustee shall not be liable or responsible
for losses on investments made in compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. Although
the Authority and the Borrower each recognizes that it may obtain a broker confirmation or
written statement containing comparable information at no additional cost, the Authority and the
Borrower hereby agree that confirmations of permitted investments are not required to be issued
by the Trustee for each month in which a monthly statement is rendered. No statement need be
rendered for any fund or account if no activity occurred in such fund or account during such
month. Any investment may be purchased from or through the Trustee or any affiliate thereof.

Section 308. Tax-Exempt Status of Series A Bonds. The Borrower will perform its
obligations and agreements contained in the Federal Tax Statement as if they were set forth
herein. The Authority will cooperate with the Bondowners to the extent deemed necessary or
permitted by law in the opinion of Bond Counsel to the Authority in order to preserve the tax-
exempt status of the Bonds. Provisions relating to the tax-exempt status of the Bonds shall only
relate to the Series A Bonds. Interest on the Series B Bonds is taxable for federal income tax
purposes.

Section 309. Rebate.

(2) Payment of Rebate to the United States.

(1) [Revise if separate series for federal tax law purposes] No later than sixty
(60) days after the close of the fifth Rebate Year following the date of issue of the Series
A Bonds and the Series B Bonds (or any earlier date that may be required) and the close
of each fifth Rebate Year thereafter, the Borrower shall pay to the United States on behalf
of the Authority the full amount then required to be paid under IRC Section 148(f) and
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the regulations thereunder (the “Rebate Provision™). Within sixty (60) days after the
Series A Bonds have been paid in full, the Borrower shall pay to the United States on
behalf of the Authority the full amount then required to be paid under the Rebate
Provision. Each such payment shall be made to the Internal Revenue Service Center,
Ogden, Utah 84201 or any successor location specified by the Internal Revenue Service,
accompanied by a Form 8038-T (or other similar information reporting form) prepared by
the Borrower.

(i)  No later than fifteen (15) days prior to each date on which a payment
could become due under Paragraph 306(a)(i) (a “Rebate Payment Date™), the Borrower
shall deliver to the Authority and the Trustee a certificate either summarizing the
determination that no amount is required to be paid or specifying the amount then
required to be paid pursuant to Paragraph 306(a)(i). If the certificate specifies an amount
to be paid, (A) such certificate shall be accompanied by a completed Form 8038-T, which
is to be signed by an officer of the Authority, and shall include a certification stating that
the Form 8038-T is accurate and complete, and (B) no later than ten (10) days after the
Rebate Payment Date the Borrower shall furnish to the Authority and the Trustee a
certificate stating that such amount has been timely paid.

(b) Records. The Borrower, the Trustee and the Authority shall keep such
records as will enable them to fulfill their responsibilities under this section and the Rebate
Provision.

(c) Interpretation of this Section. The purpose of this Section 306 is to satisfy
the requirements of the Rebate Provision. Accordingly, this section shall be construed so as to
meet such requirements. The Borrower covenants that all action taken under this section shall be
taken in a manner that complies with the Rebate Provision and that it shall neither take any
action nor omit to take any action that would cause the Bonds to be arbitrage bonds by reason of
the failure to comply with the Rebate Provision. To the extent any payment of rebatable
arbitrage or penalty in lieu of rebate is not timely made to the United States, the Borrower shall
pay to the United States on behalf of the Authority any interest, penalty, or other amount
necessary to prevent any series of Bonds from becoming arbitrage bonds within the meaning of
IRC Section 148. The Borrower covenants that to the extent necessary it shall obtain the advice
and assistance of experts to aid it in complying with the Rebate Provision.

Section 310. Continuing Disclosure. The Borrower and the Trustee hereby covenant and
agree that each will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement applicable to it. The Authority shall have no liability to the owners of the Bonds or
any other person with respect to such disclosure matters. Notwithstanding any other provision of
this Agreement, failure of the Borrower or the Trustee to comply with the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement shall not be considered an Event of Default; however, the Trustee may (and, at the
request of the owners of at least 25% aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds and the
provision of indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee, shall), or any owner (including a Beneficial
Owner) of Bonds may, seek specific performance of the Borrower’s obligations to comply with
its obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement or this Section 310 and not for money
damages in any amount.

31
53357473 v2 057933/0126925



ARTICLE IV: THE PROJECT

Section 401. Project Fund. A Project Fund is hereby established with the Trustee for the
account of the Borrower. The proceeds of the sale of the Series C Bonds (except accrued
interest, if any, which shall be deposited in the Bond Fund) shall be promptly deposited in the
Project Fund constituting the loan of the proceeds of the Series C Bonds by the Authority to the
Borrower. The moneys in the Project Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund shall
be held in trust and, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, shall be applied by the
Trustee solely to the payment or reimbursement of Project Costs for the Series C Project,
including costs of issuing the Series C Bonds, in accordance with Section 402.

Section 402. Disbursements from Project Fund. The Trustee will pay from the Project
Fund established under Section 401 without requisition the costs of issuing the Series C Bonds
including the fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and the Authority and any recording or similar
fees, and the fees and expenses of the Trustee in connection with the issue of the Series C Bonds
and interest on the Series C Bonds not otherwise provided for incurred prior to the completion of
the Series C Project in accordance with this Agreement. Other disbursements from the Project
Fund shall be made by the Trustee to pay directly or to reimburse the Borrower for Series C
Project Costs or indebtedness incurred to pay Series C Project Costs, as directed by requisitions
signed on behalf of the Borrower by the Borrower Representative setting forth the amount of the
payment or reimbursement due, the nature of the goods or other property or services received in
reasonable detail, and the name and address of the person to whom payment or reimbursement is
due. Each requisition shall be in the form attached as Exhibit A hereto and shall be signed on
behalf of the Borrower by the Borrower Representative certifying that (i) after giving effect to
the payment of the requisition, the use of all funds disbursed from the Project Fund complies
with the limitations contained in the Federal Tax Statement; (ii) such payment or reimbursement
is for Series C Project Costs and the obligations have not been the basis for a prior requisition
which has been paid; (iii) no Event of Default hereunder and no event or condition which, after
notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default hereunder exists; and (iv) the
payment or reimbursement requested by the requisition is due for work actually performed or
materials or property actually supplied prior to the date of the requisition.

Section 403. Certificate of Completion. Completion of the Series C Project shall be
evidenced by the filing with the Trustee of a certificate signed by the Borrower Representative
stating that the Series C Project has been substantially completed and paid for. The date of filing
of such certificate shall be treated as the close of a “Rebate Year” for purposes of Subsection
309(a). The balance, if any, in the Project Fund after any transfer to the Rebate Fund required by
Subsection 309(a) shall be transferred to the Bond Fund to be applied in accordance with
Subsection 306(a).

Section 404. Carrying Out the Project. The Borrower will diligently carry out the
Project. Contracts for carrying out the Project and purchases in connection therewith shall be
made by the Borrower in its own name. To the extent that the Project Fund is insufficient to
complete the Project, the Borrower shall use its best efforts to complete the Project at its own

expense.
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- Section 405. Compliance with Law. In the maintenance, improvement and operation of
the Project, the Borrower will comply in all material respects with all applicable building,
zoning, subdivision, environmental protection, sanitary and safety and other land use laws, rules
and regulations and will not permit any nuisance thereon. It shall not be a breach of this section
if the Borrower fails to comply with such laws, rules and regulations during any period in which
the Borrower shall in good faith be diligently contesting the validity thereof.

Section 406. Disposition. Without the prior consent of the Trustee and the Authority, the
Borrower will not sell, lease or otherwise dispose of, or place any other person in possession of,
the real property included in the Project or any portion thereof or interest therein or make any
material change in the purposes for which the Project is used.

Section 407. Current Expenses. The Borrower will pay all costs and expenses of
operation, maintenance and upkeep of the Project including without limitation all taxes, excises
and other governmental charges lawfully levied thereon or with respect to the Borrower’s
interest therein or use thereof. It shall not be a breach of this subsection if the Borrower fails to
pay any such taxes or charges during any period in which the Borrower shall in good faith be
diligently contesting the validity or amount thereof, unless the procedures applicable to such
contest require payment thereof and proceedings for their refund or abatement.

Section 408. Repair. The Borrower will keep the Project in good order, repair and
condition, damage from casualty expressly not excepted, and not permit or commit waste
thereon. The Borrower may at its own expense alter, remodel or improve the Project, provided
that such alteration or remodeling shall not damage the basic structure thereof or materially
decrease its value or cause the Project to violate zoning or other land use restrictions.

Section 409. Insurance.

(a) Coverage. The Borrower will maintain insurance against liability for
injuries to and death of persons in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and for
damages to property in the minimum amount of $500,000 per occurrence. Any such policy may
exclude the first $25,000 of loss so that the Borrower is its own insurer to that extent.
Substitutions for or omissions from the required coverage may be made with the consent of the
Trustee.

(b) Policies. A duplicate copy or certificate of each policy of insurance shall
be furnished to the Trustee and, at its request, to the Authority. All insurance carried under this
section shall be in the appropriate New Hampshire standard form and shall be with responsible
and reputable companies authorized to transact business in New Hampshire reasonably
satisfactory to the Trustee. All policies of insurance shall contain a provision forbidding
cancellation of such insurance by either the carrier or the insured until at least fifteen days after
written notice of the proposed cancellation is given to the Trustee; and when any insurance is to
expire other than by cancellation, the duplicate or certificate of the new policy shall be furnished
to the Trustee at least twenty days before such expiration date.

Section 410. Right of Access to the Project. The Authority and the Trustee and their
respective duly authorized agents shall have the right at all reasonable times upon reasonable
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notice to enter upon the Project for the purpose of inspection or to carry out their powers
hereunder.

Section 411. Condition of the Project. The Borrower acknowledges that it is fully
familiar with the physical condition of the Project and is not relying on any representation of any
kind by any other party hereto or any Bondowner as to the nature or the condition thereof. No
other parties hereto nor any Bondowner shall be liable to the Borrower or to any other person for
any latent or patent defect in the Project.

ARTICLE V: COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER

Section 501. Amendment. The provisions of this Article V may be amended by the
Borrower and the Trustee (with the consent of the Bondowners if required by Section 1001)
without the consent of the Authority. In connection with any such amendment, the Trustee may
require and conclusively rely upon an opinion of Bond Counsel that any such amendment does
not materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners.

Section 502. Rate Covenant. If during any Fiscal Year (the “Test Year”), Borrower’s
Net Revenues for such Fiscal Year shall not equal at least one and one-tenth (1 1/10) times all
amounts paid or required to be paid by Borrower during the Test Year with respect to Funded
Debt, then Borrower shall undertake reasonable efforts to initiate a rate-making proceeding with
the NHPUC that will result, if approved by the NHPUC, in Borrower’s having Net Revenues in
the next succeeding Fiscal Year equal to at least one and one-tenth (1 1/10) times all amounts
required to be paid by Borrower during such next succeeding Fiscal Year with respect to Funded
Debt. Borrower shall not be required to initiate a new rate-making procedure with the NHPUC
pursuant to this Section 502 as long as an issue of law or fact substantially the same to that which
would be raised by any such new rate-making proceeding is then pending or has been decided
pursuant to a non-appealable order of the NHPUC that prevents raising such issue in subsequent
proceedings on appeal or such an issue of law or fact was previously determined adversely on
appeal. In addition, Borrower shall not be required to initiate a new rate-making proceeding with
the NHPUC pursuant to this Section 502 if Borrower receives an order from the NHPUC within
one-hundred twenty (120) days after the end of the Test Year establishing rates, fees and other
charges such that, had such rates, fees and other charges been in effect for the entirety of the Test
Year, Borrower would have had Net Revenues in the Test Year equal to at least one and one-
tenth (1 1/10) times all amounts paid or required to be paid by Borrower during the Test Year
with respect to Funded Debt. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 502 to the contrary, all
obligations of Borrower under this Section 502 are subject to compliance by Borrower with any
legislation of the United States, the State or other governmental body, or any regulation or other
action taken by the federal government, any State agency, including, without limitation, the
NHPUC, or any political subdivision of the State pursuant to any such legislation, in the exercise
of the police power thereof for the public welfare, which legislation, regulation or action limits
or otherwise inhibits the amounts of rates, fees and other charges due to Borrower, and, in all
events, the establishment of new rates, fees and other charges by Borrower is subject to the
approval of the NHPUC.
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Section 503. Merger or Consolidation. The Borrower agrees that it will not become a
party to any merger or consolidation unless (i) (A) the prepayment of the principal of and interest
of the Bonds shall occur concurrently with said merger or consolidation, or (B) the Bonds are no
longer deemed Outstanding under this Agreement, or (ii) such merger or consolidation is with a
water utility and (A) for twelve consecutive months out of the fifteen months next preceding the
merger or consolidation, the combined Net Revenues of the companies which are parties to the
merger or consolidation shall have been at least one and one-tenth (1 1/10) times the annual
amount of interest which the resulting or continuing corporation will be obligated to pay after the
merger or consolidation is effected on account of Funded Debt that was incurred on or after the
Effective Date and (B) the merger or consolidation shall not result in the resulting or continuing
corporation having an amount of Funded Debt which is in excess of the sum of the value of the
MARA and 85% of the Net Amount of Capital Properties, or its having outstanding any Funded
Debt that the Borrower would not have been permitted to incur immediately prior to the
transaction, or (iii) such merger or consolidation is with a water utility and (A) the Trustee on
behalf of the Bondowners would in connection therewith receive, as security for the Bonds,
bonds of the resulting corporation under a mortgage creating a lien on substantially all of the
Capital Properties of said resulting corporation, which bonds and mortgage shall contain
provisions comparable to the provisions of the Bonds (allowing for appropriate adjustments in
form and substance to reflect the different nature of the securities), (B) for twelve (12)
consecutive months out of the fifteen (15) months next preceding the merger or consolidation,
the combined Net Revenues of the companies which are parties to the merger or consolidation
shall have been at least one and one-tenth (1 1/10) times the annual amount of interest which the
resulting or continuing corporation will be obligated to pay after the merger or consolidation is
effected on account of Funded Debt that was incurred on or after the Effective Date, and (C) the
merger or consolidation shall not result in the resulting corporation having an amount of Funded
Debt which is in excess of the sum of the value of the MARA and 85% of its Net Amount of
Capital Properties.

Section 504. Other Covenants. The Borrower agrees that it will:

(a) Not make any investments in securities of any corporation or make any
advance, extend credit or issue any guaranty to any corporation, firm or individual, except
among affiliates and except in the ordinary course of business.

(b) Reserved.

(c) Not change the general nature of its business; nor make any sale or
disposition of Capital Properties which will materially adversely affect the operation of its water
business.

(d)  Annually, as an operating expense, provide for depreciation of its
properties and record the same on its books in an amount computed at a rate acceptable to the
New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission, but in any event equal to not less than 1 1/4% of
its depreciable properties as of the preceding December 31, provided however, that any such
provisions made subsequent to December 31, 1985, in excess of the amount required under the
provisions of this subsection in the year in which made, to the extent that it is determined such
excess provision was unnecessary in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
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may be applied toward satisfying any requirement of this subsection in respect of any calendar
year succeeding the calendar year in which made.

(e) Not declare or pay any dividends or make any distributions on any shares
of its common stock or purchase, acquire or otherwise retire for a consideration any shares of its
common stock, if immediately thereafter its net worth would be less than $4,500,000. “Net
worth” means the excess of assets (including, without limitation, the MARA, Deposited Cash
and Capital Properties) over all liabilities (including liabilities with respect to the Bonds) as
determined by generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.

Section 505. Liens. (a) The Borrower agrees that it will not pledge or place or suffer to
exist any mortgage or other encumbrance or lien of any kind upon Capital Properties or any part
thereof, except (i) encumbrances permitted by subsection (b) below, (ii) a mortgage securing its
first mortgage bonds as provided in Section 507, and (iii) purchase money or construction
mortgages or security interests, or mortgages or security interests existing on the Capital
Properties at the time of acquisition thereof, or created for the purpose of financing such
acquisition, and renewals or replacements of such mortgages or security interests, provided that
(x) no such mortgage or security interest shall affect any Capital Properties other than those
being so acquired or constructed, (y) the indebtedness being secured by such mortgage or
security agreement shall not exceed 85% of the cost to the Borrower of such acquisition or
construction and (z) the total indebtedness being secured by such mortgages and security
agreements at any one time shall not exceed Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000).

(b) Subsection (a) shall not apply to (i) liens for taxes payable without penalty
or interest or being contested in good faith and for which the Borrower has provided an adequate
reserve by proper charges to income or earned surplus; (ii) mechanics’ liens and similar liens
incurred in the ordinary course of business to secure debts of the Borrower not yet due; (iii)
attachments against which the Borrower is adequately covered by insurance or which are
discharged within sixty (60) days from the making thereof and liens of judgments or awards
adequately covered by insurance or which have been in force for less than the applicable appeal
period so long as execution is not levied thereunder or in respect of which an appeal or
proceedings for review are pending and a stay of execution shall have been secured pending such
appeal or review, provided, however, that such attachments, judgments or awards do not exceed
in the aggregate the amount of $1,000,000; and (iv) other encumbrances which in the aggregate
do not materially detract from the value of said properties and assets or materially impair their
use in the operation of the business.

Section 506. Borrowings.

(a) The Borrower agrees that it will not create, issue, incur, assume or
guarantee: (i) any Short-Term Debt if thereby as of the date of such creation, issuance,
incurring, assumption or guarantying the sum of Short-Term Debt and Funded Debt of the
Borrower will exceed 85% of the sum of its Short-Term Debt, its Funded Debt, the value of its
MARA and its capital stock and all surplus accounts (which term here and elsewhere herein
includes the retained earnings account), unless any Short-Term Debt in excess of said 85% is
subordinated to the Bonds as to claims for the payment of principal and interest thereunder (the
limitations imposed by this subsection are not to apply to any renewal or extension of Short-
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Term Debt of the Borrower which was not in excess of said 85% when originally issued and
such limitations to terminate upon the securing of the Bonds with first mortgage bonds pursuant
to Section 507); or (ii) any new Funded Debt (A) if thereby the total outstanding Funded Debt of
the Borrower will exceed the sum of its MARA and 85% of its Net Amount of Capital Properties
and (B) unless Net Revenues shall equal for at least twelve (12) consecutive months of the
fifteen (15) months next preceding the creation of any debt, one and one-tenth (1 1/10) times the
maximum amount for which the Borrower will thereafter be obligated to pay in any year on
account of Funded Debt incurred on or after the Effective Date, including such new Funded Debt
thereafter to be outstanding.

(b)  The Bonds shall be ranked equally with other Funded Debt. Subject to
Sections 505 and 507, no Funded Debt which is senior to the Bonds shall be issued as long as the
Bonds are outstanding.

Section 507. First Mortgage Bonds. The Borrower, at its option, may at any time secure
the Bonds with first mortgage bonds of the Borrower of a like principal amount, bearing interest
at the same rate and maturing on the same date as the Bonds and registered in the name of and
delivered to the Trustee, provided that the Borrower shall, prior to or at the time of such securing
enter into an indenture of mortgage with a corporation organized and doing business under the
laws of the United States or any State or territory thereof or the District of Columbia and
authorized to exercise corporate trust powers, having a combined capital and surplus of at least
$25,000,000, as trustee for the holders of said bonds, which indenture shall convey to such
trustee a first mortgage lien in substantially all of the Capital Properties of the Borrower as
security for the payment of the bonds and the performance by the Borrower of its obligations
under the indenture. The first mortgage bonds and indenture of mortgage shall contain terms and
covenants substantially the same as the Bonds and this Agreement, respectively (allowing for
differences in form and minor substance and with appropriate adjustments to reflect the different
nature of the securities), shall be in such form and contain such provisions as are acceptable to
the Trustee and as are customary for first mortgage bonds issued by corporations in the water
utility industry and shall not restrict the Borrower in the operations of its business to any
substantially greater extent than the Borrower is so restricted by the provisions of this Agreement
and of the Bonds. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i) the indenture of mortgage
shall permit the issuance of additional first mortgage bonds thereunder, equally and ratably
secured by the lien thereof, to the same extent as the Borrower is permitted to issue Funded Debt
by the terms of this Agreement and the Bonds, and shall not limit the creation by the Borrower of
indebtedness other than first mortgage bonds; and (ii) the indenture of mortgage shall not
prohibit liens on Capital Properties of the Borrower junior to the lien of said indenture of
mortgage. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Borrower may not issue or
permit to remain outstanding any first mortgage bonds unless all of the Bonds are fully secured
by same.

(@ The Borrower shall give at least thirty (30) days written notice to the
Trustee, by registered or certified mail, of the effective date of such securing of the Bonds with
first mortgage bonds, specifying the effective date.

(b) Prior to or on the effective date of the issue of first mortgage bonds, and as
a condition to the effectiveness of such issue, the indenture of mortgage shall be duly recorded,
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and financing statements shall be duly filed in respect thereof, to the extent required by law to
perfect the lien of the mortgage in the Capital Properties, and the Borrower shall deliver to the
trustee for the first mortgage bonds and the Trustee an opinion of counsel (who may be counsel
to the Borrower) satisfactory to the Trustee as to the validity and binding effect of the first
mortgage bonds and indenture of mortgage and the title of the Borrower to its Capital Properties
free and clear of all encumbrances except those permitted by the indenture of mortgage.

ARTICLE VI: DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 601. Events of Default. “Event of Default” in this Agreement means any one of
the following events:

(a) Debt Service. Any principal of or interest on any Bond shall not be paid
or the Borrower shall fail to make any payment or prepayment required under Subsection 304(a)
or Section 306, in each case within three days after the same becomes due and payable, whether
at maturity, by acceleration, pursuant to any prepayment requirement or otherwise.

, (b) Certain Obligations. The Borrower shall fail to make any other payment
required hereunder to the Trustee or any Bondowner and such failure is not remedied within
seven days after written notice thereof is given by the Trustee to the Borrower; or the Borrower
shall fail to observe or perform any of its other obligations under this Agreement and such failure
is not remedied within thirty days after notice thereof is given by the Trustee to the Borrower;
provided, however, that no Event of Default shall be deemed to have occurred by reason of any
failure by the Borrower to comply with the terms of Section 502 as long as Borrower is making
all payments required to be made by Borrower to the Trustee under Section 304(a) or
Section 306 as and when any such payments are required to be made.

(c) Representations. Any representation or warranty made by the Borrower
herein or in any document or instrument furnished to the Bondowners in connection with the
initial purchase of the Bonds or pursuant to this Agreement is false or misleading in any material
respect on the date it was intended to be effective.

(d) Other Borrowings. The Borrower shall default in the payment of any
material obligations aggregating at least $1,000,000 for borrowed money or the deferred
purchase of property, including without limitation leases which should be capitalized in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and guarantees and other contingent
obligations in respect of obligations for borrowed money of others, beyond any applicable grace
period, or fail to observe or perform any provision contained in any instrument evidencing,
relating to or securing any such obligation, which failure causes such obligation to become due
prior to its stated maturity and such failure is not waived.

(e) Voluntary Bankruptcy. The Borrower shall commence a voluntary case
under the federal bankruptcy laws, or shall admit in writing its insolvency or its inability to pay
its debts as they become due, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall
apply for, consent to or acquiesce in the appointment of, or taking possession by, a trustee,
receiver, custodian or similar official or agent for itself or any substantial part of its property or
shall generally not pay its debts as they become due.

38
53357473 v2 057933/0126925



® Appointment of Receiver. A trustee, receiver, custodian or similar official
or agent shall be appointed for the Borrower or any substantial part of its property.

(2) Involuntary Bankruptcy. The Borrower shall have an order or decree for
relief in an involuntary case under the federal bankruptcy laws entered against it, or a petition
seeking reorganization, readjustment, arrangement, composition, or other similar relief as to it
under the federal bankruptcy laws or any similar law for the relief of debtors shall be brought
against it and shall be consented to by it or shall remain undismissed for sixty days.

(h) Judgments. One or more final judgments not subject to appeal or
extension for payment of money exceeding in the aggregate $500,000 in excess of the amount of
insurance coverage available therefor shall be rendered against the Borrower and shall remain
undischarged for a period of sixty days during which execution shall not be effectively stayed.

Section 602. Waiver. Any default and the consequences thereof, including any
acceleration, may be waived by the Bondowners with notice to the Trustee and the Authority,
provided that no such waiver shall affect the right of the Authority to enforce any of its rights
hereunder which have not been assigned to the Trustee.

Section 603. Remedies for Events of Default. If an Event of Default exists, the Trustee
may exercise any or all of the following remedies:

(@ Acceleration. The Trustee may, by written notice to the Borrower and the
Authority declare immediately due and payable the then outstanding principal amount of the
Bonds and the payments to be made by the Borrower therefor, and accrued interest or Make-
Whole Amount, as applicable, on the foregoing, whereupon the same shall become immediately
due and payable without any further action or notice.

(b) Rights as a Secured Party. The Trustee may exercise all of the rights and
remedies of a secured party under the UCC with respect to any property as to which a security
interest has been granted hereunder which is or may be treated as collateral under the UCC.

(©) Court Proceedings. The Trustee may enforce the provisions of this
Agreement by legal proceedings for the specific performance of any obligation contained herein
or for the enforcement of any other appropriate legal or equitable remedy, and may recover
damages caused by any breach by the Borrower of the provisions hereof, including court costs,
reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs and expenses incurred in enforcing the obligations of
the Borrower hereunder.

Section 604. Application of Money Collected. Any money collected by the Trustee
pursuant to this Article together with any other funds pledged as security hereunder, less all
charges and expenses of the Trustee and the Authority in connection therewith, shall be applied
(i) to payment into the Rebate Fund of an amount equal to the difference, if any, between the
amount then on deposit and the amount that would be required to be paid to the United States
under Subsection 309(a) if the Bonds were paid in full, (ii) then as provided in Section 303 and
(iii) then to the Borrower without interest except as may otherwise be required by law.
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Section 605. Performance of the Borrower’s Obligations. If the Borrower shall fail to
pay or perform any obligation under this Agreement, the Trustee or the Authority may pay or
perform such obligation in its own name. The reasonable cost of any such action by the Trustee
or the Authority shall be paid or reimbursed by the Borrower with interest at the rate specified in
Section 702.

Section 606. Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies under this Agreement shall
be cumulative and shall not exclude any other rights and remedies allowed by law, provided
there is no duplication of recovery. The failure to insist upon a strict performance of any
obligation of the Borrower or to exercise any remedy for any violation thereof shall not be taken
as a waiver for the future of the right to insist upon strict performance by the Borrower or of the
right to exercise any remedy for the same or any other violation.

ARTICLE VII: THE TRUSTEE

Section 701. Rights and Duties of the Trustee.

(a) Moneys to be Held in Trust. All moneys deposited with the Trustee under
this Agreement shall be held by the Trustee in trust and applied subject to the provisions of this
Agreement, but need not be segregated from other funds except as required by law.

(b)  Accounts. The Trustee will keep proper accounts of its transactions
hereunder (separate from its other accounts), which shall be open to inspection by the Authority,
the Borrower, any Bondowner and their representatives duly authorized in writing.

(c) Performance of the Authority’s Obligations. If the Authority shall fail to
perform any obligation under this Agreement, the Trustee may take whatever legal proceedings
may be required to compel full performance by the Authority thereof, and in addition, the
Trustee may, to whatever extent it deems appropriate for the protection of the Bondowners, itself
or the Borrower, perform any such obligation in the name of the Authority and on its behalf.

(d)  Limitations on Actions. The Trustee shall not be required to monitor the
financial condition of the Borrower or the physical condition of the Project and, unless otherwise
expressly provided, shall not have any responsibility with respect to notices, certificates or other
documents filed with it hereunder. Upon a failure of the Borrower to make a payment required
of it under Subsection 304(a) within seven days after the same becomes due and payable, the
Trustee shall give notice to the Bondowners. The Trustee shall not be required to take notice of
any other breach or default except when given written notice thereof by the owners of at least
twenty-five per cent in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds. The Trustee shall give
default notice under Subsection 601(b) when instructed to do so by the written direction of the
owners of at least twenty-five per cent in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds. The
Trustee shall proceed under Sections 603 and 604 for the benefit of the Bondowners in
accordance with the written direction of the owners of a majority in principal amount of the
Outstanding Bonds. The Trustee shall not be required, however, to take any remedial action
(other than the giving of notice) unless indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it is furnished for
any expense or liability to be incurred therein. The Trustee shall be entitled to reimbursement
pursuant to Section 702 to the extent that it acts without previously obtaining full indemnity.
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Upon receipt of notice, direction, instruction and indemnity as provided above and after
making such investigation, if any, as it deems appropriate to verify the occurrence of any event
of which it is notified by the Bondowners, the Trustee will promptly pursue the remedy provided
by this Agreement or any of such remedies (not contrary to any such direction) as it deems
appropriate for the protection of the Bondowners, and in its actions under this sentence, the
Trustee will act for the protection of the Bondowners with the same promptness and prudence as
would be expected of a prudent person in the conduct of such person’s affairs.

(e) Responsibility. The Trustee shall be entitled to the advice of counsel (who
may be counsel for any party or for any Bondowner) and shall be wholly protected as to any
action taken or omitted to be taken in good faith in reliance on such advice. The Trustee may
rely conclusively on any notice, certificate or other document furnished to it under this
Agreement and reasonably believed by it to be genuine. The Trustee shall not be liable for any
action taken by it in good faith and reasonably believed by it to be within the discretion or power
conferred upon it, or in good faith omitted to be taken by it and reasonably believed to be beyond
such discretion or power, or taken by it pursuant to any direction or instruction by which it is
governed under this Agreement or omitted to be taken by it by reason of the lack of direction or
instruction required for such action under this Agreement or be responsible for the consequences
of any error of judgment reasonably made by it. When any payment or consent or other action
by the Trustee is called for by this Agreement, the Trustee may defer such action pending such
investigation or inquiry or receipt of such evidence, if any, as it may require in support thereof.
A permissive right or power to act shall not be construed as a requirement to act, and no delay in
the exercise of a right or power shall affect the subsequent exercise thereof. The Trustee shall in
no event be liable for the application or misapplication of funds, or for other acts or defaults, by
any person or entity except by its own directors, officers and employees. The Trustee shall not
be accountable for the use or application by the Borrower of any of the Bonds or the proceeds
thereof or for the use or application of any money paid over by the Trustee in accordance with
the provisions of this Agreement or for the use and application of money received by any paying
agent. No recourse shall be had by the Borrower, the Authority or any Bondowner for any claim
based on this Agreement or the Bonds against any director, officer, employee or agent of the
Trustee unless such claim is based upon the bad faith, fraud or deceit of such person. For
purposes of this Agreement, matters shall not be considered to be known to the Trustee unless
they are known to an officer in its corporate trust department. None of the provisions of this
Agreement shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise to incur any
liability, financial or otherwise, in the performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in the
exercise of any of its rights or powers if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that
repayment of such funds or indemnity satisfactory to it against such risk or liability is not assured
to it. The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereof and perform any of its duties
by or through attorneys, agents or receivers appointed with due care, and shall not be responsible
for any willful misconduct or negligence on the part of any agent, attorney, custodian or nominee
so appointed. The Trustee shall have no responsibility with respect to any information,
statement or recital in any official statement, offering memorandum or any other disclosure
material prepared or distributed with respect to the Bonds, except for any information provided
by the Trustee, and shall have no responsibility for compliance with any state or federal
securities laws in connection with the Bonds. Under no circumstances shall the Trustee assume
any responsibility or liability for the issuance of the Bonds as obligations the interest on which is
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excludable from gross income for purposes of Federal income taxation or for the maintenance of
such tax-exempt status subsequent to the date of issuance of the Bonds.

® Financial Obligations. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall in any
way obligate the Trustee to pay any debt or meet any financial obligations to any person in
relation to the Project except from moneys received under the provisions of this Agreement or
from the exercise of the Trustee’s rights hereunder.

(2) Ownership of Bonds. The Trustee or any affiliate of the Trustee may be
or become the owner of Bonds with the same rights as if it were not Trustee.

(h) Surety Bond. The Trustee shall not be required to furnish any bond or
surety.

Section 702. Fees and Expenses of the Trustee. Except to the extent the Trustee has
been paid or reimbursed from the Project Fund, the Borrower will pay to the Trustee reasonable
compensation for its services and prepay or reimburse the Trustee for its reasonable expenses
and disbursements, including attorney’s fees, hereunder. Any fees, expenses, reimbursements or
other charges which the Trustee may be entitled to receive from the Borrower hereunder, if not
paid when due, shall bear interest at the “Base Rate” of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., and if not otherwise paid, shall be a first lien upon any moneys or other property
then or thereafter held hereunder by the Trustee. The Trustee may apply any such moneys to any
of the foregoing items, and immediately upon such application, the Borrower shall be obligated
to restore the moneys so applied.

Section 703. Resignation or Removal of the Trustee. The Trustee may resign on not less
than thirty days’ written notice to the Authority, the Borrower and the Bondowners, but such
resignation shall not take effect until a successor has been appointed. If no successor is
appointed within sixty days after the date of notice of resignation, the Trustee may appoint its
own successor with notice to the Authority, the Bondowners and the Borrower, provided such
successor meets the qualifications under Section 704. The Trustee may be removed by written
notice from the Bondowners to the Trustee, the Authority and the Borrower.

Section 704. Successor Trustee. Any corporation or association which succeeds to the
corporate trust business of the Trustee as a whole or substantially as a whole, whether by sale,
merger, consolidation or otherwise, shall thereby become vested with all the property, rights and
powers of the Trustee under this Agreement, without any further act or conveyance.

In the event of the resignation or removal of the Trustee or a vacancy from any other
cause, a successor may be appointed by written notice from the Bondowners to the Authority and
the Borrower. Any successor Trustee appointed under this section shall be a bank or trust
company eligible to serve as Trustee under the Act having a capital and surplus of not less than
$75,000,000. Any such successor Trustee shall notify the Authority, the Borrower and the
Bondowners of its acceptance of the appointment and, upon giving such notice, shall become
Trustee, vested with all the property, rights and powers of the Trustee hereunder, without any
further act or conveyance. Such successor Trustee shall execute, deliver, record and file such
instruments as are required to confirm or perfect its succession hereunder, and any predecessor
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Trustee shall from time to time execute, deliver, record and file such instruments as the
incumbent Trustee may reasonably require to confirm or perfect any succession hereunder.

ARTICLE VIII: THE AUTHORITY

Section 801. Limited Obligation. Under no circumstances shall the Authority be
obligated directly or indirectly to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds, or expenses of
operation, maintenance and upkeep of the Project except from Bond proceeds or from funds
received under this Agreement, exclusive of funds received hereunder by the Authority for its
own use. This Agreement does not create any debt of the State with respect to the Project other
than a special obligation of the Authority acting on behalf of the State pursuant to the Act.
Nothing contained herein shall in any way obligate the State to raise any money by taxation or
use other public funds for any purpose in relation to the Project. Neither the State nor the
Authority shall pay or promise to pay any debt or meet any financial obligation to any person at
any time in relation to the Project except (i) from moneys received or to be received under the
provisions hereof or derived from the exercise of the Authority’s rights hereunder, other than
moneys received for its own purposes, or (ii) as may be required by law other than the provisions
of the Act. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to require or authorize the
Authority to operate the Project itself or to conduct any business enterprise in connection
therewith.

Section 802. Rights and Duties of the Authority.

(a) Remedies of the Authority. Notwithstanding any contrary provision in
this Agreement, the Authority shall have the right to take any action or make any decision with
respect to proceedings for indemnity against the liability of the Authority and for collection or
reimbursement from sources other than moneys or property held under this Agreement or subject
to the lien hereof. The Authority may enforce its rights under this Agreement which have not
been assigned to the Trustee by legal proceedings for the specific performance of any obligation
contained herein or for the enforcement of any other appropriate legal or equitable remedy, and
may recover damages caused by any breach by the Borrower of its obligations to the Authority
under this Agreement, including court costs, reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs and
expenses incurred in enforcing such obligations.

(b) Limitations on Actions. The Authority shall not be required to monitor
the financial condition of the Borrower or the physical condition of the Project and, unless
otherwise expressly provided, shall not have any responsibility with respect to notices,
certificates or other documents filed with it hereunder. The Authority shall not be required to
take notice of any breach or default except when given notice thereof by the Trustee or the
Bondowners, as the case may be. The Authority shall not be responsible for the payment of any
rebate to the United States under IRC §148(f), except that it shall pay any required rebate with
respect to moneys and investments held for its own account. Notwithstanding the foregoing
sentence, the Authority shall not be liable to any party hereto, any Bondowner, or any other
person for damages incurred by them as a consequence of the Authority’s failure to pay any such
rebate to the United States. The Authority shall not be required to take any action unless
indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it is furnished for expenses or liability to be incurred therein
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(other than the giving of notice). The Authority, upon written request of the Bondowners or the
Trustee, and upon receipt of reasonable indemnity for expenses or liability, shall cooperate to the
extent reasonably necessary to enable the Trustee to exercise any power granted to the Trustee
by this Agreement. The Authority shall be entitled to reimbursement pursuant to Section 903 to
the extent that it acts without previously obtaining full indemnity.

() Responsibility. The Authority shall be entitled to the advice of counsel
(who may be counsel for any party or for any Bondowner) and shall be wholly protected as to
any action taken or omitted to be taken in good faith in reliance on such advice. The Authority
may rely conclusively on any notice, certificate or other document furnished to it under this
Agreement and reasonably believed by it to be genuine. The Authority shall not be liable for any
action taken by it in good faith and reasonably believed by it to be within the discretion or power
conferred upon it, or in good faith omitted to be taken by it and reasonably believed to be beyond
such discretion or power, or taken by it pursuant to any direction or instruction by which it is
governed under this Agreement or omitted to be taken by it by reason of the lack of direction or
instruction required for such action under this Agreement, or be responsible for the consequences
of any error of judgment reasonably made by it. When any payment, consent or other action by
the Authority is called for by this Agreement, the Authority may defer such action pending such
investigation or inquiry or receipt of such evidence, if any, as it may require in support thereof.
A permissive right or power to act shall not be construed as a requirement to act, and no delay in
the exercise of a right or power shall affect the subsequent exercise thereof. The Authority shall
in no event be liable for the application or misapplication of funds, or for other acts or defaults
by any person or entity except by its own directors, officers and employees. No recourse shall be
had by the Borrower, the Trustee or any Bondowner for any claim based on this Agreement or
the Bonds against any director, officer, employee or agent of the Authority unless such claim is
based upon the bad faith, fraud or deceit of such person. No covenant, obligation or agreement
of the Authority contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be a covenant, obligation or
agreement of any present or future director, officer, employee or agent of the Authority in his
individual capacity, and no person executing a Bond shall be liable personally thereon or be
subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.

Section 803. Expenses of the Authority. Except to the extent paid or reimbursed from
the Project Fund, the Borrower shall pay when due the Authority’s Service Charge and shall
prepay or reimburse the Authority within thirty days after notice for all expenses (including
reasonable attorney’s fees) incurred by the Authority in connection with the issuance and
carrying of the Bonds and all expenses reasonably incurred or advances reasonably made in the
exercise of the Authority’s rights or the performance of its obligations hereunder. Any fees,
expenses, reimbursements or other charges which the Authority may be entitled to receive from
the Borrower hereunder, if not paid when due, shall bear interest at the rate specified in Section
802.

Section 804. Matters to be Considered by Authority. In approving, concurring in or
consenting to action or in exercising any discretion or in making any determination under this
Agreement, the Authority may consider the interests of the public, which shall include the
anticipated effect of any transaction on tax revenues and employment, as well as the interests of
the other parties hereto and the Bondowners; provided, however, nothing herein shall be
construed as conferring on any person other than the other parties and the Bondowners any right
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to notice, hearing or participation in the Authority’s consideration, and nothing in this section
shall be construed as conferring on any of them any right additional to those conferred elsewhere
herein. Subject to the foregoing, the Authority will not unreasonably withhold any approval or
consent to be given by it hereunder.

Section 805. Actions by Authority. Any action which may be taken by the Authority
hereunder shall be deemed sufficiently taken if taken on its behalf by its Chairman, its Vice
Chairman or its Executive Director or by any other member, officer or agent whom it may
designate from time to time.

ARTICLE IX: THE BONDOWNERS

Section 901. Action by Bondowners. Any request, authorization, direction, notice,
consent, waiver or other action provided by this Agreement to be given or taken by the
Bondowners shall, except as otherwise expressly provided, require the concurrence of the
registered owners of Bonds representing more than fifty percent of the Outstanding principal
amount of the Bonds and may be contained in and evidenced by one or more writings of
substantially the same tenor signed by such Bondowners or their authorized representatives. In
taking or refraining from any such actions, each Bondowner may act in its sole and absolute
discretion. Proof of the execution of any such instrument, or of an instrument appointing any
such attorney, shall be sufficient for any purpose of this Agreement (except as otherwise herein
expressly provided) if made in the following manner, but the Authority or the Trustee may
nevertheless in its discretion require further or other proof in cases where it deems the same
desirable:

() The fact and date of the execution by any Bondowner or his attorney of
such instrument may be proved by the certificate, which need not be acknowledged or
verified, of an officer of a bank or trust company satisfactory to the Authority or to the
Trustee or of any notary public or other officer authorized to take acknowledgments of
deeds to be recorded in the state in which he purports to act, that the person signing such
request or other instrument acknowledged to him the execution thereof, or by an affidavit
of a witness of such execution, duly sworn to before such notary public or other officer.

(i)  The authority of the person or persons executing any such instrument on
behalf of a corporate Bondowner may be established without further proof if such
instrument is signed by a person purporting to be the president or a vice president of such
corporation with a corporate seal affixed and attested by a person purporting to be its
clerk or secretary or an assistant clerk or secretary.

The ownership of Bonds and the amount, numbers and other identification, and date of
holding the same shall be proved by the registration books.

Any request, consent or vote of the owner of any Bond shall bind all future owners of
such Bond. Bonds owned or held by or for the account of the Authority or the Borrower shall
not be deemed Outstanding Bonds for the purpose of any consent or other action by
Bondowners.
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Section 902. Proceedings by Bondowners. No Bondowner shall have any right to
institute any legal proceedings for the enforcement of this Agreement or any remedy hereunder
unless an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing of which the Trustee is required to
take notice under Subsection 701(d), the Bondowners have directed the Trustee to act and
furnished the Trustee indemnity as provided therein and have afforded the Trustee reasonable
opportunity to proceed, and the Trustee shall thereafter fail or refuse to take such action. Subject
to the foregoing, any Bondowner may by any available legal proceedings enforce and protect its
rights hereunder and under the laws of the State.

ARTICLE X: MISCELLANEQUS

Section 1001. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by the parties but without
Bondowner consent for any of the following purposes: (a) to subject additional property to the
lien of this Agreement; (b) to add to the obligations of the Borrower or to surrender or limit any
right or power of the Borrower; or (c) to cure any ambiguity or defect, or to add provisions
which are not inconsistent with this Agreement and which in either case do not materially
adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners.

Except as provided in the foregoing sentence, this Agreement may be amended by the
parties only with the written consent of the Bondowners holding a majority in outstanding
principal amount of; provided, however, no amendment of this Agreement may be made without
the unanimous written consent of the affected Bondowners for any of the following purposes: (1)
to extend the maturity of any Bond, (2) to reduce the principal amount or interest rate of any
Bond, (3) to make any Bond prepayable other than in accordance with the terms hereof, (4) to
create a preference or priority of any Bond or Bonds over any other Bond or Bonds, or (5) to
reduce the percentage of the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds required to be
represented by the Bondowners giving their consent to any amendment.

In connection with any amendment entered into pursuant to this Section 1001, the Trustee
shall receive a legal opinion from Bond Counsel, upon with the Trustee may conclusively rely,
that the amendment entered into is authorized or permitted by the terms of this Agreement in
compliance with all conditions precedent.

Section 1002. Successors and Assigns. The rights and obligations of the parties to this
Agreement shall inure to and be binding upon their respective successors and permitted assigns.

Section 1003. Notices. Any request, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or
other document provided by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed sufficiently
given if sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or delivered during business hours
as follows: (i) to the Authority at Two Pillsbury Street, Suite 201, Concord, New Hampshire
03301-4954 attention of Executive Director, (ii) to the Trustee at The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A., Attn: Corporate Trust, 135 Santilli Highway, AIM 026-0018, Everett,
Massachusetts 02149, (iii) to the Borrower at 25 Manchester Street, Merrimack, New Hampshire
03054, attention of Treasurer, and (iv) to the Bondowners at their addresses appearing in the
bond register, or, as to all of the foregoing, to such other address as the addressee shall have
given in writing to the one giving notice, and in the case of the Series C Bondowner at
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. Notice hereunder may be waived prospectively or retroactively by the
person entitled to the notice, but no waiver shall affect any notice requirement as to other
persons. All notices shall be effective upon receipt.

The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon instructions, including funds
transfer instructions (“Instructions”) given pursuant to this Agreement and delivered using
Electronic Means; provided, however, that the Authority or the Borrower, as the case may be,
shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers with the authority to
provide such Instructions (“Authorized Officers™) and containing specimen signatures of such
Authorized Officers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended by the Authority or the
Borrower, as the case may be, whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing. If
the Authority or the Borrower, as the case may be, elects to give the Trustee Instructions using
Electronic Means and the Trustee in its discretion elects to act upon such Instructions, the
Trustee’s understanding of such Instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Authority and the
Borrower each understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot determine the identity of the
actual sender of such Instructions and that the Trustee shall conclusively presume that directions
that purport to have been sent by an Authorized Officer listed on the incumbency certificate
provided to the Trustee have been sent by such Authorized Officer. The Authority and the
Borrower, as the case may be, shall be responsible for ensuring that only Authorized Officers
transmit such Instructions to the Trustee and that the Authority and the Borrower, as the case
may be, and all respective Authorized Officers are solely responsible to safeguard the use and
confidentiality of applicable user and authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys
upon receipt by the Authority and the Borrower, as the case may be. The Trustee shall not be
liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee’s reliance
upon and compliance with such Instructions notwithstanding such directions conflict or are
inconsistent with a subsequent written instruction. The Authority and the Borrower each agrees:
(1) to assume all risks arising out of the use of Electronic Means to submit Instructions to the
Trustee, including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized Instructions,
and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is fully informed of the
protections and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting Instructions to the
Trustee and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting Instructions than the
method(s) selected by the Authority or the Borrower, as the case may be; (iii) that the security
procedures (if any) to be followed in connection with its transmission of Instructions provide to
it a commercially reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs and
circumstances; and (iv) to notify the Trustee immediately upon learning of any compromise or
unauthorized use of the security procedures.

“Electronic Means” shall mean the following communications methods: S.W.LF.T., e-
mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization
codes, passwords and/or authentication keys issued by the Trustee, or another method or system
specified by the Trustee as available for use in connection with its services hereunder.

Section 1004. Agreement Not for the Benefit of Other Parties. This Agreement is not
intended for the benefit of and shall not be construed to create rights in parties other than the
Authority, the Borrower, the Trustee, the Paying Agent and the Bondowners.
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Section 1005. Severability. In case any provision of this Agreement or the Bonds shall
be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining
provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

Section 1006. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed and delivered in any
number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original; but such counterparts
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 1007. Captions. The captions and table of contents of this Agreement are for
convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

Section 1008. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the

State.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed
under seal as of the date stated above.

BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY (SEAL)
OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

By:

Executive Director

PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC. (SEAL)

By:

Title:

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A,, as Trustee (SEAL)

By:

Title:

S-1
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EXHIBIT A

Requisition No.__

Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire
Water Facility Revenue Bonds
(Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) Series 2015C

REQUISITION FOR PAYMENT FROM PROJECT FUND

To:  The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (the “Trustee”) under
the Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of , 1,2015 (the “Agreement”) among
the Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire (the “Authority”),
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (the “Borrower”) and the Trustee.

This requisition is made pursuant to Section 402 of the Agreement. Terms used in this
requisition shall have the meanings specified for them in the Agreement.

The Trustee is hereby authorized and directed to make payment from the Project Fund for
Project Costs or indebtedness incurred to pay Project Costs as follows:

Amount of Nature of
Payment/Reimbursement Goods/Property/Services Name and Address of Payee

The undersigned Borrower Representative hereby certifies to you in connection with such
payment requested by this requisition as follows:

1. After giving effect to the payment of the requisition, the use of all funds disbursed from
the Project Fund complies with the limitations contained in the Federal Tax Statement.

2. Such payment or reimbursement is for Series A Project Costs and the obligations have
not been the basis for a prior requisition which has been paid.

3. No Event of Default hereunder and no event or condition which, after notice or lapse of
time or both, would become an Event of Default hereunder exists.
A-1
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4. The payment or reimbursement requested by the requisition is due for work actually
performed or materials or property actually supplied prior to the date of the requisition.

Dated:

PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC.

By:

Borrower Representative

The undersigned hereby approves this requisition.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A,, as Trustee

By:

AM 43290021.4
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$
BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
WATER FACILITY REVENUE BONDS
(PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC. PROJECT) SERIES 2015A (AMT)

S ]
BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
WATER FACILITY REVENUE BONDS
(PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC. PROJECT) SERIES 2015B
(NON-AMT)

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The Business Finance Authority
of the State of New Hampshire

2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 201

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.
25 Manchester Street
Merrimack, New Hampshire 03054

The undersigned, TD Securities (USA) LLC (the “Underwriter”), offers to enter into the
following agreement with The Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire
(the “Authority”) and Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (the “Borrower”), which, upon acceptance of
this offer by the Authority and the Borrower, will be binding upon the Authority and the Borrower
and upon the Underwriter. This offer is made subject to acceptance of this Bond Purchase
Agreement by the Authority and the Borrower on or before 5:00 p.m., Boston, Massachusetts time,
on the date set forth in item 1 of Schedule A attached hereto (the “date hereof”). Terms used
herein and not otherwise defined shall have the same meanings assigned to them in the Official
Statement (as hereinafter defined).

1. Purchase Price. Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the respective
representations, warranties and covenants set forth herein, the Underwriter hereby agrees to
purchase from the Authority for offering to the public and the Authority hereby agrees to sell and
deliver to the Underwriter, all (but not less than all) of the Authority’s Water Facility Revenue
Bonds, Series 2015A (AMT) and Water Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2015B (Non-AMT)
(collectively, the “Series 2015 Bonds™) on the date set forth in item 4 of Schedule A attached
hereto or such other date as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the parties hereto (the “Date
of the Closing”). The Series 2015 Bonds will be issued pursuant to a Loan and Trust Agreement
dated as of 1, 2015 (the “Agreement”), by and among the Authority, the Borrower
and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”). The
aggregate principal amount of the Series 2015 Bonds, the date of the Series 2015 Bonds, the dates
of maturity of the Series 2015 Bonds, the principal amount of the Series 2015 Bonds due on each




maturity, the interest rates per annum for the Series 2015 Bonds due on each maturity, the public
offering prices and yields of, the sinking fund installments and the optional redemption terms for
the Series 2015 Bonds are set forth in item 2 of Schedule A attached hereto. The Series 2015
Bonds shall be subject to redemption as set forth in the Official Statement dated , 2015
(the “Official Statement™) relating to the Series 2015 Bonds and shall in all other respects be the
same Bonds described in the Official Statement. The purchase price to be paid by the Underwriter
for the Series 2015 Bonds shall be as set forth in item 3 of Schedule A attached hereto.

2. The Financing Documents. On the date hereof, the Authority and the Borrower
shall deliver to the Underwriter a copy of the form of the Agreement and the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement dated , 2015 (the “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”), intended
to be executed between the Borrower and the Trustee (the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the
Agreement and this Bond Purchase Agreement are collectively referred to as the “Financing
Documents”™).

3. Public Offering. The Underwriter agrees to make a bona fide public offering of all
the Series 2015 Bonds at a price not in excess of the respective public offering prices nor below the
yields, as applicable, set forth in item 2 of Schedule A attached hereto. On or before the Date of
the Closing, the Underwriter shall furnish to the Authority a certificate acceptable to Hinckley,
Allen & Snyder LLP (“Bond Counsel™), signed by the Underwriter setting forth the issue prices of
and the calculation of the yield on the Series 2015 Bonds for purposes of Section 148 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) and stating that the Authority, the Borrower and
Bond Counsel may rely on such certification for purposes of determining compliance with
Section 103 of the Code.

4. Official Statement. In order to enable the Underwriter to comply with Rule 15¢2-
12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Rule”) and rules of the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), the Borrower shall provide to the Underwriter sufficient
copies of the Official Statement, which the Authority (only with respect to the statements therein
with respect to the Authority under the captions “THE AUTHORITY” and “LITIGATION”
(solely as it pertains to the Authority)) and the Borrower (with respect to all other statements
therein) deem final as of its date, in sufficient time to accompany any confirmation that requires
payment from any customer and in any event within seven (7) business days after the date of this
Bond Purchase Agreement and in no event later than two (2) business days prior to the Date of
the Closing. The Authority and the Borrower hereby authorize the use of the Official Statement by
the Underwriter in connection with the public offering and sale of the Series 2015 Bonds. The
Authority and the Borrower hereby ratify and confirm the use by the Underwriter prior to the date
hereof of the Preliminary Official Statement dated , 2015 (the “Preliminary Official
Statement”) in connection with the public offering of the Series 2015 Bonds. The final Official
Statement shall be substantially the same (except for insertions, deletions and changes
contemplated in the Preliminary Official Statement and this Bond Purchase Agreement) as the
Preliminary Official Statement and shall contain only those substantive changes as are approved by
the Underwriter, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Preliminary Official
Statement, as of its date, was deemed final (i) by the Authority (but only with respect to the
statements therein with respect to the Authority under the captions “THE AUTHORITY” and
“LITIGATION” (solely as it pertains to the Authority)) and (ii) by the Borrower (with respect to
all other statements therein) for purposes of the Rule, except for permitted omissions set forth in
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the Rule.

The Underwriter agrees to provide a certificate at Closing (as defined herein) stating that it
has filed a copy of the Official Statement with the MSRB in accordance with the Rule and stating
whether or not the Underwriter retains any unsold balance of Series 2015 Bonds for sale to the
public. In the event that it does so retain for sale to the public any such Bonds as of the Closing,
the Underwriter agrees to promptly notify the Authority and the Borrower of the date on which the
Underwriter no longer retains any unsold balance of the Series 2015 Bonds for sale to the public.

5. Authority’s Representations and Warranties. The Authority hereby represents and
warrants to, and agrees with each of the Borrower and the Underwriter as follows, all of which
shall survive the Closing:

(a) The Authority is a body corporate and politic, created and existing under
New Hampshire RSA 162-A with the power to issue revenue bonds under RSA 162-1 (collectively,
the “Act™). The Authority is authorized to issue the Bonds and loan the proceeds to the Borrower
for the purpose of financing certain facilities used for the furnishing of water, to execute and
deliver this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Agreement, to perform its obligations under each,
and to issue and sell the Series 2015 Bonds pursuant hereto and to the Agreement.

(b) The Authority has taken all necessary action and has complied with all
provisions of the Constitution and laws of the State of New Hampshire, including the Act,
including but not limited to the making of the findings required by the Act, required to make this
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Agreement and the Series 2015 Bonds the valid obligations they
purport to be; and when executed and delivered by the parties hereto and thereto, this Bond
Purchase Agreement and the Agreement will constitute legal, valid and binding agreements of the
Authority and will be enforceable against the Authority in accordance with their respective terms,
except as enforceability may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with
general equitable principles and to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
and other laws for the relief of debtors heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent that the same
may be constitutionally applied and except as any indemnification or contribution provisions
thereof may be limited under applicable securities laws.

(©) When delivered to and paid for by the Underwriter in accordance with the
terms of this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Agreement, the Series 2015 Bonds will constitute
legal, valid and binding special obligations of the Authority enforceable against the Authority in
accordance with their terms, except as enforceability may be subject to the exercise of judicial
discretion in accordance with general equitable principles and to applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws for the relief of debtors heretofore or
hereafter enacted to the extent that the same may be constitutionally applied, and will be entitled to
the benefits of the Agreement.

(d) The Authority makes no representation or warranty that interest on the
Series 2015 Bonds is or will continue to be exempt from federal or state income taxation.

(e) If, after the date of this Bond Purchase Agreement and until the earlier of (1)
ninety (90) days after the Date of the Closing or (ii) the time when the Official Statement is
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available to any person from the MSRB, but in no case less than twenty-five (25) days after the
Date of the Closing, provided, however, that if the Underwriter provides a certificate on the Date
of the Closing stating that it still holds Series 2015 Bonds for distribution to the public then such
foregoing periods shall be extended until twenty-five (25) days after the “end of the underwriting
period” (as such phrase is defined in the Rule), the Authority becomes aware of any event that
would cause the information appearing (i) under the caption “THE AUTHORITY” or (ii) under the
caption “LITIGATION” (solely as it pertains to the Authority) in the Official Statement to contain
any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading,
the Authority agrees to notify the Underwriter (and for purposes of this paragraph to provide the
Underwriter with such information as it may from time to time request), and if in the opinion of the
Underwriter such event requires the preparation and publication of a supplement or amendment to
the Official Statement, at the Borrower’s expense to supplement or amend the Official Statement in
a form and manner approved by the Underwriter, the Authority and the Borrower and to furnish at
the Borrower’s expense to the Underwriter a reasonable number of copies of such supplement or
amendment.

® With respect to information therein under the headings “THE
AUTHORITY” and “LITIGATION,” insofar as the information under such caption relates solely
to the Authority, the Official Statement is as of the date hereof and will be as of the Date of the
Closing true, correct and complete in all material respects and did not, does not and will not omit
any material statement which should be included therein for the purpose for which the Official
Statement is to be used, or which is necessary to make the statements as to such matters contained
therein not misleading in light of the circumstances in which they were made. The Authority has
assumed no responsibility for providing or reviewing any information contained in the Official
Statement other than under the captions “THE AUTHORITY” and “LITIGATION” insofar as they
relate to the Authority.

(g) The Authority will, but at the expense of the Underwriter, furnish such
information, execute such instruments and take such other action in cooperation with the
Underwriter as the Underwriter may reasonably request to qualify the Series 2015 Bonds for offer
and sale under the Blue Sky or other securities laws and regulations of such states and other
jurisdictions of the United States as the Underwriter may designate; provided, however, that the
Authority will not be required to qualify as a foreign corporation or to file any general or special
consents to service of process under the laws of any state.

6. Borrower Representations and Warranties. As an inducement to the Authority and
the Underwriter to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement and to make the offering of the Series
2015 Bonds herein contemplated, the Borrower hereby represents, warrants and agrees with each
of the Authority and the Underwriter as follows, all of which shall survive the Closing:

(a) The Borrower is a corporation formed, in existence and in good standing
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire. The Borrower is a “water facility” and an “eligible
facility” within the meaning of the Act and has the corporate power and authority to execute and
deliver the Financing Documents and to undertake and perform its obligations thereunder.

(b) The Borrower has duly authorized all necessary action to be taken by it for:
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(1) the loan to the Borrower of the proceeds from the issuance and delivery of the Series 2015
Bonds by the Authority upon the terms set forth in this Bond Purchase Agreement and in the
Official Statement; (ii) the approval of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official
Statement and the use by the Underwriter of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official
Statement in connection with the sale of the Series 2015 Bonds; and (iii) the execution, delivery
and performance by the Borrower of and under the Financing Documents and any and all such
other agreements and documents as may be required to be executed, delivered and received by the
Borrower in order to carry out the transactions contemplated by such instruments and by the
Official Statement. On the Date of the Closing, the Financing Documents will have been duly
executed and delivered by the Borrower and, assuming the due authorization, execution and
delivery of such instruments by the other parties thereto and their authority to perform such
instruments, will constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Borrower enforceable in
accordance with their respective terms, except as the enforceability thereof may be limited by laws
relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws of general application
affecting the rights of creditors and general principles of equity and except as any indemnification
or contribution provisions thereof may be limited under applicable securities laws.

(©) The execution and delivery of, and compliance with the terms and
conditions of, the Financing Documents, and the carrying out and consummation of the
transactions contemplated thereby and by the Official Statement, did not at the time of such
execution and delivery, do not and will not violate or conflict with any of the terms and provisions
of any statute, or any rule, order, regulation, judgment or decree of any court, agency, or other
governmental or administrative board or body to which the Borrower is subject, or conflict with or
constitute a breach of or a default under any provision of the Borrower’s articles of organization or
by-laws, or any material agreement, indenture, mortgage, lease, deed of trust, or other instrument
to which the Borrower is a party or by which the Borrower or its properties are bound, except for
violations, conflicts, breaches or defaults that would not have a material adverse effect on the
Borrower.

(d) The information under the headings “INTRODUCTION” (with respect to
the Borrower and the Project), “PLAN OF FINANCING,” “SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS,”
“BONDOWNERS’ RISKS” (as such statements relate to the Borrower or the Project),
“LITIGATION” (with respect to the Borrower), “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” (with respect to
the Borrower), “MISCELLANEOQUS” (with respect to the Borrower’s financial statements) and in
Appendices A and B of the Official Statement is, as of the date hereof, and will be, as of the Date
of the Closing, true and correct in all material respects and did not, does not and will not omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading. The Borrower has approved and consents to the use of the
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement by the Underwriter.

(e) The Borrower has previously complied with any undertaking in a written
contract or agreement of the type specified in paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule.

® Since December 31, 2014, there has been no material adverse change in the
financial position of the Borrower not disclosed in writing to the Underwriter, nor has the
Borrower incurred any material liabilities other than liabilities that have been incurred in the
ordinary course of business or that are set forth in or contemplated by the Official Statement.
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7. _Covenants of the Borrower. The Borrower covenants and agrees with the Authority
and the Underwriter as follows:

(a) If either during (i) the period between the date of this Bond Purchase
Agreement and the Date of the Closing or (ii) the period between the Date of the Closing and the
date ninety (90) days after the end of the underwriting period (as defined in the Rule) (or, if earlier,
the date by which the Official Statement is available to any person from the MSRB, but in no event
less than twenty-five (25) days after the end of the underwriting period (as defined in the Rule)),
any event shall occur as a result of which it is necessary to amend or supplement the Official
Statement in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances when the Official
Statement is delivered to a prospective purchaser true and correct in all material respects and with
no omission of material facts necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the
circumstances in which they were made not misleading, the Borrower will cooperate in the
preparation of a revised Official Statement or amendments or supplements to the Official
Statement so that the statements in the Official Statement, as revised, or the Official Statement, as
so amended or supplemented, will not, in light of the circumstances when such Official Statement
is delivered to a prospective purchaser, be misleading. As required by Section 4 hereof, the
Underwriter shall promptly notify the Borrower (i) if the date of the end of the underwriting period
(as defined in the Rule) is more than ninety (90) days after the Closing Date, and (ii) regardless of
the notice in clause (i) of this sentence, the date that is the end of the underwriting period. In the
absence of such notice, the Borrower shall deem the end of the underwriting period to be ninety
(90) days after the Date of the Closing; The Borrower will cooperate with the Underwriter and its
counsel in any endeavor to qualify the Series 2015 Bonds for offering and sale under the
securities or “Blue Sky” laws of such jurisdictions of the United States as the Underwriter may
request; provided, however, that the Borrower shall not be required to qualify as a foreign
corporation or to file a general written consent to suit or service of process in any jurisdiction;

(b) between the date hereof and the Date of the Closing, the Borrower will not
take any action that would cause the representations and warranties contained in Section 6 of this
Bond Purchase Agreement to be untrue as of the Date of the Closing. On the Date of the Closing,
the Borrower shall deliver or cause to be delivered all opinions, certificates and other documents to
be delivered by it or on its behalf as provided for in this Bond Purchase Agreement, and to deliver
such additional certificates and other documents as the Underwriter or the Authority may
reasonably request to evidence performance of or compliance with the provisions of this Bond
Purchase Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Official Statement, and the
Financing Documents, all such certificates and other documents to be reasonably satisfactory in
form and substance to the Underwriter and the Authority;

©) in order to permit the Underwriter to satisfy its obligations under Section 4
of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Borrower will furnish to the Underwriter copies of the
Official Statement and any amendments and supplements thereto, in each case as soon as
practicable, but in any event in the case of the Official Statement within seven (7) Business Days
of the date of this Bond Purchase Agreement and in no event less than two (2) business days prior
to Closing, which copies shall be furnished at a minimum in such quantities as shall be reasonably
requested by the Underwriter to fulfill its obligations under paragraph (b)(4) of Rule 15¢2-12;



(d) the Borrower shall indemnify and hold harmless (except to the extent, if
any, that a court of competent jurisdiction determines that such agreement to indemnify and hold
harmless is not enforceable as a result of being contrary to law or public policy) the Authority,
each officer, director, employee and agent of the Authority and each person, if any, who controls
(as such term is defined in Section 15 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”), or Section 20 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™))
any of such parties (hereinafter collectively called the “Authority Indemnified Parties”), against
any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, costs or expense whatsoever arising out of: (i) any
breach by the Borrower of any of its representations and warranties as set forth in Section 6 hereof;,
and (ii) any allegation that there is as of the date hereof or as of the Date of the Closing any untrue
statement of a material fact contained in the Indemnified Information (as defined below) or the
omission therefrom of any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made in light of
the circumstances under which they were made not misleading. In case any claim shall be made or
action brought against one or more of the Authority Indemnified Parties, in respect of which
indemnity may be sought against the Borrower, the Authority Indemnified Party or Parties shall
promptly notify the Borrower in writing setting forth the particulars of such claim or action and the
Borrower shall assume the defense thereof including the retention of counsel and the payment of
all reasonable expenses. The Authority Indemnified Party or Parties shall have the right to retain
separate counsel in any such action and to participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and
expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such Authority Indemnified Party unless (1) the
retention of such counsel has been specifically authorized by the Borrower, (2) the Authority
Indemnified Party shall have reasonably concluded that there may be a conflict of interest between
it and the Borrower in the conduct of the defense of such action, or (3) the Borrower shall not in
fact have employed counsel reasonably satisfactory to such Authority Indemnified Party. For the
purposes of this paragraph and the next succeeding paragraph, the term “Indemnified Information”
shall mean the statements and information contained in the Official Statement under the captions:
“INTRODUCTION” (with respect to the Borrower and the Project), “PLAN OF FINANCING,”
“SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS,” “BONDOWNERS’ RISKS” (as such statements relate to
the Borrower or the Project), “LITIGATION” (with respect to the Borrower), “CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE” (with respect to the Borrower), “MISCELLANEQUS” (with respect to the
Borrower’s financial statements) and in Appendices A and B, except for any projections and
opinions of any entity other than the Borrower. The Borrower shall not be liable for any settlement
of such action effected without its consent, but if settled with the consent of the Borrower, or if
there is final judgment for the plaintiff in any such action with or without consent, the Borrower
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Authority Indemnified Party or Parties from and against
any loss or liability by reason of settlement or judgment to the extent set forth in this paragraph.
The indemnity provided in this paragraph includes reimbursement for expenses reasonably
incurred by the Authority Indemnified Parties in investigating the claim and in defending it if the
Borrower declines to assume the defense. The indemnity provided in this paragraph shall survive
the Closing (as defined in Section 9 hereof); and

(e) the Borrower shall indemnify and hold harmless (except to the extent, if
any, that a court of competent jurisdiction determines that such agreement to indemnify and hold
harmless is not enforceable as a result of being contrary to law or public policy) the Underwriter,
each officer, director, employee and agent of the Underwriter and each person, if any, who controls
(as such term is defined in Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act) any
of such parties (hereinafter collectively called the “Underwriter Indemnified Parties™), against any
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and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, costs or expense whatsoever arising out of: (i) any
breach by the Borrower of any of its representations and warranties as set forth in Section 6 hereof:
or (ii) any allegation that there is any untrue statement of a material fact contained in the
Indemnified Information or the omission therefrom of any material fact necessary in order to make
the statements made in light of the circumstances under which they were made not misleading. In
case any claim shall be made or action brought against one or more of the Underwriter Indemnified
Parties, in respect of which indemnity may be sought against the Borrower, the Underwriter
Indemnified Party or Parties shall promptly notify the Borrower in writing setting forth the
particulars of such claim or action and the Borrower shall assume the defense thereof including the
retention of counsel and the payment of all reasonable expenses; provided, however, that failure to
so notify the Borrower (1) will not relieve the Borrower from its liability unless and to the extent it
did not otherwise learn of such action and such failure results in the forfeiture by the Borrower of
substantial rights and defenses; and (2) will not, in any event, relieve the Borrower from any
obligations to the Underwriter Indemnified Party or Parties other than the indemnification
obligation. The Underwriter Indemnified Party or Parties shall have the right to retain separate
counsel in any such action and to participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of
such counsel shall be at the expense of such Underwriter Indemnified Party unless (1) the retention
of such counsel has been specifically authorized by the Borrower, (2) the Underwriter Indemnified
Party shall have reasonably concluded that there may be a conflict of interest between it and the
Borrower in the conduct of the defense of such action, or (3) the Borrower shall not in fact have
employed counsel reasonably satisfactory to such Underwriter Indemnified Party. The Borrower
shall not be liable for any settlement of such action effected without its consent, but if settled with
the consent of the Borrower, or if there is final judgment for the plaintiff in any such action with or
without consent, the Borrower agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Underwriter Indemnified
Party or Parties from and against any loss or liability by reason of settlement or judgment to the
extent set forth in this paragraph. The indemnity provided in this paragraph includes
reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred by the Underwriter Indemnified Parties in
investigating the claim and in defending it if the Borrower declines to assume the defense. The
indemnity provided in this paragraph shall survive the Closing.

7A.  The Underwriter shall indemnify and hold harmless (except to the extent, if any,
that a court of competent jurisdiction determines that such agreement to indemnify and hold
harmless is not enforceable as a result of being contrary to law or public policy) (a) the Authority
Indemnified Parties and (b) the Borrower, each officer, director, employee and agent of the
Borrower and each person, if any, who controls (as such term is defined in Section 15 of the
Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act) the Company (the “Borrower Indemnified
Parties™), against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, costs or expense whatsoever
arising out of any allegation that there is any untrue statement of a material fact contained in the
Official Statement under the Caption “UNDERWRITING” or the omission therefrom of any
material fact necessary in order to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under
which they were made not misleading. In case any claim shall be made or action brought against
one or more of the Authority Indemnified Parties or one or more of the Borrower Indemnified
Parties, in respect of which indemnity may be sought against the Underwriter, the Authority
Indemnified Party or Parties or Borrower Indemnified Party or Parties, as the case may be, shall
promptly notify the Underwriter in writing setting forth the particulars of such claim or action and
the Underwriter shall assume the defense thereof including the retention of counsel and the
payment of all reasonable expenses. The Authority Indemnified Party or Parties or Borrower
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Indemnified Party or Parties, as the case may be, shall have the right to retain separate counsel in
any such action and to participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel
shall be at the expense of such Authority Indemnified Party or Parties or Borrower Indemnified
Party or Parties, as the case may be, unless (1) the retention of such counsel has been specifically
authorized by the Underwriter, (2) the Authority Indemnified Party or Borrower Indemnified Party,
as the case may be, shall have reasonably concluded that there may be a conflict of interest
between it and the Underwriter in the conduct of the defense of such action, or (3) the Underwriter
shall not in fact have employed counsel reasonably satisfactory to such Authority Indemnified
Party or Borrower Indemnified Party, as the case may be,. The Underwriter shall not be liable for
any settlement of such action effected without its consent, but if settled with the consent of the
Underwriter, or if there is final judgment for the plaintiff in any such action with or without
consent, the Underwriter agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Authority Indemnified Party
or Parties or Borrower Indemnified Party or Parties, as the case may be, from and against any loss
or liability by reason of settlement or judgment to the extent set forth in this paragraph. The
indemnity provided in this paragraph includes reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred by
the Authority Indemnified Party or Parties or Borrower Indemnified Party or Parties, as the case
may be, in investigating the claim and in defending it if the Underwriter declines to assume the
defense. The indemnity provided in this paragraph shall survive the Closing.

7B.  (a) In order to provide for just and equitable contribution in circumstances in which
the indemnity agreement provided for in Section 7(d) above is for any reason held to be
unavailable to the Authority in accordance with its terms, the Borrower and the Authority shall
contribute to the aggregate losses, liabilities, claims, damages and expenses of the nature
contemplated by said indemnity agreement incurred by the Borrower and the Authority in such
proportions such that the Authority is responsible for that portion represented by the percentage
that the Authority’s issuance expenses (including legal, administrative, financing, and incidental
expenses of the Authority) bears to the initial public offering price appearing on the cover page of
the Official Statement and the Borrower is responsible for the balance. In order to provide for just
and equitable contribution in circumstances in which the indemnity agreement provided for in
Section 7(e) above is for any reason held to be unavailable to the Underwriter in accordance with
its terms, the Borrower and the Underwriter shall contribute to the aggregate losses, liabilities,
claims, damages and expenses of the nature contemplated by said indemnity agreement incurred by
the Borrower and the Underwriter in such proportions such that the Underwriter is responsible for
that portion represented by the percentage that the Underwriter’s discount on the sale of the Series
2015 Bonds bears to the initial public offering price appearing on the inside cover page of the
Official Statement and the Borrower is responsible for the balance; provided, however, that no
person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities
Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent
misrepresentation. In addition, each person, if any, who controls either of the Authority or the
Underwriter within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act shall have the same rights to
contribution as the Authority or the Underwriter, as applicable.

(b) In order to provide for just and equitable contribution in circumstances in which the
indemnity agreement provided for in paragraph 7A above is for any reason held to be unavailable
to the Authority or the Borrower, as the case may be, in accordance with its terms, the Underwriter,
on the one hand, and the Authority or the Borrower, as the case may be, on the other hand, shall
contribute to the aggregate losses, liabilities, claims, damages and expenses of the nature
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contemplated by said indemnity agreement incurred by the Authority or the Borrower, as the case
may be, and the Underwriter in such proportions such that the Underwriter is responsible for that
portion represented by the percentage that the Underwriter’s discount on the sale of the Series 2015
Bonds bears to the initial public offering price appearing on the inside cover page of the Official
Statement and the Authority or the Borrower, as the case may be, is responsible for the balance.

7C.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this Bond Purchase Agreement to the
contrary, no person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of
the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such
fraudulent misrepresentation. In addition, each person, if any, who controls the Authority, the
Underwriter or the Borrower within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act shall have the
same rights to contribution as the Authority, the Underwriter or the Borrower, as applicable

8. The Series 2015 Bonds shall be in fully registered form, and one typewritten Bond
in the aggregate principal amount of each maturity of each series of the Series 2015 Bonds shall be
registered initially in the name of CEDE & Co. as nominee of the Depository Trust Company
(G‘DTC”).

9. On the Date of the Closing which is the date set forth in item 4 of Schedule A
attached hereto, or such other date as shall have been mutually agreed upon, the Authority and the
Borrower will deliver to the Underwriter, by delivery of the Series 2015 Bonds to the Trustee as
custodial agent for DTC, the Series 2015 Bonds in fully registered definitive form, duly executed
and authenticated, together with the other documents hereinafter mentioned, and the Underwriter
will accept such delivery and pay the purchase price of the Series 2015 Bonds as set forth in item 3
of Schedule A attached hereto. The Closing will be via the Fast Automated Securities Transfer
program “FAST” of DTC and the Series 2015 Bonds will be held by the Trustee, as custodial agent
for DTC. Payment for the Series 2015 Bonds as aforesaid shall be made at such place in Boston,
Massachusetts, as shall have been mutually agreed upon. This payment and delivery is herein
called the “Closing.” The Series 2015 Bonds will be made available for examination in Boston,
Massachusetts one (1) business day prior to the Closing.

10. The Underwriter’s obligations hereunder to purchase and pay for the Series 2015
Bonds shall be subject to the performance by the Authority and the Borrower of their respective
obligations to be performed hereunder at or prior to the Closing and the accuracy in all material
respects of the representations and warranties contained herein as of the date hereof and as of the
Closing and shall be subject to the following:

(a) that at the time of the Closing, (i) the Financing Documents shall be in full
force and effect, and shall not have been amended, modified, or supplemented except as may have
been agreed to by the Underwriter, the Authority and the Borrower, and the Official Statement
shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented except as may have been agreed to by the
Underwriter, the Authority, with respect to the information under the heading “THE
AUTHORITY” and “LITIGATION” insofar as such information relates to the Authority, and the
- Borrower; and (ii) that there shall have been taken in connection with the issuance of the Series
2015 Bonds such actions as, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, shall be necessary and appropriate in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby; and
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documents:

(b)  that at or prior to the Closing the undersigned shall receive the following

(1) executed copies of the Financing Documents;

(i)  an opinion of Hinckley, Allen & Snyder LLP, dated as of the Date
of the Closing, in substantially the form attached as Appendix D to the Official
Statement together with a reliance letter addressed to the Underwriter;

(iii))  a certificate, dated as of the Date of the Closing, of an authorized
officer of the Authority, to the effect that (A) no litigation is pending or, to his or
her knowledge, threatened against the Authority (either in state or federal courts)
seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, execution or delivery of the Series 2015
Bonds or in any manner questioning the proceedings or authority for the issuance of
them or affecting directly or indirectly the validity of the Series 2015 Bonds or of
any provisions made or authorized for their payment, including the Bond Purchase
Agreement, and the Agreement or contesting the existence of the Authority or the
title of any of its members or officers to their respective offices (but in lieu of such
certificate the Underwriter may accept an opinion of counsel to the Authority in
form and substance acceptable to the Underwriter, that in their opinion the issues
raised in any such pending or threatened litigation are without substance or that the
contentions of any plaintiffs therein are without merit); (B) that the representations
and warranties of the Authority contained in the Bond Purchase Agreement and the
Agreement are true and correct in all material aspects as of the Closing; (C) that the
resolutions with respect to the Series 2015 Bonds adopted by the Authority were
adopted in accordance with law and the by-laws of the Authority and remain in full
force and effect in the form initially adopted; and (D) that the Agreement, the Bond
Purchase Agreement and the Series 2015 Bonds were executed by duly authorized
officers of the Authority;

(iv)  asupplemental opinion of Bond Counsel, dated as of the Date of the
Closing and addressed to the Authority and the Underwriter, in form satisfactory to
the Authority, the Underwriter and their respective counsel;

(v)  the opinion, dated as of the Date of the Closing, of Rath, Young and
Pignatelli, P.C., counsel to the Borrower, addressed to the Authority, Bond Counsel
and the Underwriter, in form satisfactory to the Authority, the Underwriter and their
respective counsel;

(vi)  a certificate of the Borrower, dated the Date of the Closing and
signed by the President or other authorized officer of the Borrower, and in form and
substance reasonably satisfactory to the Underwriter, to the effect that (i) each of
the representations and warranties set forth in Section 6 hereof and in Article X of
the Agreement is true and correct on and as of the Date of the Closing in all
material respects; the Borrower is not in default with respect to any of the covenants
set forth in Section 7 hereof on and as of the Date of the Closing; and no Event of
Default by the Borrower under the Agreement or under any of the documents or
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agreements contemplated therein or under this Bond Purchase Agreement, and no
event which but for the lapse of time or service of notice or both would constitute
an Event of Default under the Agreement, has occurred and is continuing; (ii) since
the date hereof, there has been no material adverse change in the business or
property or financial condition of the Borrower, except as set forth in or
contemplated by the Official Statement; (iii) since the date of the Official
Statement, there has been no material change in, and no material change is
contemplated in, the identity or control of the Borrower and no judicial or
administrative action or proceeding is pending or threatened in writing affecting the
Borrower’s properties or assets which, if adversely determined, would materially
adversely affect the security for the Series 2015 Bonds; (iv) there is no litigation,
action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation of any kind against the Borrower
before or by any New Hampshire or federal court or governmental agency or body
pending or, to the best knowledge and belief of the Borrower, threatened in writing
(A) which in any case or in the aggregate, if adversely determined, would result in
any material liability on the part of the Borrower or inability of the Borrower to
conduct its business or perform the obligations contemplated in the Financing
Documents, or (B) wherein an adverse decision, ruling or finding would (a)
materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the Financing
Documents or the security for the Series 2015 Bonds, or (b) adversely affect the
validity or enforceability of the Series 2015 Bonds or the Financing Documents; (v)
the information contained in the Official Statement, as of its date and as of the Date
of the Closing, under the captions “INTRODUCTION” (with respect to the
Borrower and the Project), “PLAN OF FINANCING,” “SOURCES AND USES
OF FUNDS,” “BONDOWNERS’ RISKS” (as such statements relate to the
Borrower or the Project), “LITIGATION” (with respect to the Borrower),
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” (with respect to the Borrower),
“MISCELLANEOUS” (with respect to the Borrower’s financial statements) and in
Appendices A and B was and is true and correct, and did not and does not contain
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary
to make the statements therein not misleading in light of the circumstances under
which they were made;

(vii)  the Series 2015 Bonds;

(viii) copies of the resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Borrower authorizing the execution and delivery of the Financing Documents and
the approval of the Official Statement, certified by the Secretary of the Borrower as
having been duly adopted and being in full force and effect;

(ix)  copiesof: (i) any required approvals from the New Hampshire
Public Utilities Commission or the State; and (ii) any required municipal approvals;

(%) a copy of the resolutions adopted by the Authority authorizing the
execution, issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2015 Bonds, consent to the use
of the Official Statement and the execution and delivery of the Agreement and this
Bond Purchase Agreement, certified by an authorized officer of the Authority as
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having been duly adopted and being in full force and effect;

(xi)  a certificate, of one or more duly authorized officers of the Trustee,
dated the Date of the Closing, as to the due acceptance of the Agreement by the
Trustee and the due authentication and delivery of the Series 2015 Bonds by the
Trustee thereunder;

(xii) a certificate, dated the Date of the Closing of an officer of the
Trustee as to its due authorization and acceptance of duties with respect to the
Agreement;

(xiii) the opinion, dated the Date of the Closing, of Harrington & Vitale,
Ltd., addressed to the Underwriter, in form satisfactory to the Underwriter;

(xiv) a copy of the Preliminary Blue Sky Memorandum indicating the
jurisdictions in which the Series 2015 Bonds may be sold in compliance with the
“Blue Sky” or securities laws of such jurisdictions;

(xv)  acopy of the Final Blue Sky Letter; and

(xvi) other certificates of the Authority and the Borrower listed on a closing
memorandum to be approved by Bond Counsel and counsel to the Underwriter,
including any certificates or representations of the Borrower or other parties
required in order for Bond Counsel to deliver the opinion referred to in paragraph
(iv) above, as well as legal opinions, certificates, proceedings, instruments and
other documents as the counsel to the Underwriter or Bond Counsel may
reasonably request to evidence compliance by the Authority and the Borrower with
legal requirements, the truth and accuracy, in all material respects as of the time of
Closing, of the respective representations of the Authority and of the Borrower
contained herein and the due performance or satisfaction in all material respects by
the Authority and the Borrower at or prior to such time of all agreements then to be
performed and all conditions then to be satisfied by the Authority and the Borrower.

11. The Underwriter may terminate this Bond Purchase Agreement by notification in
writing or by facsimile to the Authority if at any time subsequent to the date hereof and at or prior
to the Closing:

(a) legislation shall be enacted by the State of New Hampshire or the United
States or introduced in or favorably reported to either the United States House of Representatives
or the United States Senate or a decision by a court of the United States or the United States Tax
Court shall be rendered or a ruling or regulation (final, temporary or proposed) shall be made by or
on behalf of the Treasury Department of the United States, or a release or official statement shall
be issued by the President or the Treasury Department, that makes the revenues or other income of
the general character expected to be derived by the Authority under the Agreement, or the interest
received on bonds of the general character of the Series 2015 Bonds (other than the Water Facility
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015B (Federally Taxable)), subject to federal income taxation or New
Hampshire personal income taxation which would have the effect of changing directly or indirectly
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the federal income taxation or New Hampshire personal income tax of interest on bonds of the
general character of the Series 2015 Bonds (other than the Water Facility Revenue Bonds, Series
2015B (Federally Taxable)) in the hands of the owners thereof, which in the reasonable opinion of
the Underwriter materially adversely affects the market price of the Series 2015 Bonds; or

(b) (1) the United States shall have become engaged in hostilities that have
resulted in a declaration of war or a national emergency or (ii) in the reasonable opinion of the
Underwriter, there shall have occurred any other outbreak of hostilities, local, national or
international, or an escalation thereof, the effect of which on the financial markets of the United
States is such as would, in the reasonable opinion of the Underwriter, affect materially and
adversely the ability of the Underwriter to market the Series 2015 Bonds; or

(c) there shall have occurred a general suspension of trading on the New York
Stock Exchange or a general banking moratorium shall have been declared by federal or New York
or New Hampshire state authorities; or

(d) any action is taken by the Securities and Exchange Commission or a court
of competent jurisdiction that would require registration of the Series 2015 Bonds under the
Securities Act in connection with the public offering thereof, or qualification of the Agreement
under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended; or

(e) any event or condition occurs that, in the reasonable judgment of the
Underwriter, renders untrue or incorrect, in any material respect as of the time to which the same
purports to relate, the information contained in the Official Statement, or that requires information
not reflected in such Official Statement to be reflected therein in order to make the statements and
information contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading in any material respect as of such time; provided that the Authority, the Borrower and
the Underwriter will use their best efforts to amend or supplement the Official Statement to reflect,
to the satisfaction of the Underwriter, such changes in or additions to the information contained in
the Official Statement.

If the obligations of the Underwriter to purchase and accept delivery of the Series
2015 Bonds shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this Bond Purchase Agreement, this
Bond Purchase Agreement shall terminate and no party shall be under further obligation hereunder;
except that the obligations for the payment of expenses, as provided in Section 12 hereof, shall
continue in full force and effect.

12. Payment of Expenses. All expenses and costs of the Authority incident to the
performance of its obligations in connection with the authorization, sale and delivery of the Series
2015 Bonds to the Underwriter, specifically including, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the cost of preparing, printing or reproducing the Series 2015 Bonds, the Preliminary
Official Statement, the Official Statement, the Financing Documents, and all ancillary papers, and
reasonable fees and expenses of Bond Counsel as previously agreed, shall be paid by the Borrower.

All expenses and costs incurred by the Borrower in connection with the transactions
contemplated hereunder shall be paid by the Borrower. In addition, if the Closing does not occur
as a result of the failure of the Borrower to meet its obligations hereunder, the Borrower shall
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reimburse the Underwriter for all reasonable out of pocket expenses, including but not limited to
reasonable counsel fees, including the cost of producing this Bond Purchase Agreement, the fees
and expenses for qualification of the Series 2015 Bonds for sale under state securities laws and
preparation of the Blue Sky memoranda, incurred by them in connection with the contemplated
transactions hereunder. The Underwriter shall pay all of the other costs and expenses incurred by
it in connection with the public offering and distribution of the Series 2015 Bonds.

In order to ensure compliance with applicable state and/or local ethics statutes that may
apply to employees of the Authority as well as federal securities regulations that may apply to
the Underwriter, the Authority shall be responsible for and upon presentation by the Underwriter
of a bill to the Authority shall pay any expenses on behalf of the Authority’s employees that are
incidental to implementing this Bond Purchase Agreement, including, but not limited to, meals,
transportation, lodging, and entertainment of those employees.

13. Underwriter’s Representations and Agreements.  The Underwriter hereby
represents, warrants and agrees as follows:

(a) The Underwriter has neither requested nor received from (nor does the
Underwriter expect to receive from or have reviewed by) the Authority or any of its directors,
officers, employees or agents any information with respect to the Borrower, the Project, the Series
2015 Bonds or the security purported to be afforded by the Agreement, or otherwise, except for
any such information that is included within the express representations and warranties of the
Authority in this Bond Purchase Agreement or the Agreement or under the captions “THE
AUTHORITY” and “LITIGATION” (solely with respect to the information pertaining to the
Authority) in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement or in any other
instrument delivered to the Underwriter by or on behalf of the Authority in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.

(b) The Underwriter has not relied and does not rely on any findings or action
taken by the Authority or the findings made by the Authority as required by the Act as constituting
information with respect to the Borrower, the Project, the Series 2015 Bonds or the security
purported to be afforded by the Agreement, or otherwise.

(c) Neither the Authority nor any of its directors, officers, employees or agents
shall have any responsibility to the Underwriter for the completeness of the information obtained
by the Underwriter from any source with respect to the Borrower, its assets, businesses,
circumstances, financial condition and properties, or with respect to the Project, the Series 2015
Bonds or the security purported to be afforded by the Agreement, or otherwise, or, subject only to
the exceptions stated in paragraph (a) above, for the accuracy of such information and the
Underwriter acknowledges that, as between itself and the Authority, the Underwriter assumes
responsibility for obtaining such information and making such investigation as it deems necessary
or desirable in connection with its decision to purchase the Series 2015 Bonds.

14.  Notices. Any notice or other communication to be given to the Authority under this
Bond Purchase Agreement may be given by mailing or delivering the same in writing to the
Authority at its address set forth above, Attn: Jack Donovan, Executive Director; any notice or
other communication to be given to the Borrower under this Bond Purchase Agreement may be
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given by mailing or delivering the same in writing to the Borrower at its address set forth above,
Attn: Larry Goodhue, Chief Financial Officer; and any notice or other communication to be given
to the Underwriter under this Bond Purchase Agreement may be given by mailing or delivering the
same in writing to TD Securities (USA) LLC, 200 State Street, 10™ Floor, Boston, Massachusetts
02109, Attn: Ike Papadopoulos, Director. All notices shall be effective upon delivery.

15.  Parties. This Bond Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
Authority, the Underwriter (including the successors or assigns of any Underwriter) and the
Borrower and no other person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. All of
the Authority’s and Borrower’s representations, warranties and agreements in this Bond Purchase
Agreement shall remain operative and in full force and effect, regardless of any investigation made
by or on behalf of any Underwriter and delivery of and payment for the Series 2015 Bonds
hereunder.

16. Underwriter’s Role. The parties to this Agreement acknowledge that the
Underwriter does not have a fiduciary duty to the Authority or the Borrower under the federal
securities laws and is, therefore, not required by federal law to act in the best interests of the
Authority or the Borrower without regard to its own financial or other interests.

17. Govermning Law. This Bond Purchase Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire and shall constitute an
instrument under seal thereunder.

18.  Counterparts. This Bond Purchase Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, all of which taken together shall be one and the same instrument, and any parties
hereto may execute this agreement by signing any such counterpart.

19.  Time of Execution. This Bond Purchase Agreement is executed at _.m. on
,2015.

*Signatures on next page*
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Very truly yours,

TD SECURITIES (USA) LLC

By: Ike Papadopoulos
Title: Director

Accepted and Agreed to as of the date hereof

THE BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY
OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Authorized Officer

Accepted and Agreed to as of the date hereof

PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC.

By:
Title:

[Signature page to Bond Purchase Agreement]
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SCHEDULE A

s ____
BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
WATER FACILITY REVENUE BONDS
(PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC. PROJECT) SERIES 2015A (AMT)

$
BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
WATER FACILITY REVENUE BONDS
(PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC. PROJECT) SERIES 2015B

(NON-AMT)
Item
Number
1. Date of this Bond Purchase Agreement — , 2015

2. (a) Aggregate principal amount of the Series 2015 Bonds —~ §
(b) Date of the Series 2015 Bonds — , 2015
() Years of maturity, principal amounts, interest rates, yields and public offering

prices of Series 2015 Bonds:
Series 2015A Bonds

Date of Principal Interest Yield Public
Maturity Amount Rate Offering Price

Serial Bonds

Tax-Exempt Term

Bond
Tax-Exempt Term
Bond
Series 2015B Bonds
Date of Principal Interest Yield Public
Maturity Amount Rate Offering Price
Term Bond

(e)(1) Sinking fund installments — The sinking fund installments for the Series 2015A
Bonds maturing on ,20__ shall be as follows:

Year Principal Amount

*Final maturity.



(e)(2) Sinking fund installments — The sinking fund installments for the Series 2015A

Bonds maturing on , 20__ shall be as follows:
Year Principal Amount
"Final maturity.

(e)(3) Sinking fund installments — The sinking fund installments for the Series 2015B

Bonds maturing on .20__ shall be as follows:
Year Principal Amount
“Final maturity.

® Optional Redemption of Series 2015A Bonds

The Series 2015A Bonds maturing on and after July 1, 20 are redeemable prior to
maturity on or after July 1, 20__, at the option of the Borrower by the written direction of
the Borrower to the Authority and the Trustee, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the Series 2015A Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest
to the redemption date.

() Optional Prepayments of the Series 2015B Bonds with Make-Whole Amount

The Borrower may, at its option, upon notice to each holder of Series 2015B Bonds in
accordance with the Agreement, prepay at any time all, or from time to time any part of,
the Series 2015B Bonds, pro rata and not in inverse order of maturity, in an amount not
less than 10% of the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2015B Bonds then
Outstanding in the case of a partial prepayment, at 100% of the principal amount so
prepaid, plus the Make-Whole Amount determined for the prepayment date with respect
to such principal amount. Two (2) Business Days prior to such prepayment, the Borrower
shall deliver to each holder of Series 2015B Bonds to be repaid a certificate of a
Borrower Representative specifying the calculation of such Make-Whole Amount as of
the specified prepayment date.

Purchase price of the Series 2015 Bonds — $ (par amount less underwriter’s
discount of $ fand plus net original issue premium of $ | [and minus

net original discount of $ ).

Date of the Closing — , 2015



New Hampshire Economic Conditions - June 2015

www.nhes.nh.gov/elmi

Not Seasonally Adjusted Estimates by Place of Residence

Labor Force Estimates Unemployment Rates by Region

New Hampshire Employment Security, Economic and Labor Market Information Bureau

New Hampshire Apr-1§ Mar-15 Apr-14 Not Seasonally Adjusted Apr-1§ Mar-18 Apr-14
Total Civilian Labor Force 738,800 746,030 735,120 United States 5.1% 5.6% 5.9%
Employed 711,600 714,860 702,720 Northeast 5.2% 5.8% 5.9%
Unemployed 27,200 31,170 32,400 New England 4.7% 5.4% 5 8%
Unemployment Rate 3.7% 4.2% 4.4% Connecticut 5.8% 6.5% 6.5%
United States (# in thousands) Apr-18 Mar-15 Apr-14 Maine 4.9% 5.6% 6.2%
Total Civilian Labor Force 156,554 156,318 154,845 Massachusetts 41% 5.0% 5.5%
Employed 148,587 147,635 145,767 New Hampshire 3.7% 4.2% 4.4%
Unemployed 7,966 8,682 9,079 Rhode Island 5.6% 6.9% 8.0%
Unemployment Rate 5.1% 5.6% 5.9% Vermont 37% 39% 4.3%
Mid Atlantic 5.4% 5.9% 5.9%
Unemployment Rates by Area F—" Py Yo P
Counties Apr-18 Mar-15 Apr-14 New York 5.5% 5.8% 6.1%
Belknap 3.6% 4.3% 4.3% Pennsylvania 4.7% 5.5% 54%
Carroll 4.1% 4.5% 5.0%
Cheshire 3.4% 4.0% 4.1%
Cods 6.1% 5.9% 6.8% Current month is preliminary;
Grafton 3.2% 3.4% 37% past months are revised
Hillsborough 3.8% 4.3% 4.6%
Mermimack 3.2% 3.8% 3.8%
Rockingham 3.9% 4.5% 4.7%
Strafford 3.2% 37% 3.9% April 2015 6
Sullivan 3.2% 3.4% 3.6% [:I Less than 4.0%
'&':;’ Labor Market Areas Apr16  Mar-16  Apr-14 [ ]40%t04.9%
1 Belmont, NH LMA 3.6% 4.6% 4.4%
2 Berlin NH Micropolitan NECTA 7.1% 6.7% 7.7% C‘ 5.0% 10 5.9%
3 Detenaro VTNH LMA 41%  47%  53% [_Jeo%toeon
4 Charlestown, NH LMA 3.1% 3.5% 3.3% - 7.0% and above
5 Claremont-Newport, NH LMA 3.3% 3.5% 3.7%
6 Colebrook, NH-VT LMA, NH Portion 6.1% 5.6% 7.5%
7  Concord, NH Micropolitan NECTA 3.1% 3.7% 3.6%
8 Conway, NH-ME LMA, NH Portion 4.3% 4.2% 4.9%
g9 Dover-Durham, NH-ME
Metropolitan NECTA, NH Portion 3.2% 3.7% 3.9%
10 Franklin, NH LMA 3.9% 4.7% 4.7%
11 Seabrook-Hampstead Area,
NH Portion, Haverhill-Newburyport-
Amesbury MA-NH NECTA Division 4.6% 5.4% 5.6%
12 Haverhill, NH LMA 4.0% 4.5% 4.5%
13 Hillsborough, NH LMA 3.4% 3.9% 3.9%
14 Keene, NH Micropolitan NECTA 3.4% 3.8% 4.0%
15 Laconia, NH Micropolitan NECTA 3.7% 4.1% 4.3%
16 Salem Town, NH Portion,
Lawrence-Metuen-Salem, MA-NH
NECTA Division 4.6% 5.1% 5.4%
17 I&?_ib%r;?tri\érr;lH-VT Micropolitan NECTA, 27% 2.9% 3.1%
18 Littelton, NH-VT LMA, NH Portion 4.2% 4.4% 4.7%
1g Pelham Town, NH Portion,
Lowell-Billerica-Chelmsford, MA-NH
NECTA Division 4.9% 5.8% 6.3%
20 Manchester, NH Metropolitan NECTA 3.5% 4.0% 4.3%
21 Meredith, NH LMA 3.4% 4.1% 4.3%
22 Nashua, NH-MA NECTA Division,
NH Portion 4.0% 4.5% 4.8%
23 New London, NH LMA 3.0% 3.4% 3.4% 3
24 Peterborough, NH LMA 3.6% 4.2% 4.3%
25 Plymouth, NH LMA 3.6% 3.6% 4.2% 19
26 Portsmouth, NH-ME Metropolitan o o N
NECTA, NH Portion 3.3% 3.8% 4.0% New Hampshire unemployment and labor force estimates are calculated using a regression modet which
27 _Raymond, NH LMA 3.5% 4.4% 4.5% | depends on Current Population Survey (CPS) estimates. City and town estimates are calculated using
28 Wolfeboro, NH LMA 4.0% 5.0% 5.1% | the Bureau of Labor Statistics “Handbook Method™ and then adjusted to the State levels.



Tab #7

- A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UP TO $25,500,000 BONDS FOR PROJECTS FOR
PENNICHUCK WATER WORKS, INC. IN AMHERST, BEDFORD, DERRY, EPPING,
HOLLIS, HUDSON, LITCHFIELD, MERRIMACK, MILFORD, NASHUA, NEWMARKET,
PLAISTOW, PITTSFIELD AND SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

WHEREAS, the Business Finance Authority (the “Authority”) of the State of New
Hampshire (the “State”) has been requested by Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (the “Borrower”)
to finance and refinance water facility projects in Amherst, Bedford, Derry, Epping, Hollis,
Hudson, Litchfield, Merrimack, Milford, Nashua, Newmarket, Plaistow, Pittsfield and Salem,
New Hampshire (collectively, the “Project”) by issuing up to $25,500,000 Bonds in one or more
series, which may be taxable or tax-exempt or a combination thereof under RSA 162-I (the
“Act”);

WHEREAS, the Authority took official action with respect to the Project by passing a
resolution on May 27, 2015 approving the issue of up to $25,500,000 of Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has been furnished with (a) information and materials about
the Borrower and the Project, (b) the proposed LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT among the
Authority, the Borrower and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee
(the “Agreement”) which is a combined financing and security document and which will secure
the Bonds, (c) the proposed BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Purchase Agreement”)
among the Authority, the Borrower and TD Securities (USA) LLC, as Underwriter for the Bonds
(the “Underwriter”), and (d) other information, materials and assurances deemed relevant by the
Authority;

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:

Section 1. Findings. On the basis of the information, materials and assurances received
by the Authority and considered by it at an open meeting, the Authority finds:

() Special Findings:
€)) The Project (which when completed will constitute the “Facility”) consists of:

(1) financing the construction of an approximately 32,300 square foot, one-story
building to serve as an operating facility for the Borrower to be located at #16 Daniel
Webster Highway (also described as: a certain parcel of land (the “Parcel™) situated in the
Town of Merrimack, County of Hillsborough, State of New Hampshire, being shown as
Tax Map 1D, Lot 1-5 on plan entitled Subdivision Plan (Map 1D, Lot 1), Daniel Webster
Highway and Manchester Street, Merrimack, New Hampshire, Record Owner: The
Southwood Corporation), such Parcel expected to be transferred from The Southwood
Corporation to the Borrower; and
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(I1) refinancing (A) Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works,
Inc. Project), Series 2005A and Series 2005B which financed and refinanced (i) upgrades
to water facilities in the Ledge Street area of Nashua, (ii) reconstruction of Supply Pond
Dam in Nashua, (iii) construction of a 20 million gallon per day raw water supplemental
pumping facility on an extension of Mast Road in Merrimack on the banks of the
Merrimack River and adjacent to a former Boston & Maine railroad bed and acquisition
and installation of equipment and furnishings therefor, (iv) laying of approximately 8,670
linear feet of 30-inch ductile iron transmission main at Mast Road, Daniel Webster
Highway, Henry Clay Drive, Manchester Street and Al Paul Lane in Merrimack, (v)
construction of a water treatment plant at 200 Concord Street in Nashua and a 1.7 million
gallon reservoir tank and related equipment off of Shakespeare Road in Nashua, and (vi)
replacement of Bowers Pond Dam and related site work at Bowers Pond in Nashua and
Merrimack, all of which are used by the Borrower for the purpose of increasing water
storage capacity for fire protection and maintaining constant water pressure in Merrimack
and Nashua; and (B) Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.
Project) 2005 Series A, which financed (i) upgrades to the Nashua Water Treatment Plant
at 200 Concord Street in Nashua to ensure compliance with SDWA regulations and to
provide operating redundancy, (ii) water supply improvements consisting of security
upgrades, watershed improvements and arsenic removal equipment at 200 Concord Street
in Nashua, (iii) water distribution improvements, including radio meter reading
equipment, water main replacement and rehabilitation at customer locations for the
Borrower’s service area throughout Nashua as shown on the Service Area Website (at
http://www.pennichuck.com/tefra.php (the “Service Area Website”), including but not
limited to in Nashua on Burke Street, Eldridge Street, West Hollis Street, Lovell Street,
Miami Street, Chestnut Street, Hamilton Street, Brook Street, Marquis Avenue, Rochete
Avenue, Verona Street, Sarasota Avenue, Manatee Street, Burritt Street, Thomas Street,
Dudley Street, Proctor Street, Mulvanity Street, Fernwood Street, Field Street, Fossa
Avenue, Pratt Street, Evergreen Street, Allds Street, Newbury Street, Gillis Street,
Zellwood Street, Revere Street, Morton Avenue, Temple Street, Worcester Street,
Scripture Street and Sheds Avenue) in conjunction with Nashua’s street and sewer
upgrade project and maintenance of the Bon Terrain Tank adjacent to Route 101A in
Ambherst and Fifield Tank #1 at Fifield Street and Orchard Avenue in Nashua, (iv) water
system operational improvements, including construction of the Armory Pumping Station
at Daniel Webster Highway and South Main Street in Nashua and expansion of the
Shakespeare High Pressure Service Area at Shakespeare Road in Nashua, acquisition of
rolling stock required to maintain water service and acquisition and installation of water
meters at 31 Will Street in Nashua, and (v) support systems improvements, consisting of
a geographical information system and customer account and billing software, all of
which are used by the Borrower for the purpose of improving its collection, purification,
storage and distribution of water in Amherst, Bedford, Derry, Epping, Hollis, Merrimack,
Milford, Nashua, Plaistow and Salem, New Hampshire; and

2) The establishment and operation of the Facility expands or maintains and
improves the collection, purification, storage or distribution of water for domestic, industrial,
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agricultural or other uses, and the water for such uses is to be available on reasonable demand to
members of the general public within the State.

(b) General Findings:
() The Project and the proposed financing of the Project are feasible;

2) The Borrower has the skills and financial resources necessary to operate the
Facility successfully;

3) The Agreement contains provisions so that under no circumstances will the
Authority be obligated directly or indirectly to pay Project costs, debt service or expenses of
operation, maintenance and upkeep of the Facility except from Bond proceeds or from funds
received under the Agreement, exclusive of funds received thereunder by the Authority for its
OWn use;

4 The Agreement does not purport to create any debt of the State with respect to the
Facility, other than a special obligation of the Authority acting on behalf of the State under the
Act; and

%) The proposed financing of the Project by the Authority and the proposed
operation and use of the Facility will serve one or more needs and implement one or more
purposes set forth in RSA 162-1:1, will preserve or increase the social or economic prosperity of
the State and one or more of its political subdivisions, and will promote the general welfare of
the State’s citizens.

Section 2. Determination and Recommendation. The Authority finds that the proposed
financing, operation and use of the Facility will serve a public use and provide a public benefit
and determines that the Authority’s financing of the Project will be within the policy of, and the
authority conferred by, the Act. The Authority recommends to Her Excellency, the Governor,
and The Honorable Council that they make findings and a determination similar to those set forth
above, and for that purpose the Executive Director is directed to transmit to the Governor and
Council copies of this resolution, the materials received by the Authority with respect to the
Project and any other documentation and information the Governor and Council may request.

Section 3. Authorization of the Agreement and the Purchase Agreement. The Authority
shall be a party to the Agreement (or multiple versions thereof providing for one or more series
of Bonds) and the Purchase Agreement (or multiple versions thereof providing for one or more
series of Bonds), and the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer and Executive Director are each
authorized to execute and deliver such Agreements and Purchase Agreements on behalf of the
Authority substantially in the forms presented to this meeting (being the draft dated July 9, 2015
with respect to the Agreement) but subject to such changes as the person so signing may
approve, his or her signature being conclusive identification of the documents as the Agreement
(with approved changes, if any) authorized by this resolution.

Section 4. Authorization and Sale of the Bonds. The Authority shall issue the Bonds in
one or more series, as taxable or tax-exempt or a combination thereof, pursuant to a public

3
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offering or a direct purchase or a combination thereof, in an aggregate amount of up to
$25,500,000 as provided in the one or more versions of the Agreement, at a fixed interest rate not
to exceed 10.00%, and as otherwise provided in the Agreement(s); the Chairman, or the Vice
Chairman, or the Treasurer, and any other member of the Board or the Executive Director, are
authorized to execute the Bonds; and the purchase of the Bonds by the Underwriter as provided
in the Purchase Agreement(s) is hereby authorized and approved. The Authority consents to the
use of one or more Official Statements, if applicable, substantially in the form of official
statements prepared for similar bond issues.

Section 5. Actions Not to Be Taken Until After Approval by Governor and Council. The
actions authorized by Sections 3 and 4 above (meaning specifically the execution of the
Agreement(s) and Purchase Agreement(s) and the issue of the Bonds) shall not be taken until
such time as the Governor and Council have made the findings and determination required by
Section 9 of the Act, it being the intent of the Authority that the various actions on its behalf
which are authorized above are subject to the action of the Governor and Council as required by
the Act.

Section 6. Bond Proceeds. The proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited with the
Trustee in accordance with the Agreement(s), or with a disbursing agent or a trustee in the case
of a direct purchase; and checks, if any, for such Bond proceeds may be appropriately endorsed
by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer or the Executive Director.

Section 7. Approval of Project. The establishment of the Project, all in accordance with
the provisions of the Agreement, is hereby approved for the purposes of, and to the extent
required by, the Act.

Section 8. Allocation of Private Activity Bond Limit. The Authority hereby allocates to
the Bonds up to $25,500,000 of the 2014 private activity bond limit pursuant to Section 146 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code’), and RSA 162-M, provided that
such allocation shall automatically expire on the last day of December 2015, unless on or before
such date the Bonds are issued.

Section 9. Other Actions by Officers. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer and the
Executive Director are each authorized to take all other actions and execute, deliver or receive
such instruments or certificates as they determine are necessary on behalf of the Authority in
connection with the whole transaction authorized by the preceding sections of this resolution, but
subject in all events to Section 5 hereof. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, such
officers may execute and deliver: receipts; financing statement forms under the U.C.C;
certificates as to facts, estimates and circumstances; information returns for governmental bond
issues for the purposes of federal income taxes; and certificates as to proceedings taken,
incumbency of officers or any other facts for any other purposes, including the certification
required by Section 149(e)(2) of the Code.

Section 10. Discharge of Lien. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer or Executive
Director, whenever requested by the owners of the Bonds, may join in the partial release or final
discharge of the lien of the applicable Agreement(s).
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Section 11. Authorization of Change of Dates. Without limiting any other discretion
conferred in this resolution, the date of the Agreement(s) and the date of the Bonds as executed
may be any date or dates acceptable to the Borrower, the Underwriter and the officers of the

Authority executing the Agreement(s) and the Bonds.

Section 12. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect upon its passage.

Passed: July 20, 2015
Attes(‘_ ;4
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Tab #8

SUMMARY OF REQUIRED STATUTORY FINDINGS OF THE
GOVERNOR AND COUNCIL UNDER RSA 162-1.

(The materials appearing in quotations below are extracts from RSA 162-1:9. Ellipses indicate
deleted provisions relating to pollution control projects or other matters that are not relevant to

this transaction.)
* * *

Special Findings

“(1)  For any project, the governor and council shall specify the type of facility and
shall find that the project to be financed is within the definition of the (type of facility) and may
be financed under this chapter;”

The Project consists of (A) the financing of projects as described on Schedule A attached hereto,
and (B) the refinancing of projects as described on Schedule B attached hereto, all of which will
be owned, operated and used by Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (and any affiliates) (the
“Borrower”) for the purpose of expanding, maintaining or improving the collection, purification,
storage or distribution of water for domestic, industrial, agricultural or other uses in Amherst,
Bedford, Derry, Epping, Hollis, Hudson Litchfield, Merrimack, Milford, Nashua, Newmarket,
Pittsfield, Plaistow and Salem, New Hampshire (collectively, the “Locations™). The Project is
within the definition of “Water facility” in the Act and may be financed and refinanced under the
Act; and

* * *

“(2)  Ifthe facility is a water facility, the governor and council shall find that the
establishment and operation of the facility will expand or maintain and improve the collection,
purification, storage or distribution of water for domestic, industrial, agricultural, or other uses,
and that the water for such uses is to be available on reasonable demand to members of the
general public. . .”

The Project enables the Borrower to finance and refinance capital improvements to the water
supply and water distribution systems at water facility projects at the Locations and therefor will
expand or maintain and improve the collection, purification, storage and distribution of water.

* * *

General Findings

“For any project, the governor and council shall find that:

O The project and the proposed financing of the project are feasible;”
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Assured Guaranty has indicated an interest in issuing a municipal bond insurance to support the
Bonds. TD Securities (USA) LLC has agreed to underwrite the Bonds (Tab #5). The application
of the Borrower, including financial statements, also supports the finding (Tab #3).

* * *

“(2)  The proposed user has the skills and financial resources necessary to operate the
facility successfully;”

The materials relating to the Borrower under Tab #3 support this finding.

* * *

“(3)  The financing and security documents contain provisions so that under no
circumstances will the authority be obligated directly or indirectly to pay project costs, debt
service or expenses of operation, maintenance and upkeep of the facility except from bond
proceeds or from funds received under the financing or security documents, exclusive of funds
received under the documents by the authority for its own use;”

The LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) (Tab #4) is a combined
financing document and security document. Section 801 of the Agreement contains an express
statement to the effect required; Section 304 of the Agreement obligates the Borrower to pay all
debt service on the Bonds when due; and Section 407 requires the Borrower to pay taxes and
costs of operation, maintenance and upkeep.

* * *

“(4)  Neither the financing documents nor the security documents purport to create any
debt of the state with respect to the facility, other than a special obligation of the authority acting
on behalf of the state under this chapter; and”

Express language to this effect is found in the Agreement under Tab #4 in Section 801.
Also, see the language in capital letters in the Bond form in Section 301.

* * *

“(5)  The proposed financing of the project by the authority and the proposed
operation and use of the facility will serve one or more needs and implement one or more
purposes set forth in RSA 162-1:1, will preserve or increase the social or economic prosperity of
the state and one or more of its political subdivisions, and will promote the general welfare of the
state’s citizens.”

This finding can be based on all the materials as well as facts which are matters of general
knowledge.
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Ultimate Finding and Determination Required by the
First Paragraph of RSA 162-1:9

“. . . the proposed financing, operation and use of the facility will serve a public use and provide
a public benefit and . . . the authority’s financing of the project will be within the policy of, and
the authority conferred by, this chapter.”

The materials and information furnished and the preliminary findings described above support,
and enable the making of, the ultimate finding and determination.
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Schedule A

Financing the construction of an approximately 32,300 square foot, one-story building to serve as
an operating facility for the Borrower to be located at #16 Daniel Webster Highway, Merrimack (also
described as: a certain parcel of land (the “Parcel”) situated in the Town of Merrimack, County of
Hillsborough, State of New Hampshire, being shown as Tax Map 1D, Lot 1-5 on plan entitled
Subdivision Plan (Map 1D, Lot 1), Daniel Webster Highway and Manchester Street, Merrimack, New
Hampshire, Record Owner: The Southwood Corporation), such Parcel expected to be transferred from
The Southwood Corporation to the Borrower.
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Schedule B

Refinancing (A) Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project), Series
2005A and Series 2005B which financed and refinanced (i) upgrades to water facilities in the Ledge
Street area of Nashua, (ii) reconstruction of Supply Pond Dam in Nashua, (iii) construction of a 20
million gallon per day raw water supplemental pumping facility on an extension of Mast Road in
Merrimack on the banks of the Merrimack River and adjacent to a former Boston & Maine railroad bed
and acquisition and installation of equipment and furnishings therefor, (iv) laying of approximately 8,670
linear feet of 30-inch ductile iron transmission main at Mast Road, Daniel Webster Highway, Henry Clay
Drive, Manchester Street and Al Paul Lane in Merrimack, (v) construction of a water treatment plant at
200 Concord Street in Nashua and a 1.7 million gallon reservoir tank and related equipment off of
Shakespeare Road in Nashua, and (vi) replacement of Bowers Pond Dam and related site work at Bowers
Pond in Nashua and Merrimack, all of which are used by the Borrower for the purpose of increasing
water storage capacity for fire protection and maintaining constant water pressure in Merrimack and
Nashua; and (B) Water Facility Revenue Bonds (Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. Project) 2005 Series A,
which financed (i) upgrades to the Nashua Water Treatment Plant at 200 Concord Street in Nashua to
ensure compliance with SDWA regulations and to provide operating redundancy, (ii) water supply
improvements consisting of security upgrades, watershed improvements and arsenic removal equipment
at 200 Concord Street in Nashua, (iii) water distribution improvements, including radio meter reading
equipment, water main replacement and rehabilitation at customer locations for the Borrower’s service
area throughout Nashua as shown on the Service Area Website (at http://www.pennichuck.com/tefra.php
(the “Service Area Website”), including but not limited to in Nashua on Burke Street, Eldridge Street,
West Hollis Street, Lovell Street, Miami Street, Chestnut Street, Hamilton Street, Brook Street, Marquis
Avenue, Rochete Avenue, Verona Street, Sarasota Avenue, Manatee Street, Burritt Street, Thomas Street,
Dudley Street, Proctor Street, Mulvanity Street, Fernwood Street, Field Street, Fossa Avenue, Pratt Street,
Evergreen Street, Allds Street, Newbury Street, Gillis Street, Zellwood Street, Revere Street, Morton
Avenue, Temple Street, Worcester Street, Scripture Street and Sheds Avenue) in conjunction with
Nashua’s street and sewer upgrade project and maintenance of the Bon Terrain Tank adjacent to Route
101 A in Amherst and Fifield Tank #1 at Fifield Street and Orchard Avenue in Nashua, (iv) water system
operational improvements, including construction of the Armory Pumping Station at Daniel Webster
Highway and South Main Street in Nashua and expansion of the Shakespeare High Pressure Service Area
at Shakespeare Road in Nashua, acquisition of rolling stock required to maintain water service and
acquisition and installation of water meters at 31 Will Street in Nashua, and (v) support systems
improvements, consisting of a geographical information system and customer account and billing
software, all of which are used by the Borrower for the purpose of improving its collection, purification,
storage and distribution of water in Amherst, Bedford, Derry, Epping, Hollis, Merrimack, Milford,
Nashua, Plaistow and Salem, New Hampshire.
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